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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Juniper Green Energy Private
Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial
statements, including material accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards ('Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its profit (including other comprehensive
income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ('ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our opinion.
Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. Other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s report but does not include the standalone financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the standalone financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in

this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standaione
Financial Statements

The accompanying standalone financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of
Directors. The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind
AS specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the
Act we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of internal control;

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such

controls;

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to thes@fated;disclosures in the standalone financial statements

Chartered Accountants



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Walker Chandiok & Co LL.P

or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other Matter

The standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2023 were audited
by the predecessor auditor, S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, who have expressed an unmodified opinion on
those standalone financial statements vide their audit report dated 22 September 2023.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we report that the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are
not applicable to the Company since the Company is not a public company as defined under section
2(71) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) is not applicable.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit,
we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying standalone

financial statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in paragraph
14(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014

(as amended)}.

¢) The standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account:

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed

as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in paragraph 14(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) of the Act and
paragraph 14(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)

Rules, 2014 (as amended);

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company as on 31 March 2024 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in Annexure B wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

Chartered Accountants
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h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its financial position
as at 31 March 2024,

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2024.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed

in note 50(iv) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the
intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (‘the Ultimate
Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate

Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed

in note 50(v) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the

vi.

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material

misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2024.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company, in respect of financial
year commencing on 1 April 2023, has used an accounting software for maintaining its books
of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except
that, the audit trail feature was not enabled at database level for accounting software to log
any direct data changes, as described in note 47 to the standalone financial statements.
Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with in respect of the accounting software where such feature is

enabled.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Fﬁfs Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Deepak
Partner

Membership No.: 503843
UDIN: 2450384 3BKFASP8881

TR

ittal

Place: Gurugram
Date: 26 September 2024
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Juniper Green Energy Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the

year ended 31 March 2024

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and

belief, we report that:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Chartered Accountants

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment and relevant details
of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its property, plant and
equipment and relevant details of right of use asset under which the assets are physically
verified in a phased manner over a period of three years, which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In
accordance with this program, certain property, plant and equipment and relevant details
of right of use asset were verified during the year and no material discrepancies were

noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties held by the Company (other than properties
where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of
the lessee), disclosed in Note 3(i) to the financial statements, are held in the name of the

Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use
assets) or intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as

amended) and rules made thereunder.

(a) The Company does not hold any inventory. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of
the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Order’) is not

applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees by
banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets at any point of time during
the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

The Company has not provided any security or granted any advances in the nature of loans
to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships during the year. Further, the Company
has made investments in, provided guarantee and granted unsecured loans to companies

during the year, in respect of which:

(a) The Company has provided loans or guarantee to subsidiaries during the year as per
details given below:

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars ] Guarantees Loans
Aggregate amount provided/granted during the year:
- Subsidiaries 123,706.00 50,321.60
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date:
- Subsidiaries 123,70600 20,87565
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Juniper Green Energy Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the

year ended 31 March 2024

(b) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

(c

)

investments made, guarantees provided and terms and conditions of the grant of all loans
and guarantees provided are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

In respect of lcans amounting to Rs. 13,062.00 lakhs and Rs. 135.00 lakhs granted by the
Company as disclosed in note 6 and 13 to the accompanying standalone financial
statements respectively, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest
has been stipulated and principal and interest amount is not due for payment currently.
Further, in respect of loan amounting to Rs. 12,301.65 lakhs granted by the Company as
disclosed in Note 13 to the accompanying standalone financial statements, the schedule
of repayment of principal has been stipulated and the repayments/receipts of principal are
regular. Further, no interest is receivable on such loan.

(d) There is no overdue amount in respect of loans granted to such companies.

(e) The Company has not granted any loan which has fallen due during the year. Further, no

fresh loans were granted to any party to settle the overdue loans/advances in nature of
loan that existed as at the beginning of the year.

(f) The Company has not granted any loan or advance in the nature of loan, which is repayable

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)(a

Chartered Accountants

)

—

on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under section 185 of the Act. As the
Company is engaged in providing infrastructural facilities as specified in Schedule VI of the Act,
provisions of section 186 except sub-section (1) of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In
our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of sub-section (1) of section 186 of the Act in respect of investments,

as applicable.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be
deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance
of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section
(1) of section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/ services / business
activities. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax,
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from

the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that there are no
statutory dues referred to in subclause (a) above that have not been deposited with the

appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Juniper Green Energy Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the

year ended 31 March 2024

(vii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that no transactions
were surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books

of accounts.

(ix) (@) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest

thereon to any iender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received
from the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report
that the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not raised any money by way of term loans during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(ix)(c) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not raised any funds on short term basis during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall examination of the
standalone financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.

(f) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the

Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (@) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the

period covered by our audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act
has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the

Company during the year.

(xiiy  The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Juniper Green Energy Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the

year ended 31 March 2024

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all
transactions entered into by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with
section 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed
in the financial statements etc., as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24,
Related Party Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules
2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Act. Further, according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company is not required to constitute an audit committee

under section 177 of the Act.

(xiv)(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
an internal audit system which is commensurate with the size and nature of its business as

required under the provisions of section 138 of the Act.

(b) We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the
period under audit.

(xv)  According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section

192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not

applicable to the Company.

(b) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management
of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)

Directions, 2016) does not have any CIC.

(xvil) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year as well as the
immediately preceding financial year.

(xvii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information in the financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors
and management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as

and when they fall due.

(xx)(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility in respect of any ongoing or other than
ongoing project as at the end of the financial year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the

Order is not applicable to the Company.

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Juniper Green Energy Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2024

(xxi)  The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of
said clause under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

DeepaIMittal
Partner

Membership No.: 503843
UDIN: 24503843BKFASP8881

Place: Gurugram
Date: 26 September 2024
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Juniper
Green Energy Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31

March 2024

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the

Act)

In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of Juniper Green Energy Private
Limited (‘the Company’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential component of internal contral stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAT’) prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (‘the Guidance Note') issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud

or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial

statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date to the members of Juniper
Green Energy Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31

March 2024

policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detall,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reascnable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.: 001076 N/N500013

Deepak Mittal
Partner

Membership No.: 503843
UDIN: 24503843BKFASP8881

Place: Gurugram
Date: 26 September 2024

Chartered Accountants



JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN-U40100DL2011PTC228318

Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

(All amounts are stated in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particul As at As at
articulars Notes March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 12,652.25 13,159.93
Right-of-use assets 3 1,168.52 790.70
Intangible assets 4 8.21 23.28
Financial assets
Investments 5 92,916.86 62,636.64
Loans 6 12,312.89 6,139.00
Other non-current financial assets 7 60.74 49.85
Non current tax assets (net) 8 76.69 77.04
Other non current assets 9 - 0.12
Sub total (A) 1,19,196.16 82,876.56
Current assets
Financial assets
Trade receivables 10 921.15 432.68
Cash and cash equivalents 11 592.60 501.21
Other bank balances 12 46,458.67 863.96
Loans 13 12,436.65 4,256.85
Other current financial assets 14 2,563.34 316.89
Other current assets 15 642.65 64.30
Sub total (B) 63,615.06 6,435.89
TOTAL ASSETS (A+B) 1,82,811.22 89,312.45
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 16 2,590.56 1,380.72
Other equity 17 1,68,152.75 76,262.58
Sub total (C) 1,70,743.31 77.643.30
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 19 9,277.86 10,001.00
Lease liabilities 41 1,142.30 736.21
Provisions 20 38.87 3944
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 18 347.47 37.52
Sub total (D) 10,806.50 10,814.17
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 21 574.90 550.94
Lease liabilities 41 39.31 -
Trade payables 22
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 14.84 6.64
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 100.03 50.73
Other current financial liabilities 23 166.58 186.35
Other current liabilities 24 93.68 24.30
Provisions 25 39.41 36.02
Current tax liabilities (net) 26 232.66 -
Sub total (E) 1.261.41 854.98
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (C+D+E) 1.82.811.22 89.112.45
2

Summary of material accounting policy information
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Deepak Mittal

Partner

Membership No. 503843
Place: Gurugram

Date: September 26, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

Naresh Mansukhani Parag Agrawal
Director Director

DIN: 06990480 DIN: 02463717
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Date: Sep Date: September 26, 2024

A
Prn;ba Pandia

Company Secretary
M. No. - F12077
Place: Gurugram
Datc: September 26, 202
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JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN-U40100DL2011PTC228318

Standalone statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

. For the year ended For the year ended

P I

i R March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Income
Revenue from operations 27 2,836.17 2,459.03
Other income 28 3,717.53 760.74
Total income 6,553.70 3,219.77
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 29 542.11 744.99
Finance cost 30 1,037.70 1,187.63
Depreciation and amortization expense 31 719.75 688.58
Other expenses 32 779.45 413.02
Total expenses 3,079.01 3,034.22
Profit before tax 3.474.69 185.55
Tax expense 33
Current tax expense 621.24 -
Tax pertaining to earlier years 0.34 0.94
Deferred tax charge 552.49 45.30
Total tax expense 1,174.07 46.24
Profit after tax (A) 2,.300.62 139.31
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods :

Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans 6.68 1.36

Less: Income tax relating to these item (1.68) (0.34)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (B) 5.00 1.02
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (A+B) 2,305.62 140.33
Earnings per equity share: [Nominal value of share: T10 (March 31, 2023; 10)] 34
(1) Basic (3) 11.97 1.01
(2) Diluted (%) 11.97 1.01
Summary of material accounting policy information 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Deepak Mittal

Partner

Membership No. 503843
Place: Gurugram

Date: September 26, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

e

Naresh Mansukhani Parag Agrawal
Director Director

DIN: 06990480 DIN: 02463717
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Dat;: September 26, 2024 Date: September 26, 2024

(‘\

Prashant Pandia
Company Secretary
M. No. - F12077
Place: Gurugram
Date: September 26, 202




JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN-U40100DL2011PTC228318

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are stated in  lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Operating activities
Profit before tax 3,474.69 185.55
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation and amortization expense 719.75 688.58
Interest income (3,421.21) (741.50)
Interest income using effective interest rate method as per IND AS 109 (221.20) -
Interest expenses on lease liabilities 74.10 75.73
Finance cost 963.60 1,111.90
Profit on sale of investments in mutnal fund (74.91) {19.21)
Profit on disposal of fixed assets (0.08) -

1,514.74 1,301.05
Working capital adjustments;
(Increase) in trade receivable (488.47) (7.71)
(Increase) in other financial assets (9.49) (187.28)
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets (578.23) 3.23
Increase in provisions 9.50 20.68
Increase in trade payable 57.50 11.34
Increase/(decrease) in other current and financial liabilities 40.20 (16.79)
545.75 1,124.52
Income tax paid (net of refund) (388.57) (38.53)
Net cash flow generated from operating activities (A) 157.18 1,085.99
Investing activities
Purchase of property plant and equipment including capital work in progress (120.29) (55.53)
Procceds from sale of property plant and equipment 042 -
Purchase of intangible assets / Intangible assets under development (0.96) (15.89)
Interest received 1,173.97 664.11
Loan given to related parties (gross) (45,321.60) (10,041.85)
Loan repaid by subsidiary companies 30,218.80 6,420.20
Investment in / subscription to optionally convertible debentures of subsidiary companies (5,698.00) (767.00)
Investment in subsidiary companies (23,856.12) (880.00)
Proceed from sale of mutual funds (net) 74.91 120.68
(Investment)/redemption in bank deposits (net) (45,595.32) 5,241.73
Net cash flow (used in) / generated from investing activities (B) (89,124.19) 686.45
Financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity shares 75,794.39 -
Share application money received pending allotment 15,000.00 -
Repayment of lease liability (73.21) (31.27)
Repayment of loan to financial institution (706.34) (553.42)
Finance cost (including other incidental cost) paid (956.44) (1,104.74)
Net cash flow from/ (used in) financing activities (C) 89,058.40 (1,689.43)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 91.39 83.01
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 501.21 418.20
592.60 501.21

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year*




JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN-U40100DL2011PTC228318

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

N For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
*Components of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 11)

Cash on hand 0.56 0.56
Balances with schedule banks:

- On current accounts 592.04 500.65
Total cash and cash equivalents 592.60 501.21
Notes:

There are no non cash movements in financing & investing activities except those disclosed above and note 12.

Summary of material accounting policy information (Refer note 2)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

Firm Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Daspa e

Deepak Mittal Naresh Mansukhani
Partner Director
Membership No. 503843 DIN: 06990480
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Date: September 26, 2024 Date: September 26, 2024
Prashant Pandia
Company Secretary
M. No. - F12077
Place: Gurugram

Date: September 26, 2024

& Tndh

Parag Agrawal

Director

DIN: 02463717

Place: Gurugram

Date: September 26, 2024




JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN-U40100DL2011PTC228318

Standalone statement of change in equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

{All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(a) Equity share capital
Particulars Number of share % in lakhs
Balance at April 1, 2022 1,38,07,243 1,380.72
Issue of equity share capital during the year - -
Balance at March 31, 2023 1,38,07,243 1,380.72
Issue of equity share capital during the year 1,20,98,397 1,209.84
Balance at March 31, 2024 2,59,05,640 2,590.56
(b) Other equity
Reserves and Surplus Other
corniponents
Particulars Securi.ties Capital reserve Retaifled Share Applica_tion Total
premium Earnings Money pending
allotment
Balance at April 1, 2022 73,139.88 (1.27) 2,983.64 - 76,122.25
Profit for the year - - 139.31 - 139.31
Other comprehensive income for the vear, net of tax - - 1.02 - 1.02
Balance at March 31, 2023 73.139.88 (1.27) 3,123.97 - 76,262.58
Profit for the year - - 2,300.62 - 2,300.62
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - - 5.00 - 5.00
Share application money received (refer note -17) - - - 90,794.41 90,794.41
Shares issued during the year 74,584.55 - - (75,794.39) (1,209.84)
Amount refunded during the vear - - - 10.02) (0.02)
Balance at March 31, 2024 1.47.724.43 (1.27) 5,429.59 15.000.00 1,68,152.75

Summary of material accounting policy information (Refer note 2)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

?\utnl»m

Deepak Mitta

Partner

Membership No. 503843
Place: Gurugram

Date: September 26, 2024

Foned

Parag Agrawal

DIN: 02463717 @
Place: Gurugram

Date: September 26, 2024

Date: September 26, 2024

e

Prashant Pandia
Company Secretary
M. No. - F12077
Place: Gurugram

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

@M‘/

Naresh Mansukhani
Director
DIN: 06990480

Place: Gurugram

.-

Date: September 26, 2024



Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

CIN-U40100DL2011PTC228318

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1.

2.1

2.2

Corporate information

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited is a private Company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company is subsidiary of Juniper Renewable Holdings Pte Ltd. The registered office of
the Company is located at F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza 1, Plot No. 7, MLU, Sector 10, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075.

The Company was incorporated on December 05, 2011. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of setting up,
operating, maintaining, generation, supply and sale of power in the field of renewable energy. The Company had
commissioned 30 MW Solar Power Project in the state of Maharashtra (“Project”) and electricity generated from it is sold
to Maharashtra State Electricity Distribution Company Limited.

The standalone financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors
dated September 26, 2024.

Basis of Preparation and Material accounting policy information

Basis of preparation

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with the section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the
Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule III), as applicable to the financial statements.

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on the accrual and going concern basis in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India. Further, the standalone financial statements have been prepared on
historical cost basis except for derivative financial instruments and certain financial assets and financial liabilities which
have been measured at fair value or revalued amount as explained in relevant accounting policies.

The standalone financial statements are presented in Rupees in lakhs, except when otherwise indicated.

Material accounting policy information

a) Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the
management's best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

b) All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle
of 12 months which is based on the nature of business of the Company and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the
Companies Act, 2013. Current assets do not include elements which are not expected to be realized within 12 months
and Current liabilities do not include item which are due after 12 months, the period of 12 months being reckoned
from the reporting date.

¢) Amended Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and interpretations effective during the year

i) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8
The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates, changes in accounting policies and

the correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates.

The amendments had no impact on the Company.




Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
CIN-U40100DL2011PTC228318
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

ii) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

iii)

d)

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the
requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’
accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about
accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments have had an impact on the Company’s disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the
measurement, recognition or presentation of any items in the Company’s financial statements.

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to Ind AS 12

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer applies
to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences such as leases.

The amendments had no impact on the Company.
Revenue recoguition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements
because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

Revenue is measured based on transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts and other incentives,
if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes or other amounts collected form
customers.

Sale of power: The Company’s revenue from sale of electricity generally includes one performance obligation. The
revenue from supply of power is recognized over time when electricity is transferred to the customer i.e., on the supply
of units generated from the plant to the grid. The revenue is recognized at the agreed tariff rate as per the terms of the
Power Purchase Agreements ("PPA") entered into with the customer.

Revenue from operations on account of change in law events in terms of PPA’s with customers is accounted for based
on the orders/ reports of respective regulatory authorities and management’s best estimates wherever required.

Sale of Verified Emission Reductions (VER): Revenue from sale of VER is recognised when following conditions
have been satisfied:

i. The significant risks and rewards of ownership of the VER have been passed on to the buyer;

ii. The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

iii. It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the sale of VER will flow to the entity; and
iv. The cost incurred or to be incurred in respect to sale of VER can be measured reliably.

Contract assets: A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the
customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivables: A receivable represents the company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional
(i-e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).




Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
CIN-U40100DL2011PTC228318

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

¢) Property Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, and subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment other than
frechold land are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost
comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase
price. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Subsequent Costs

The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item
of property, plant and equipment, if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to
the Company and its cost can be measured reliably with the carrying amount of the replaced part getting derecognised.
The cost for day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as and
when incurred.

Capital work-in-progress/ Assets under construction

Capital work-in-progress represents expenditure incurred in respect of capital projects under development and is stated at
cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. Cost includes land, related acquisition expenses, development/
construction costs, borrowing costs and other direct expenditure.

Depreciation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis, computed on the basis of useful lives
(as set-out below) prescribed in Schedule IT to the Act:

Assets category | Useful life (in years) _‘
Plant and Equipment * 25

Office equipment 5

Furniture and fixtures 10

Computers (including servers) 3-6

Vehicles 8

Lease hold improvements Over the period of lease term

* The useful life of plant & equipment is different from the useful life as prescribed under Part C of Schedule IT of the
Companies Act, 2013. The Company, based on technical assessment made by internal expert, has estimated the useful life
of solar power project as 25 years and believes that it reflects fair approximation of the period over which the asset will
generate economic benefit and is likely to be used.

The identified components are depreciated over their useful lives; the remaining asset is depreciated over the life of the
principal asset. The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year end or whenever there are
indicators for impairment and adjusted prospectively.

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the income statement when the asset is derecognized. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of
property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

f) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated
intangibles, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in
statement of profit & loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.
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Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
CIN-U40100DL2011PTC228318
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortization period or
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets
with finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of
another asset. The software’s are amortised over a period of three years.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually
or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective
basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognized.

g) Leases
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the

right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee
The company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The company recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing

the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated useful lives of the assets are follows:

. Leasehold Land 28 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also

subject to impairment.

ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine
such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
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Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

CIN-U40100DL2011PTC228318

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of certain plant & machinery,
vehicle etc. (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that
are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low value assets are recognized as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

h) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalized as part of the cost of a qualifying asset if they are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of that asset. Capitalization of borrowing costs commences when the activities to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress and the expenditures and borrowing costs are incurred. Borrowing costs
are capitalized until the assets are substantially completed for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection
with the arrangement of borrowings, other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds and
exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the

borrowing cost.

i) Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity

instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

Initial Recognition and Measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or
sell the asset.

Subsequent Measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

Debt instruments at amortized cost

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through statement of Profit & Loss (FVTPL)
Equity instruments, measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

Debt instruments at amortized cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
category applies to the Company’s trade receivables, unbilled revenue, other bank balances, security deposits etc.

Debt instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCI)
A ‘debt instrument” is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:




Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
CIN-U40100DL2011PTC228318

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

a)  The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial

assets, and
b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCT). However, the Company recognizes
interest income, impairment losses & reversals in the statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition of the asset,
cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from the equity to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
FVTPL is aresidual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization
as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI
criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Debt instrument included within FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement
of profit and loss.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) is primarily derecognized
(i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

a)  The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b) The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and Either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b)
the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Company continues to recognize the asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case,
the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading
and contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are
classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of
investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.
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Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
P&L.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) is primarily derecognized
(i.e., removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

a) The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b) The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and Either (a) the Company has transferred substantially ail the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Company continues to recognize the asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case,
the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition
of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:
¢ Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g. deposits, trade receivables and bank
balances
Financial asset that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI
Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that
are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance for trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has
been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, twelve-
month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is
used. If, in the subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on
a twelve-month ECL..

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date,

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating
the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

» All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the
expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument
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cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial

instrument
*  Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its
trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade
receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/ expense in the
statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head “other expenses’ in the statement of profit and loss.
The balance sheet presentation for financial instruments is described below:

For financial assets measured at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance i.e. as an integral part of the measurement
of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write off criteria,
the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis of
shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases
in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

Non derivative financial liabilities

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings,
net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans
and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined
by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair
value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ losses are not subsequently
transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in
fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR

amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
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existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the
Statement of profit or loss.

Reclassification of Financial instruments

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition,
no reclassifications are made for financial assets and financial liabilities.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is 2 currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

J) Foreign currencies
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR or ¥) which is also the functional and reporting currency of

the Company.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying the exchange rate between the functional
currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the balance sheet date are converted to functional currency using the
closing rate. Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost are reported using
the exchange rate at the date of the transactions.

Exchange differences arising on monetary items on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates different from
those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they
arise.

Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose
fair value gain or loss is recognized in other comprehensive income or profit or loss are also recognized in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

k) Taxes
Current Income taxes

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at
the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:
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*  When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss.

e Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

e  When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

o Inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
Joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the

reporting date

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either
in OCI or directly in equity

1) Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other
than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund
scheme as an expense when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized
as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for
services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment
will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Retirement benefit in the form of gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. The costs of providing benefits under the scheme
are determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year-end using the projected unit credit method. The actuarial
valuation is carried out for the plan using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in
net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on
the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of
e  The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
e The date that the Company recognizes related restructuring costs
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Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognizes

the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements; and

e Net interest expense or income

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit.
The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of
the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee
benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation
using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. The Company presents the leave as a current liability in the balance
sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.
Where Company has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months,
the same is presented as non-current liability.

m) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders
(after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly
paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends
relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split and reverse share
split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change
in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

n) Provisions

General

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The
expense relating to any provision is presented in the Statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no
longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Decommissioning liability

The Company records a provision for decommissioning costs of its solar power plants. Decommissioning costs are
provided at the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation using estimated cash flows and are recognised as
part of the cost of the particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific
to the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurred and recognised in the statement
of profit and loss as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjusted as
appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are added to or deducted from the cost of
the asset.
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o) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, or when annual impairment assessment for an asset is required, the Company makes an estimate of the
asset’s recoverable amount, An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset
or cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit & loss, except for assets that are previously revalued where
the revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. In this case, the impairment is also recognised in other
comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increase cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised previously. Such reversal is recognised in
statement of comprehensive income unless the asset is measured at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated
as a revaluation increase.

p) Contingent Assets/liabilities

Contingent assets are not recognized. However, when realization of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is no
longer a contingent asset, and is recognized as an asset.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence
in the financial statements.

q) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the
consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

r) Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments such as derivates at Fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

° In the principal market for the asset or liability

° In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a
non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:
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Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly
or indirectly observable

Level 3 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

At each reporting date, the management of the Company analysis the movements in the values of the assets and liabilities
which are required to be measured or reassessed as per the accounting policies of the Company.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on & recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. This
note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

s) Events occurring after the Balance Sheet date
Impact of events occurring after the balance sheet date that provide additional information materially effecting the

determination of the amounts relating to conditions existing at the balance sheet date are adjusted to respective assets and
liabilities. The Company does not adjust the amount recognized in its financial statements to reflect non-adjusting events
after the reporting period. The Company make disclosures in the financial statement in case of significant events.

t)  Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries
Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries are accounted for at cost in accordance with Ind AS 27 Separate Financial

Statements.

u) Amendment to Accounting Standards (Ind AS) issued but not yet effective.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. As at 31st March 2024, MCA has not notified any new
standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.
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3. (i) Property, plant and equipment

Computers Computer Land* Plant and Office Vehicles Lease hold Furnitare Total
server equipment equipment improvement and fixture
Gross block, At cost
Opening as at April 01, 2022 23.53 2338 1.38 14,842.48 38.79 8827 124.75 19.76 15,162.34
Additions during the year 172 - - - - - 1.72
Disposals during the year - - - -
At March 31, 2023 2525 2338 138 14,842.48 3879 88.27 124,75 19.76 15,164.06
Additions during the year - 19.68 - 1513 - 94.88 129.69
Disposals during the year 6.84 - . - - 6.84
At March 31, 2024 18.41 431.06 138 14,842.48 53.92 88.27 219.63 19.76 15,286.91
Depreciation/ Amortisation
Opening as at April 01, 2022 2251 10.61 - 1,242.54 27.87 1741 4527 6.35 1,372.56
Additions during the year 0.75 3.70 . 593.94 7.22 10.48 13.60 1.88 631.57
Disposals during the year A - - . - ) -
At March 31, 2023 23.26 1431 - 1,836.48 35.09 27.89 58.87 823 2,004.13
Additions during the year 0.58 5.37 - 595.56 4.16 10.50 18.98 1.88 637.03
Disposals during the year 6.50 - - - - - 6.50
At March 31, 2024 17.34 19.68 - 2,432.04 39.25 3839 77.85 10.11 2,634.66
Net carrying value
At March 31, 2024 107 23.38 138 12,41044 14.67 49.88 141.78 9.65 12,652.25
At March 31,2023 1.99. 9.07 138 13,006.00 70 60.38 65.88 1153 13,159.93
*Land
Description of item of property Gross Carrying Title deeds ‘Whether title deed holder Is a Property held Reason for not
VYalue held in the pramoter, director or relative of | since which date | being held in the
(% lakhs) name of promoter / director or employee of name of the
promoter / director company
Land 1.38 JGEPL No Year 2019-20 NA
(ii) Right-of-use assets#
Particulars Leasehold Land | Office Building Total
Opening as at April 01, 2022 763.58 5 768.58
Addition during the year 64.17 . 64.17
Depreciation for the year (42.05) 42.05)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 790.70 - 790.70
Addition during the year 377.32 67.19 444.51
Depreciation for the year (37.35) (29.34) (66.69)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 1,130.67 3785 1,168.52

# Right-of-use assets: Refer note 41 for relevant disclosures.

4, (i) Intangible Assets

Software Total
Gross block
Opening as at April 01, 2022 42.54 42,54
Additions during the year 16.48 16.48
Disposals during the year - -
At March 31, 2023 59.02 59.02
Additions during the year 0.96 0.96
Disposals during the year - -
At March 31, 2024 59.98 59.98
Depreciation/ Amortisation
Opening as at April 01, 2022 20.78 20.78
Additions during the year 14.96 1496
Disposals during the year - -
At March 31, 2023 35.74 35.74
Additions during the year 16.03 16.03
Disposals during the year - -
At March 31, 2024 51.77 5L77
Net Block
At March 31, 2024 8.21 8.21

At March 31, 2023 23.28 23.28
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Asat As at
Fartieulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023
5 Investment in subsidiaries

Non-current investments*
Unquoted equity shares
In subsidiaries (equity shares of ¥ 10 each, fully paid up) (refer note 37)
Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited [7,20,50,000 shares (March 31, 2023: 7,20,50,000)] 7,205.00 7,205.00
Nisagra Renewable Energy Private Limited [7,50,40,000 shares (March 31, 2023: 7,50,40,000)] 7,504.00 7,504.00
Juniper Green Field Private Limited [107,370,000 shares (March 31, 2023: 107,370,000)] 10,737.00 10,737.00
Juniper Green Three Private Limited [131,300,000 shares (March 31, 2023: 131,300,000)] 13,130.00 13,130.00
Juniper Green Gem Private Limited {560,000 shares (March 31, 2023: 130,000)] 56.00 13.00
Orange Gadag Wind Power Private Limited [10,000 Shares (March 31, 2023: 10,000)] 1.00 1.00
Juniper Green Beam Private Limited [7,25,80,000 Shares (March 31, 2023: 40,000)] 7,258.00 4.00
Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited [7,07,90,000 Shares (March 31, 2023: 7,40,000)] 7,079.00 74.00
Juniper Green Stellar Private Limited [1,67,80,000 Shares (March 31, 2023: 9,60,000)] 1,678.00 96.00
Juniper Green Beta Private Limited [1,50,00,000 Shares (March 31, 2023: 1,10,000)] 1,500.00 11.00
Juniper Green Transmission Private Limited [18,70,000 Shares (March 31, 2023: 400,000)] 187.00 40.00
Juniper Green Kite Private Limited [10,000 Shares (March 31, 2023: 10,000)] 1.00 1.00
Juniper Green Infinite Private Limited [95,000 Shares (March 31, 2023: 10,000)] 9.50 1.00
Juniper Green Power Five Private Limited [10,000 Shares (March 31, 2023: 10,000)] 1.00 1.00
Juniper Green Sigma Six Private Limited [10,000 Shares (March 31, 2023: 10,000)] 1.00 1.00
Juniper Green India Eight Private Limited [25,000 Shares (March 31, 2023: 10,000)] 2.50 1.00
Juniper Green Alpha Three Private Limited (35,000 Shares (March 31, 2023: 10,000)] 350 1.00
Juniper Green Theta Five Private Limited [40,000 Shares (March 31, 2023: 10,000)] 4.00 1.00
Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited [3,00,00,000 Shares (March 31, 2023: 10,000)] 3,000.00 1.00
Juniper Green Gamma Two Private Limited [2,05,000 Shares (March 31, 2023: 10,000)] 20.50 1.00
Juniper Green Beta Six Private Limited [75,000 Shares (March 31, 2023: 10,000)] 7.50 1.00
Juniper Green ETA Five Private Limited {45,000 Shares (March 31, 2023: 10,000)] 4.50 1.00
Juniper Nirjara Energy Private Limited [99,00,000 Shares (March 31, 2023: Nil)] 1,215.12 -
Juniper Green Ray Two Private Limited {99,00,000 Shares (March 31, 2023: 10,000)] 990.00 1.00
Juniper Green Beam Eight Private Limited [1,50,000 Shares (March 31, 2023: 10,000)] 15.00 1.00
Juniper Green Beam Six Private Limited [25,000 Shares (March 31, 2023: 10,000)] 2.50 1.00
Juniper Green Spark Four Private Limited [60,000 Shares (March 31, 2023: 10,000)] 6.00 1.00
Juniper Green Light Ten Private Limited [40,000 Shares (March 31, 2023: 10,000)] 4.00 1.00
Juniper Green Ray One Private Limited [11,00,000 Shares (March 31, 2023: 10,000)] 110.00 1.00
Juniper Green India Alpha Private Limited [25,000 Shares (March 31, 2023: 10,000)) 2.50 1.00
Juniper Green Spark Ten Private Limited [50,000 Shares (March 31, 2023: 10,000)] 5.00 1.00
Juniper Green Light Four Private Limited [15,000 Shares (March 31, 2023; 10,000)] 1.50 1.00
Juniper Green India Six Private Limited [95,00,000 Shares (March 31, 2023: 10,000)] 950.00 1.00
Juniper Green Sigma Eight Private Limited [15,000 Shares (March 31, 2023: 10,000)] 1.50 1.00
Total Investment in subsidiaries (A) 62.693.12 IH.B37.00
In Subsidiary
Deemed i in subsidiaries d in terms of IND AS 109

Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited 871.64 871.64

Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited 424.37 -

Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited 301.73 -
Total (B) 1,597.74 871.64
Optionally convertible deb es (OCDs)
In subsidiaries (debentures of T 100 each) (refer note 38)
Juniper Green Field Private Limited (JGFPL') [10,314,000 debentures (March 31, 2023: 10,314,000)]** 10,314.00 10,314.00
Juniper Green Three Private Limited (JGTPL') (12,614,000 debentures (March 31, 2023: 12,614,000 *** 12,614.00 12,614.00
Juniper Green Beam Private Limited (JGBPL') [6,98,000 debentures (March 31, 2023: Nil)] **** 698.00
Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited ('JGGOPL') [50,00,000 debentures (March 31, 2023 Nil)] *#*** 5.000.00 -
Total t in OCDs of subsidiaries (C) 28,626.00 22,928.00
Total investment in subsidiaries (D = A+B+C) 9&916.86 62.636.64
Non current investment 92,916.86 62,636.64
Aggregate market value of quoted investments - -

92,916.86 62,636.64

Aggregate value of unquoted investments
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments

*All the investment in equity shares of subsidiaries are stated at cost as per Ind AS 27 'Separate Financial Statements”.

** Investment in OCDs are convertible into Equity shares at the option of the Company in accordance with the conditions of the subscription agreement or is redeemable on or before March 31,
2042. No interest shall accrue or charged or become due or receivable till June 30, 2023 or one year from the Project Commercial Operation Date ('COD') or first payment of installment of term
loan facility by the subsidiary company, whichever is later.

*** Investment in OCDs are convertible into Equity shares at the option of the Company in accordance with the conditions of the subscription agreement or is redeemable on or before March 31,
2043. No interest shall accrue or charged or become due or receivable till March 31, 2023 or one year from the Project Commercial Operation Date ('COD"} or first payment of installment of term
loan facility by the subsidiary company, whichever is later.

**£% Investment in OCDs are convertible into Equity shares at the option of the Company in accordance with the conditions of the subscription agreement or is redeemable on or before March 31,
2046. No interest shall accrue or charged or become due or receivable till September 30, 2025 or one year from the Project Commercial Operation Date (COD') or first payment of instaliment of
term loan facility by the subsidiary company, whichever is later.

*#*¥%% Investment in OCDs are convertible into Equity shares at the option of the Company in accordance with the conditions of the subscription agreement or is redeemable on or before June 30,
2048. No interest shall accrue or charged or become due or receivable till March 31, 2025 or one year from the Project Commercial Operation Date ('COD') or first payment of instaltment of term
loan facility by the subsidiary company, whichever is later.

6 Loans (Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Loans to related party (refer note 38)

- To subsidiary company* 478.00 349,00
- To subsidiary company** 5,790.00 5,790.00
- To subsidiary company*** 1,070.00

- To subsidiary company# 2,264.36 -

- To subsidiary company#¥# 2,710.53 -
Total 12.112.89 139,

* Rep d loan to subsidiary company which is reccivable on or before March 31, 2042. The applicable interest rate is 8.45%.

** Rep d loan to subsidiary company which is receivable on or before March 31, 2039. The applicable interest rate is 8.10%.

*+* Rep d loan to subsidiary company which is ivable on or before March 31, 2042. The applicable interest rate is 8.45%.

#R d loan to subsidiary pany which is ivable on or before June 30, 2048. The interest is receivable from March 31, 2025 or Project

('COD) or tilt repayment of first installment of term loan by the subsidiary company, whichever is later. Gross loan amount is INR 2, ,525.00 lakhs (adjustment und

INR 260.64 lakhs).

INR 488.47 lakhs).
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Notes to dalone fi ial for the year ended March 31, 2024
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. Asat Asat
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023
7 Other non current financial assets
- Fixed Deposits* 11.59 10.98
Security deposit 49.15 38.87
Total 60.74 49.85
*Under lien with bank for the purpose of DSRA.
8 Non current tax assets (net)
Advance income-tax / tax deducted at source (net of provision for income tax amounting to INR Nil) 76.69 77.04
Total 76.69 77.04
9 Other non-current assets (Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Prepaid expenses - 0.12
Total - 0.12
10 Trade receivables
Trade receivables considered good - Secured - -
Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured (refer note 38 for related party receivables) 921.15 432.68
‘Total Trade receivables 921.15 432.68
Trade receivables carries interest as per the terms of agreements with customers and are generally on terms of 0 to 30 days.
Trade receivables ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2024
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Unbilleg CUrrentbut Lessthan6 6 months — 1 12 years 23 years More than Total
not due months year 3 vears
Undisputed trade receivables
—Considered good* 227.57 688.83 4.75 - - - - 921.15
—~Which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - -
Total trade receivables 22757 688.83 4.75 - - - - 921.15
Less: Loss allowances -
Total 221.57 688.83 4.75 - - - - 921.15
*There are no disputed trade receivable. Hence, the same is not disclosed in the ageing schedule.
As at 31 March 2023
O ding for following periods from due date of pay ment
Particulars Unbilled Current but Le‘s.s thaln 6 6months—1 1-2 years 23 years More than Total
not Due year 3 years
Und d trade receivabl
~Considered good* 201.86 214.63 16.19 - - - - 432.68
—Which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - - -
Total trade receivables 201.86 214.63 16.19 - - - - 432.68
Less: Loss allowances -
Total 201.86 214.63 16.1% - - - - 432.68
*There are no disputed trade receivable. Hence, the same is not disclosed in the ageing schedul
11 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand 0.56 0.56
Balances with banks:
-on current accounts 592.04 500.65
Total 592.60 501.21
12 Other bank balances
- Fixed Deposits (with remaining maturity less than 12 months)* 25,674.20 -
- Fixed Deposits with banks (with remaining maturity less than 12 months)** 727.30 863.96
- Fixed Deposits (with remaining maturity less than 12 months) 20.057.17 -
Total 46.458.67 863.96
*Held as margin money lien against letter of credit/bank guarantee/overdraft limit.
**Deposits are under licn as per terms of contractual arrangement, but are readily ible by the Company, on d d
Net debt reconciliation
This section sets out analysis of net debt and the movement in net debt for each of the year presented:
Net debt as on 31 March 2024
Particulars March 31, Cash Commitment Fair value March 31, 2024
2023 flows during the year  adjustment (other
than cash flow) /
Others
Non current - borrowings (including current maturities) 10,551.94  (706.34) - 7.16 9,852.76
Lease ligbilities 736.21 (73.21} 444.51 74.10 1.181.61
Total (A) 11.288.15 _ (779.55) 444.51 81.26 11.034.37
Less:
Cash and cash equivalents (501.21) {91.39) - - (592.60)
Investment in mutual fund - 74.91 - 174.91} -
Net cash & cash equivalent (B) (501.21) _ {16.48} - (74.91) 1592.60)
Net Debt (A-B) 10,786.94  (796.03) 444.51 6.35 10,441.77
Net debt as on 31 March 2023
Particulars March 31, Cash Commitment / Fair value March 31, 2023
2022 flows Adj dj (other
during the year than cash flow) /
Others
Non current - borrowings (including current maturities) 11,098.20  (553.42) - 7.16 10,551.94
Lease liabilities 627.58 31.27) 64.17 75.73 736.21
Total (A) 11.725.78 _ 1584.69) 64.17 82.89 11.288.15
Less:
5 (418.20)  (83.01) - - (501.21)
1101.47)  120.68 - (19.21 -
(519.67) 37.67 - 19.21) (501.21)
11,206.11  (547.02) 64.17 63.68 10,786.94
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Notes to dal fi for the year ended March 31, 2024
(ANl amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
. As at As at

Particulars March31,2024 __ March 31,2023

13 Loans
Loans to related parties (refer note 38)
- To subsidiary companies* 135.00 1,065.00
- To subsidiary ies { d, interest free and repayable within a year} 12.301.65 3,191.85
Taotal 12.436.65 4.256.85
*Loan to related party are chargeable to interest @ 8.45% p.a. and are repayable within one year.
Break-up for security details:
Secured, considered good - -
Unsecured, considered good 12,436.65 4,256.85
Credit impaired - -
Total 12.436.65 4.256.85
Impairment all { All for exp credit loss)
Unsecured, considered good - -
Credit impaired - -
Total Loan 12.436.65 4,256.85

14 Oiher current financial assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Interest accrued on fixed deposit 393.03 554
Interest accrued on security deposit 1.85 117
Interest accrued on loans to related party (refer note 38) 523.32 122.90
Interest accrued on OCD to related party (refer note 38) 1,458.65 -
Receivable from related parties (refer note 38) 186.49 187.28
Total 2,563.34 316.89

15 Other current assets
{(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Prepaid expenses 312.08 5341
Other advance (including advance to employees) 14.16 10.19
Advance to vendor 272.25 -
Balance with government authorities 44.16 0.70
Total 642,65 64.30
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Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated )

16. Equity share capital

" As at As at
Farticuiprs March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Authorised share capital:

Equity share capital

3,50,00,000 (March 31, 2023: 2,50,00,000) equity shares of Rs.10/- each 3,500.00 2,500.00
2,000 (March 31, 2023: 2,000) Class B equity shares of Rs.10 each 0.20 0.20
Total 3.500.20 2.500.20
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital:

2,59,03,640(March 31, 2023: 1,38,05,243) equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up 2,590.36 1,380.52
2,000 (March 31, 2023: 2,000) Class B equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up 0.20 0.20
Total 2.590.56 1.380.72
A. Reconciliation of no. of equity shares

(i) Autherised share capital No. of shares Aount
At April 1, 2022 1,55,02,000 1,550.20
Equity Shares increased during the year 95,00,000 950.00
At March 31,2023 2.50.02.000 2.500.20
Equity shares increased during the year 1,00,00,000 1,000.00
AtMarch 31,2024 3.50,02.000 3.500.20
(ii) Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital No. of shares Amount
At April 1, 2022 1,38,07,243 1,380.72
Equity shares issued during the year - -
At March 31, 2023 1,38,07,243 1,380.72
Equity shares issued during the year 1,20.98.397 1,209.84
AtMarch 31, 2024 2.59.05.640 2.590.56

B. Terms/Rights attached to shares

Terms/Rights attached to equitv shares
The Company has two classes of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/- each as follows:

Each holder of Equity Share is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets
of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of Equity Shares held by the shareholders.

Each holder of class B Equity Share shall not carry any right to dividend, voting or any other economic right and collectively gain a percentage of voting, dividend and economic
rights (of the total voting and economic rights available to the shareholders of the Company) as provided in Articles of Association.

C. Shares held by holding company
Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company are as below:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
2,59,03,640 (March 31, 2023: 1,38,05,243) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each held by Juniper Renewable Holdings Pte. Ltd., the holding 2,590.36 1,380.52
company and its nominee

D. Details of shareholders holdings more than 5% Equity shares

March 31, 2024 March 31. 2023
Name of the shareholder Number of shares  Percentage of = Number of shares  Percentage of
held Holding held Holding
Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid
Juniper Renewable Holdings Pte. Ltd., the holding company and nominee 2,59,03,640 100.00% 1,38,05,243 100.00%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declaration received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above
shareholding represent both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

E. Details of Equity shares held by promoters

As at March 31, 2024
Promoter Name Number of shares at Change in Number of shares % of total Shares % change in
the beginning of the shareholding at the end of the  of the Company shareholding
year during the vear sear during the vear
Juniper Renewable Holdings Pte. Ltd. and nominee 1,38,05,243 1,20,98,397 2,59,03,640 100.00% -
As at March 31. 2023
Promoter Name Number of shares at Change in Number of shares % of total Shares % change in
the beginning of the shareholding at the end of the  of the Company shareholding
vear during the vear vear during the vear
Juniper Renewable Holdings Pte. Ltd. and nominee 1,38,05,243 - 1,38,05,243 100.00% -

F. No shares have been issued for consideration other than cash and no shares have been bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.
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Particulars Asat As st
March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
17 Other equity

(a) Retained earnings*

As per last balance sheet 3,123.97 2,983.64

Add : Net profit for the year 2,300.62 139.31

Add: Other Comprehensive Income, net of tax 5.00 1.02

Net surplus in statement of profit and loss 5.429.59 3.123.97

*Retained earning refer to the net profit retained by the company for its business activities.

(b) Securities premium account

As per last balance sheet 73,139.88 73,139.88

Add: Addition on issue of equity shares 74,584.55 -

Total 1.47.724.43 73.139.88

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

(c) Share application money pending allotment

As per last balance sheet

Add: Amount received 90,794.41 -
Less: Equity issued (75,794.39) -
Less: Amount refunded back 10.02) -
Total* 15.000.00 -

*Subsequent to year end, the Company has issued 22,85,816 equity shares (Face Value INR 222.58 lakhs and Securities Premium INR 14,777.42 lakhs) against
the share application money pending allotment.

(d) Capital Reserve
As per last balance sheet

Adjustment on account of merger
Total (1.27) (1.27)

The excess of net assets taken over the investment carried in Demerged Company is classified as capital reserve on account of meger. Capital reserve on account of
merger is not available for the distribution to the shareholders.

(1.27) (1.27)

Total Other Equity (a+b+c+d) 1,68.152.75 76,262.58
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18. Deferred tax liability / (assets) (net)

(a) Components of deferred tax liability / (assets) (net)

Deferred tax liability:

As at

Asat

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Depreciation and amortisation on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 561.13 407.45
Right to use assets 294.09 199.00
EIR adjustment of borrowings 21.18 22.98
Gross deferred tax liability (A) 876.40 629.43
Deferred tax asset:
Provision for employee benefits 21.34 18.99
Lease liability 308.40 198.62
Equity component as per Ind AS 109 188.54 293,16
Unabsorbed depreciation - 72.09
Expenses allowed on payment basis 10.65 9.05
Gross deferred tax asset (B) 528.93 591.91
Net Deferred tax liability / (assets) (A-B) 34747 37.52
(b) Reconciliation of deferred tax liability / (assets) : March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening balance 37.52 (8.12)
Tax income/(expense) during the year recognised in statement profit and loss 552.49 4530
Tax income/(expense) during the year recognised in Other comprehensive income 1.68 0.34
Tax expense on equity component as per Ind AS 109 244.20) -
Closing balance as at 31 March 347.47 37.52
(c) Movement in deferred tax liability / (assets) :
Movement in deferred liability / (assets) for vear ended March 31, 2024 (Z in lakhs)
March 31,2023 | Recognised in Equity Recognised in March 31, 2024
. reserve and component as profit and loss
Particutars surplus per Ind AS 109
Liability
Depreciation and amortisation on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 407.45 - - 153.68 561.13
Right to use assets 199.00 - - 95.09 294.09
EIR adj of borrowinis 22.98 - - (1.80) 21.18
629.43 - - 246.97 876.40
Assets
Provision for employee benefits 18.99 (1.68) - 4.03 21.34
Lease liability 198.62 - - 109.78 308.40
Equity component as per Ind AS 109 293.16 - 24420 (348.83) 188.53
Unabsorbed depreciartion 72.09 - - (72.09) -
Expenses allowed on payment basis 9.05 - - 1.60 10.65
591.91 (1.68) 244.20 (305.51) 528.92
Net deferred tax liabilitv / (assets) 37.52 1.68 (244.20) 552.49 34747
Movement in deferred liability / for year ended March 31, 2023 (% in lakhs)
March 31, 2022 | Recognised in Equity Recognised in March 31, 2023
Particulars reserve and component as profit and loss
surplus per Ind AS 109
Liability
Depreciation and amortisation on property, plant and equipment and. intangible assets 261.67 - - 145.78 407.45
Right to use assets 193.44 - - 5.56 199.00
EIR adjustment of borrowings 24.78 - - (1.80) 22.98
Fair value of investment and financial instruments at amortised cost 0.18 - - (0.18) -
480.07 - - 149.36 629.43
Assets
Provision for employee benefits 14.13 (0.34) - 520 18.99
Lease liability 17398 - - 24.64 198.62
Equity component as per Ind AS 109 293.16 - - - 293.16
Unabsorbed depreciation - - - 72.09 72.09
Expenses allowed on payinent basis 6.92 - - 2.13 9.05
488.19 (0.34) - 104.06 591.91
Net deferred tax liability / (assets) (8.12) 0.34 - 45.30 31752
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Particulars As at Auat
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
19 Borrowings
Secured
Term Loan from financial institutions* 9,852.76 10,551.94
Less: Amount clubbed under "Current Borrowings" (Refer note 21) (574.90) (550.94)
Total 9.277.86 10,001.00

20

21

22

*Represents term loan taken from Indian Renewable Energy Development Agency (IREDA) in INR specifically for the purpose of setting up 30 MW solar power
project in Maharashtra which carries interest rate of 8.75% p.a with annual reset upon expiry of 1 year from the date of first disbursement and every year
thereafter. The loan shall be repaid over a tenure of 15 years in 60 quarterly instalments starting from March 31, 2021 and ending on December 31, 2035.

(i) Exclusive First Charge by way of Mortgage by deposit of title deeds in favour of IREDA on all the immovable properties, both present and future, wherever
situate, pertaining to 30 MW,

(ii) Exclusive First Charge by way of hypothecation in favour of IREDA of all the movable assets/properties both present and future wherever situate, pertaining to
30 MW.

(iif) Corporate Guarantee of holding Company M/s. Juniper Renewable Holdings Pte Limited which shall be released upon compliance of the certain conditions.

(iv) Pledge of 99% of the promoter’s contribution (Equity) in the project. The same shall be reduced to 76% and retained during the tenure of the loan, upon
compliance of the certain conditions.

(v) Conditional assignment of a) All the rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands of the project contract assignable by the company, b) Subject to
Applicable Law, all the rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands in the Clearances pertaining to the project ¢) All the rights, title, interest, benefits, claims
and demands in any letter of credit, guarantee, performance bond, corporate guarantee, bank guarantee, minimum energy generation guarantee, liquidated damages,
shortfall in generation etc. provided by any party to the Project Documents.

Provisions
Non-current
Provision for gratuity (Refer note 40) 38.87 39.44
Total 38.87 39.44
Borrowings
Current
Secured
Current maturites of long term borrowings 574.90 550.94
Total 574.90 550.94
Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 14.84 6.64
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 100.03 50.73
Total 114.87 57.37
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled 0-90 days terms.
Trade Payables Ageing Schedule
As at 31 March 2024
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

icul
Particulars Unbilled Lessv:l;:n ! 1-2 years 2-3years More than 3 years Total
Total f)utstandmg dues of micro enterprises and small ) 14.84 N } : 14.84
enterprises
Total outstandmg. dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 56.41 4223 0.02 0.08 1.29 100.03
and small enterprises
Total 56.41 57.07 0.02 0.08 1.29 114.87

*There are no disputed trade receivable. Hence, the same is not disclosed in the ageing schedule.
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Particulars Ast Asat
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
As at 31 March 2023
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Parti
articulars Unbilled Lessv:l;:n 1 1-2 years 2-3years More than 3 years Total
Total f)utstandmg dues of micro enterprises and small ) 6.64 _ ) } 6.64
enterprises
Total outstandmg dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 3324 15.88 0.23 1.25 0.13 50.73
and small enterprises
Total 33.24 22.52 0.23 1.25 0.13 57.37
*There are no disputed trade receivable. Hence, the same is not disclosed in the ageing schedule.
23 Other current financial liabilities
At amortised cost
Payable for purchase of Property, plant and equipment (includes INR 2.03 lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 2.59 lakhs)
. . 62.04 47.76
payable to micro and small enterprises, refer note 36)
Retention money payable (includes INR 3.08 lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 9.69 lakhs) payable to micro and small 85.08 90.86
enterprises, refer note 36) ’ ’
Payable to related parties (refer note 38) 10.33 28.89
Employee related liabilities 8.23 18.84
Total 166.58 186.35
24 Other current liabilities
Statutory dues 93.68 24.30
Total 93.68 24.30
25 Provisions
Current
Provision for gratuity (Refer note 40) 222 0.21
Provision for compensated absences 37.19 35.81
Total 39.41 36.02
26 Current tax liabilities (net)
Provision for income tax (net of advance tax) 232.66 -
232.66 -

Total
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Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
27 Revenue from operations
Revenue from contract with customers
Sale of power 2,250.36 2,324.30
Less: Rebate - (19.46)
Other operating income
Sale of voluntary emissions reductions (VERs) 141.93 154.19
Business support services 443,88 -
Total 2,836.17 2.459.03
28 Other income
Interest income on
Fixed deposits 1,237.91 158.29
Income tax refund - 2.28
Security deposit 2.03 1.28
loan to subsidiary companies 560.55 579.65
OCD investment in subsidiary companies
- interest income 1,620.72 -
- using effective interest rate method as per IND AS 109 221.20 -
Profit on redemption of mutual fund 74.91 19.21
Profit on disposal of property plant and equipment 0.08 -
Foreign exchange gain (net) 0.09 -
Other miscellaneous income 0.04 0.03
Total 3.717.53 760.74
29 Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 446.14 666.32
Contribution to provident and other funds 29.70 41.52
Gratuity expenses 11.28 13.82
Leave encashment 9.69 11.67
Staff welfare expenses 45.30 11.66
Total 542.11 744.99
30 Finance cost
Interest on loan from financial institution 885.54 921.80
Interest on bank overdraft - 3.88
Interest expenses on lease liabilities 74.10 75.73
Other borrowing cost (bank guarantee, hedging cost and other charges) 78.06 186.22
Total 1.037.70 1,187.63
31 Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation of property plant and equipment (refer note 3) 637.03 631.57
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 4) 16.03 14.96
Depreciation on right to use assets (refer note 3) 66.69 42.05
Total 719.75 688.58
32 Other expenses
Legal and professional expenses 119.37 92.85
Bid application & processing fees 136.54 4823
Insurance expense 31.06 47.89
Security expenses 62.71 41.60
Travelling and conveyance 26.81 37.61
Operational expenses 47.70 33.82
Electricity charges 56.36 26.39
Subscription and membership fee 43.64 19.96
Payment to auditors (Note 1 below) 14.70 19.76
Rates & taxes 38.07 16.12
Rent expenses 109.16 11.54
Communication expenses 9.81 8.14
VER issuance expenses 14.40 3.38
Repair and maintenance (others) 241 2.20
CSR expenditure (Note 2 below) 344 1.80
Office expenses 13.32 -
Housekeeping expenses 39.30 -
Printing and stationery 5.03 0.77
Miscellaneous expenses 2.16 0.50
Website maintenance charges =TT 3.46 0.42
Donation (," S - 0.03
Foreign exchange loss (net) s 0‘/\0 - 0.01
/ C
Total f “ -~ 779.45 413.02
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Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Note - 1
Payment to auditor comprises fee (Inclusive of GST)
Audit fee 7.08 10.34
Tax audit fee 1.77 1.82
In other capacity
Other services (group reporting & certification fee) 472 6.55
Reimbursement of expenses 1.13 1.05
Total 14.70 19.76
Note - 2
Details of CSR expenditure
a) 'Gross amount required to be spent by the company for the year 3.43 1.7
b) Amount spent in cash during the year on
i) Construction/acquisitibn of any asset - -
3.44 1.80

KX)

ii) On purposes other than (i) above

c) Details related to unspent obligations:
i) Construction/acquisition of any asset
ii) On purposes other than (i) above

Excess amount spent under section 135(5)

Amount required to .
. . Amount spent during .
Opening Balance be spent during the Closing Balance
the year
year
(0.10) 3.43 344 0.11)

Income tax expenses
(a) Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss comprises:
Current tax 621.24 -
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of previous years 0.34 0.94
Deferred tax charge/ (Credit ) relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 552.49 45.30
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 1,174.07 46.24
(b) Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
Net gain/ (loss) on revaluation of cash flow hedges - -
Net gain/ (loss) on remeasurement of defined benefit plans (1.68) (0.34)
Total (1.68) (0.34)
(c) Reconciliation of tax expenses and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate :
Accounting profit before income tax 3,474.69 185.55
Applicable statutory income tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Tax as per applicable statutory income tax rate 874.51 46.70
Adjustments for :
Expenses not allowed under income tax act / allowable on payment basis 5.87 0.46
Other adjustments 293.69 0.92)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 1,174.07 46.24

The tax rate used for the year 2023-24 and 2022-23 is the Corporate tax rate of 25.17% payable by corporate entities in India on taxable profits under the

Income Tax Act 1961.
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34. Earnings Per Share (EPS):

35

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity sharcholders by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares, if any.

The following data reflects the inputs to calculation of basics and diiuted EPS:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Net profit as per statement of profit and loss for calculation of
basic EPS and dilutive EPS 2,300.62 139.31
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating
basic/diluted EPS 1,92,14,987 1,38,07,243
Nominal value per share (%) 10.00 10.00
Basic & Diluted earnings per share (%) 11.97 1.01

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Other disclosures relating to the Company’s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:
+ Capital management (Refer note - 44)

» Financial risk management objectives and policies (Refer note -45)

* Sensitivity analyses disclosures (Refer note - 45)

A. Judgments
In the process of applying the Company accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, which have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as a lessee:

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an
option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the
lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement
in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is,
it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After
the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances
that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g.,
construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customization to the leased asset). Refer to Note 41 for
information on potential future rental payments relating to periods following the exercise date of extension and termination
options that are not included in the lease term.
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B. Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due
to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.

a) Impairment of non-financial assets

The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal
factors which could result in deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

b) Taxes:

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an assessment
of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

¢) Defined benefits plan (Gratuity)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the
future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the
complexity of the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

d) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

‘When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on
quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The
inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgment is required in establishing fair values.

Assumptions include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions
about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

e) Useful life of property, plant and equipment

The Company uses its technical expert along with historical and industry trends for detaining the economic life of an asset.
The useful life is reviewed by management periodically and revised, if appropriate. In case of revision, the unamortized
depreciable amount is charged over the remaining useful life of the assets.

f) Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate
The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing
rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over
a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset
in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company ‘would have to pay’, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available. The Company estimates the IBR as rate at which the borrowing is
availed during the year.
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The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due
to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the

assumptions when they occur.

36. The Micro and Small Enterprises have been identified by management from the available information, which has been
relied upon by the auditors. On the basis of the information and records available with the management, outstanding dues
to the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are as follows.

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid
to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year

19.95

18.92

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises

19.95

18.92

Interest due on above*

Nil

Nil

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of
the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made
to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting
vear

Nil

Nil

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the period) but without adding the interest specified
under the MSMED Act 2006.

Nil

Nil

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of
each accounting year

Nil

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in
the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above
are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the
MSMED Act 2006

Nil

Nil

Nil

* The amount of principal and interest is not due to Micro and Small Enterprises vendors as per the terms of the agreement

entered into with such vendors.
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37. List of subsidiaries at any time during the year:
The Company’s interest in below mentioned subsidiaries are accounted for using the cost method in the financial

statements in accordance with IND AS 27.

Proportion of Proportion of
Relationship | the ownership the ownership | Principle place of
S. No. Company Name with JGEPL | interest ason interest as on business
31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
1 Orange Gadag Wind Power Private Limited Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
2 Nisagra Renewable Energy Private Limited Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
3 Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
4 Juniper Green Field Private Limited Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
5 Juniper Green Three Private Limited Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
6 Juniper Green Gem Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
7 Juniper Green Beam Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
8 Juniper Green Stellar Private Limited * Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
9 Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
10 | Juniper Green Beta Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
11 Juniper Green Transmission Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
12 | Juniper Green Kite Private Limited Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
13 Juniper Green Infinite Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
14 | Juniper Green Power Five Private Limited Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
15 Juniper Green Sigma Six Private Limited Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
16 | Juniper Green India Eight Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
17 | Juniper Green Alpha Three Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
18 Juniper Green Theta Five Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
19 | Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
20 | Juniper Green Gamma Two Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
21 Juniper Green Beta Six Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
22 | Juniper Green ETA Five Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
23 Juniper Green Ray Two Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
24 | Juniper Green Beam Eight Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
25 Juniper Green Beam Six Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
26 | Juniper Green Spark Four Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
27 Juniper Green Light Ten Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
28 Juniper Green Ray One Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
29 | Juniper Green India Alpha Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
30 | Juniper Green Spark Ten Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
31 Juniper Green Light Four Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
32 | Juniper Green India Six Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
33 | Juniper Green Sigma Eight Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
34 | Juniper Nirjara Energy Private Limited */** Subsidiary 100.00% - India

* During the year,the Company has further invested in equity shares and holds 100% shares of the entity.
** During the year,the Company has acquired Juniper Nirjara Energy Private Limited w.e.f. 23 June 2023.
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38. Related Party Transactions

A) Name of related parties and related parties relationship

Relationship with the Company Names of Related Parties
Ultimate Holding Company AT Holdings Pte. Ltd.
Holding Company Juniper Renewable Holdings Pte. Ltd.

Orange Gadag Wind Power Private Limited
Nisagra Renewable Energy Private Limited
Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited
Juniper Green Field Private Limited
Juniper Green Three Private Limited
Juniper Green Gem Private Limited

| Juniper Green Beam Private Limited
Juniper Green Stellar Private Limited
Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited
Juniper Green Beta Private Limited

Juniper Green Transmission Private Limited
Juniper Green Kite Private Limited

Juniper Green Infinite Private Limited
Juniper Green Power Five Private Limited
Juniper Green Sigma Six Private Limited
Juniper Green India Eight Private Limited
Subsidiaries Juniper Green Alpha Three Private Limited
Juniper Green Theta Five Private Limited

| Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited
Juniper Green Gamma Two Private Limited
Juniper Green Beta Six Private Limited
Juniper Green ETA Five Private Limited
Juniper Green Ray Two Private Limited
Juniper Green Beam Eight Private Limited
Juniper Green Beam Six Private Limited
Juniper Green Spark Four Private Limited
Juniper Green Light Ten Private Limited
Juniper Green Ray One Private Limited
Juniper Green India Alpha Private Limited
Juniper Green Spark Ten Private Limited
Juniper Green Light Four Private Limited
Juniper Green India Six Private Limited
Juniper Green Sigma Eight Private Limited
Juniper Nirjara Energy Private Limited (w.e.f. 23 June 2023)
Arvind Tiku, Director

Hemant Tikoo, Director

Sanjay Bakliwal, Director

Naresh Mansukhani, Wholetime Director
Parag Agrawal, Wholetime Director
Devendra Singh. Director upto 29.04.2024
Ankush Malik, Director w.e.f. 30.04.2024
Prashant Pandia, Company Secretary

Key Management Personnel
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B) Statement of Material Transactions with Related Parties

Particulars

Holding Company

Subsidiaries

Key Management
Personnel

31-Mar-24 | 31-Mar-23 | 31-Mar-24 | 31-Mar-23

31-Mar-24 | 31-Mar-23

Issue of equity shares (Including share premium)

Juniper Renewable Holdings Pte. Ltd. |

75.794.39 |

Share application money pending allotment

Juniper Renewable Holdings Pte. Ltd.

| 15,000.00 |

-]

Refund of extra share application money

Juniper Renewable Holdings Pte. Ltd. I

0.02 |

Intercompany loan given

Juniper Green Field Private Limited - - 1,070.00 5.115.00 - -
Juniper Green Three Private Limited - - 129.00 649.00 - -
Nisagra Renewable Energy Private Limited - - - 935.00 - -
Juniper Green Gem Private Limited - - 4.00 139.00 - -
Juniper Green Beam Private Limited - - 7.925.00 692.00 - -
Juniper Green Stellar Private Limited - - 3.982.40 419.65 - -
Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited - - 7,376.80 279.80 - -
Juniper Green Beta Private Limited - - 2.922.40 483.90 - -
Juniper Green Kite Private Limited - - 2.199.00 - - -
Juniper Green Transmission Private Limited - - 173.00 124.00 - -
Juniper Green Infinite Private Limited - - - 8.50 - -
Juniper Green Power Five Private Limited - - 432.00 114.00 - -
Juniper Green India Eight Private Limited - - - 1.50 - -
Juniper Green Alpha Three Private Limited - - - 2.50 - -
Juniper Green Theta Five Private Limited - - 3.00 - -
Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited - - | 17.250.00 11.50 - -
Juniper Green Gamma Two Private Limited - - 35.00 54.50 - -
Juniper Green Beta Six Private Limited - - 1.00 5.50 - -
Juniper Green Eta Five Private Limited - - 2.00 1.50 - -
Juniper Green Ray Two Private Limited - - 4,435.00 794.00 - -
Juniper Green Beam Eight Private Limited - B = 5.00 1.50 - -
Juniper Green Beam Six Private Limited - - - 1.50 - -
Juniper Green Spark Four Private Limited - - 5.00 - -
Juniper Green Light Ten Private Limited - - - 3.00 - -
Juniper Green Ray One Private Limited - - 133.00 165.00 - -
Juniper Green India Alpha Private Limited - - - 1.50 - -
Juniper Green Spark Ten Private Limited - - - 29.00 - - -
Juniper Green Light Four Private Limited - - - 0.50 - -
Juniper Green India Six Private Limited - - 1,435.00 0.50 - -
_Juniper Green Sigma Eight Private Limited - - - 0.50 - -
Juniper Nirjara Energy Private Limited - - 812.00 - - -
Intercompany loan received back
Juniper Green Field Private Limited - - 930.00 4.050.00 - -
Juniper Green Three Private Limited B - - 300.00 - -
Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited - - 3.426.00 - - -
Juniper Green Light Ten Private Limited - - 3.00 - - | -
Juniper Green Beam Private Limited - - 5,447.00 - - -
Nisagra Renewable Energy Private Limited - - - 1,919.20 - -
Juniper Green Gem Private Limited - - 43.00 100.00 - -
Juniper Green Beta Private Limited - - 2,815.30 26.00 - -
Juniper Green Kite Private Limited - - 99.00 - - -
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Particulars Holding Company Subsidiaries Keyl,f:‘s';ﬁi‘l“ a
31-Mar-24 | 31-Mar-23 | 31-Mar-24 | 31-Mar-23 | 31-Mar-24 | 31-Mar-23
Juniper Green Ray Two Private Limited - - 1,999.00 - - -
Juniper Green Ray One Private Limited - - 295.00 - - -
Juniper Green Spark Four Private Limited - - 5.00 - - -
Juniper Green Theta Five Private Limited - - 3.00 - - -
Juniper Green India Eight Private Limited - - 1.50 - - -
Juniper Green Gamma Two Private Limited - - 89.50 - - -
Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited - - | 14.736.50 - - -
Juniper Green Eta Five Private Limited - - 3.50 - - -
Juniper Green Stellar Private Limited - - 2.747.00 - - -
Juniper Green Spark Ten Private Limited - - 4.00 25.00 - -
Juniper Green Beam Eight Private Limited - - 6.50 - - -
Juniper Green Light Four Private Limited - - 0.50 - - -
Juniper Green Beta Six Private Limited - - 6.50 - - -
Juniper Green Sigma Eight Private Limited - - 0.50 - - -
Juniper Green India Six Private Limited - - 1.435.50 - - -
Juniper Green Beam Six Private Limited - - 1.50 - - -
Juniper Green India Alpha Private Limited - - 1.50 - - -
Juniper Green Infinite Private Limited - - 8.50 - - -
Juniper Green Transmission Private Limited - - 297.00 - - -
Juniper Green Power Five Private Limited - - 199.00 - - -
Juniper Green Alpha Three Private Limited - - 2.50 - - -
Juniper Nirjara Energy Private Limited - - 612.00 - - -
Investment in equity share capital
Juniper Green Gem Private Limited - - 43.00 - - -
Juniper Green Field Private Limited** - - - 800.00 - -
Juniper Nirjara Energy Private Limited - - 1.215.12 - - -
Juniper Green Three Private Limited* - - : - 1.008.00 - -
Juniper Green Beam Private Limited - - 7.254.00 - - -
Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited - - 7.005.00 10.00 - -
Juniper Green Stellar Private Limited - - 1.582.00 25.00 - -
Juniper Green Beta Private Limited - - 1.489.00 - - -
Juiper Green Transmission Private Limited - - 147.00 25.00 - -
Juniper Green Infinite Private Limited - - 8.50 - - -
Juniper Green Power Five Private Limited - - - 1.00 - -
Juniper Green Sigma Six Private Limited - - - 1.00 - -
Juniper Green India Eight Private Limited - - 1.50 1.00 - -
Juniper Green Alpha Three Private Limited - - 2.50 1.00 - -
Juniper Green Theta Five Private Limited - - 3.00 1.00 - -
Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited - - 2.999.00 1.00 - -
Juniper Green Gamma Two Private Limited - - 19.50 1.00 - -
Juniper Green Beta Six Private Limited - - 6.50 1.00 - -
Juniper Green ETA Five Private Limited - - 3.50 1.00 - -
Juniper Green Ray Two Private Limited - - 989.00 1.00 - -
Juniper Green Beam Eight Private Limited - - 14.00 1.00 - -
Juniper Green Beam Six Private Limited - - 1.50 1.00 - -
Juniper Green Spark Four Private Limited - - 5.00 1.00 - -
Juniper Green Light Ten Private Limited - - 3.00 1.00 - -
Juniper Green Ray One Private Limited - - 109.00 1.00 - -
Juniper Green India Alpha Private Limited - - 1.50 1.00 - -
Juniper Green Spark Ten Private Limited - - 4.00 1.00 - -
Juniper Green Light Four Private Limited - - 0.50 1.00 - -
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Key Management

Particulars Holding Company Subsidiaries Personnel
31-Mar-24 | 31-Mar-23 | 31-Mar-24 | 31-Mar-23 | 31-Mar-24 | 31-Mar-23
Juniper Green India Six Private Limited - - 949.00 1.00 - -
Juniper Green Sigma Eight Private Limited - - 0.50 1.00 - -
Subscription to Optionally Convertible Debentures (‘OCDs’)
Juniper Green Field Private Limited** - - - 767.00 - -
Juniper Green Three Private Limited* - - - 968.00 - -
Juniper Green Beam Private Limited - - 698.00 - - -
Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited” - - 5.000.00 - - -
Reimbursement of expenses
Juniper Green Field Private Limited - - - 186.48 - -
Juniper Green Beta Private Limited - - (5.10) (0.73) - -
Juniper Green Stellar Private Limited - - - (1.24) - -
Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited - - (0.79) - - -
Juniper Green Transmission Private Limited - - - (0.78) - -
Juniper Green Beam Private Limited - - - (1.05) - -
Juniper Green Ray Two Private Limited - - - (0.02) - -
Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited - - (0.62) - - -
Business support services provided
Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited - - 103.59 - - -
Juniper Green Rav Two Private Limited - - 7.18 - - -
Juniper Green Beta Private Limited - - 102.51 - - -
Juniper Green Beam Eight Private Limited - - 6.95 - - -
Juniper Green Beam Private Limited - - 75.78 - - -
Juniper Green Kite Private Limited - - 17.25 - - -
Juniper Green Three Private Limited - - 10.85 - - -
Nisagra Renewable Energy Private Limited - - 6.58 - - -
Juniper Green Transmission Private Limited - - 0.21 - - -
Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited - - 68.04 - - -
Juniper Green Field Private Limited - - 7.77 - - -
Juniper Green Stellar Private Limited - - 68.92 - - -
Juniper Green Light Four Private Limited - - 27.59 - - -
Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited - - | 7.56 - - -
Juniper Green Light Ten Private Limited - - | 12.98 - - -
Interest income on Loan
Nisagra Renewable Energy Private Limited - - | - 89.75 - -
Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited - - | 468.99 468.99 - -
Juniper Green Field Private Limited - - 55.31 20.26 - -
Juniper Green Three Private Limited - - 36.25 0.65 - -
Interest income on OCDs
Juniper Green Field Private Limited - - 548.53 - - | -
Juniper Green Three Private Limited - - 1,072.19 - - -
Salary and other benefits #
Naresh Mansukhani - - | - - 205.27 201.25
Parag Agrawal - - - - 138.00 135.70
Prashant Pandia - - - - 32.75 | 26.95

All related party transactions are at arm’s length and normal course of business.
# Post-employment benefits and other long term employee benefits are actuarially determined on overall basis and hence not

separately provided.

*Unsecured loan as on March 31, 2022 of INR 1,976.00 lakhs to Juniper Green Three Private Limited, converted into equity
shares and Optionally Convertible Debentures (‘'OCD’) amounting to INR 1,008.00 lakhs and INR 968.00 lakhs respectively

on May 11, 2022,
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**During the last financial yearqunsecured loan amounting to INR 1,567.00 lakhs to Juniper Green Field Private Limited,
converted into equity shares and‘Optionally Convertible Debentures ('OCD") amounting to INR 800.00 lakhs and INR 767.00

lakhs respectively.
” During the yearunsecured loan amounting to INR 5,000.00 lakhs to Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited, converted

into Optionally Convertible Debentures (OCD").

C) Balances Outstanding as at year end

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Loan receivable

Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited 5.790.00 5.790.00
Juniper Green Three Private Limited 478.00 349.00
Juniper Green Field Private Limited 1.205.00 1,065.00
Juniper Green Gem Private Limited - 39.00
Juniper Green Beam Private Limited 3,170.00 692.00
Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited 4,230.60 279.80
Juniper Green Stellar Private Limited 1,655.05 419.65
Juniper Green Beta Private Limited 565.00 457.90
Juniper Green Kite Private Limited 2,100.00 -
Juniper Green Transmission Private Limited - 124.00
Juniper Green Infinite Private Limited - 8.50
Juniper Green Power Five Private Limited 347.00 114.00
Juniper Green India Eight Private Limited - 1.50
Juniper Green Alpha Three Private Limited - 2.50
Juniper Green Theta Five Private Limited - 3.00
Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited 2.525.00 11.50
Juniper Green Gamma Two Private Limited - 54.50
Juniper Green Beta Six Private Limited - 5.50
Juniper Green ETA Five Private Limited - 1.50
Juniper Green Ray Two Private Limited 3.230.00 794.00
Juniper Green Beam Eight Private Limited - 1.50
Juniper Green Beam Six Private Limited - 1.50
Juniper Green Spark Four Private Limited - 5.00
Juniper Green Light Ten Private Limited - 3.00
Juniper Green Ray One Private Limited 3.00 165.00
Juniper Green India Alpha Private Limited - 1.50
Juniper Green Spark Ten Private Limited - 4.00
Juniper Green Light Four Private Limited - 0.50
Juniper Green India Six Private Limited - 0.50
Juniper Green Sigma Eight Private Limited - 0.50
Juniper Nirjara Energy Private Limited 200.00 -
Subscription to OCDs

Juniper Green Field Private Limited 10,314.00 10,314.00
Juniper Green Three Private Limited 12,614.00 12.614.00
Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited 5,000.00 -
Juniper Green Beam Private Limited 698.00 -
Interest receivable on loan

Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited 422.09 104.08
Juniper Green Field Private Limited 68.02 18.23
Juniper Green Three Private Limited 33.21 0.58
Trade receivable - Business support services

Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited 94,82 -
Juniper Green Ray Two Private Limited 6.57 -
Juniper Green Beta Private Limited 93.83 -
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Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Juniper Green Beam Eight Private Limited 6.36 -
Juniper Green Beam Private Limited 69.36 -
Juniper Green Kite Private Limited 15.79 -
Juniper Green Three Private Limited 9.93 -
Nisagra Renewable Energy Private Limited 6.02 -
Juniper Green Transmission Private Limited 0.19 -
Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited 62.28 -
Juniper Green Field Private Limited 7.11 -
Juniper Green Stellar Private Limited 63.08 -
Juniper Green Light Four Private Limited 25.26 -
Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited 6.92 -
Juniper Green Light Ten Private Limited 11.88 -
Interest receivable on OCDs
Juniper Green Field Private Limited 493.68 -
Juniper Green Three Private Limited 964.97 -
Reimbursement of expenses receivable
Juniper Green Field Private Limited 186.49 187.28
Reimbursement of expenses payable
Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited 0.62 -
Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited 0.79 -
Juniper Green Field Private Limited - 0.80
Juniper Green Stellar Private Limited 1.24 1.24
Juniper Green Transmission Private Limited 0.78 0.78
Juniper Green Beam Private Limited 1.05 1.05
Juniper Green Beta Private Limited 5.83 0.73
Juniper Green Ray Two Private Limited 0.02 0.02
Juniper Green Three Private Limited - 24.28

D) The Company has given Corporate Guarantee against borrowing/bank guarantee facility taken by its subsidiaries, namely
Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited, Juniper Green Three Private Limited, Juniper Green Field Private Limited, Juniper
Green Gamma One Private Limited, Juniper Green Beam Private Limited and Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited
amounting to INR 38,985.00 lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 38,985.00 lakhs), INR 77,232.00 lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR
77,232.00 lakhs), INR 63,154.00 lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 63,154.00 lakhs), INR 31,575.00 lakhs (March 31, 2023:
INR nil lakhs) INR 41,869.00 lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR nil lakhs) and INR 50,262.00 lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR nil

lakhs).

E) Juniper Renewable Holdings Pte. Ltd. has given Corporate Guarantee for borrowing taken by the Company amounting
to INR 12,100.00 lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 12,100.00 lakhs).

39. Commitments and Contingency

(a) Operating Lease
Refer note 41 for lease related commitments

(b) Capital commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed (net off advances) on capital account and not provided is INR
Nil lakhs as on March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: INR Nil Lakhs).
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(c) Contingent Liabilities not provided for as at March 31, 2024 are as follows: —

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Performance bank guarantee issued by bank* 25.250.00 -
DSRA Bank Guarantee issued by bank 767.00 767.00
Bid Bond Bank Guarantee issued by bank 30,058.20 1,715.00
Total 56,075.20 2.482.00

*Issued by bank (including bank guarantee on behalf of Subsidiary companies). For corporate guarantee given for
borrowings taken by its subsidiary company, refer note -38.

40. Employee Benefit

(a) Defined contribution plan
The Company makes contribution towards provident fund to a defined contribution retirement benefit plan for
qualifying employees. The Company's contribution to the Employee Provident Fund is deposited with the Regional
Provident Fund Commissioner.

During the year Company has recognized the following amounts charged to profit and loss:
Particulars March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023
Employers’ contribution to Employee’s provident and other Fund 29.70 41.52

(b) Defined benefit plan
Gratuity and other post-employment benefits
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service
gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. These benefits
are unfunded and Company provides for liability in its books of accounts based on the actuarial valuations.

Risks associated with Gratuity plan provisions
The Company is exposed to number of tisks in the defined benefit plans. Most significant risks pertaining to defined
benefit plans and management’s estimation of the impact of these risks are as follows:

Salary growth risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan

participants. An increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan liability.
Interest rate risk
A decrease in interest rate in future years will increase the plan liability.

Life expectancy risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of mortality of
plan participants both during and at the end of the employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan
participants will increase the plan liability.

Withdrawals Risk
Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent

valuations can impact the plan liability.

The following tables summaries the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement profit and loss
account and the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet.
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Employee benefit expenses recognised in statement of profits and Loss (recognised in employee cost)

Particular Gratuify
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current service cost - ) 8.42 11.61
Interest cost on benefit liability 2.86 2.21
Benefit expense recognized in statement of profit and loss 11.28 13.82
Employee benefit expenses recognized in Other Comprehensive Income
Particular Gratufty
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Actuarial (income)/loss recognized in the year (6.68) (1.36)
Components. of -deﬁned benefit costs recognised in other (6.68) (1.36)
comprehensive income
Balance Sheet:
. Gratuity
Earticular March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Present value of defined benefit obligation 41.09 39.64
Total 41.09 39.64
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Particular Gratuity
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Present value of obligation as at the beginning 39.65 29.12
Current service cost 8.42 11.61
Interest cost 2.86 2.21
Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss (6.68) (1.36)
Transfer (3.16) (1.93)
Present Value of Obligation as at the end 41.09 39.65
Current Liability (Short term) 2.22 0.21
Non-Current Liability (Long term) 38.87 39.44

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity benefit obligation for the Company’s plans are shown

below:
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Discount rate 7.22% 7.53%
Attrition rate (per annum) 5.00% 5.00%
Salary Escalation Rate 10.00% 10.00%

The estimate of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority,
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuarial appraisers. Discount
factors are determined close to each year-end by reference to government bonds of relevant economic markets and
that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Other assumptions are based on
management’s historical experience.

As the Company does not have any plan assets, the movement of present value of defined benefit obligation and fair
value of plan assets has not been presented.
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A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions are as follows:

Particulars ] 31 March, 2024

| 31 March, 2023

a) Impact of the change in discount rate

L Present value of obligation at the end of the year
a) Impact due to increase of 1% (2.76) (2.94)
b) Impact due to decrease of 1% 3.24 343
b) Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the vear
a) Impact due to increase of 1% 1.63 1.82
b) Impact due to decrease of 1% (1.42) (1.58)
¢) Impact of the change in attrition rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year
a) Impact due to increase of 1% 0.06 (0.51)
b) Impact due to decrease of 1% (0.05) 0.53

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit
obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawal are not material and hence impact of change not calculated.

Weightage average duration of gratuity plan is 15.99 (March 31, 2023: 18.12).

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Particular March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 2.22 0.22
Between 2 and 5 years 20.86 15.11
Between 6 and 10 years 341 231
Beyond 10 years 14.60 22.01

41. Leases:

The Company has lease contracts for leasehold properties used in its operations. These lease contracts generally have lease

terms of 28 years.

The Company has also certain leases with lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low value assets. The Company

applies the 'short term lease’ and 'leases of low value assets' recognition exemptions for these leases.

a) Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:

Particulars Leasehold Land Building Total

Balance as at April 1, 2022 768.58 - 768.58
Adjustment during the year 64.17 - 64.17
Depreciation for the year (42.05) - (42.05)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 790.70 - 790.70
Additions during the vear 377.32 67.19 444.51
Depreciation for the year - (37.35) (29.34) (66.69)
Balanee as at March 31, 2024 1,130.67 37.85 1,168.52
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b) Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities recognised and the movements during the year:

Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Balance as at the beginning of the vear 736.21 627.58
Accretion of interests 74.10 75.73
Payments (73.21) (31.27)
Addition during the year 444.51 64.17
Balance as at the end of the year 1,181.61 _736.21
Current 39.31 -
Non-current | 1,142.30 736.21

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities are disclosed in Note 45.
The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 8.30% - 10.85% with maturity till year 2048.

As part of the identification and measurement of assets and liabilities for the commissioned 30 MW solar project in
Maharashtra, the Company has recognised a provision amounting to INR 364.18 lakhs (Previous year: INR 336.20 lakhs)
for decommissioning obligations associated with projects constructed on leased land. In determining the fair value of the
provision, assumptions and estimates are made in relation to discount rates, inflation, the expected cost to dismantle and
remove the plant from the site and the expected timing of those costs. The Company estimates that the costs would be
realised upon the expiration of PPA’s term. The provision is based upon current cost estimates and has been determined
on a discounted basis by using incremental rate of long borrowing and rate of inflation basis on industry practice. The
timing and amount of future expenditures are reviewed annually, together with rate of inflation for escalation of current
cost estimates and the interest rate used in discounting the cash flows.

c) The following are the amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss:

Particulars | March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 66.69 42.05
Interest expense on lease liabilities 74.10 75.73
Expenses related to short term leases | 114.90 18.39

‘ 255.69 136.17

Total amount recognised in the profit or loss for the year

Total Company's total cash outflow for leases (including for short term and leases of low value assets) for the year ended
March 31, 2024 is INR 188.11 Lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 49.66 Lakhs).

Segment reporting:

The Company is engaged in business of sale of electricity. Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) reviews the financial
information of the Company as a whole for decision-making and accordingly the company has a single reportable segment.
The sale of power has been billed to a single customer. Further, the operations of the company are limited within one
geographical segment. Hence, no further disclosure is required to be made.

In an earlier year, the Company had issued 2,000 Class B equity shares at fair value, in accordance with the terms of the
agreement dated 11 August 2020 (‘Agreement'), executed between the Company and others. The Company taking into
consideration the agreed terms and conditions between the parties, had accounted such transaction as “Equity Settled share-
based payment transaction” at the then assessed Nil fair value on the date of grant, in accordance with IND AS 102 “Share

based payment”.

Subsequent to the year end, pursuant to resolution passed by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 26 April 2024,
and in accordance with the terms of amendment to the Agreement, the Company has agreed to buy back 2,000 Class B
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shares for a total consideration of INR 3,001.03 lakhs, in accordance with the terms of the Agreement. The management
has assessed that the aforesaid amendment would require the Company to account for the same as Cash settled Transaction
with effect from the date of the aforesaid amended agreement, with no consequential impact as at the balance- sheet date
(i.e. 31 March 2024), considering the same as a non-adjusting subsequent event under IND AS 10.

Capital management

For the purpose of the capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity
reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company capital management is to
maximize the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing
ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, loans and borrowings,
trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents.

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Borrowings 9,852.76 10,551.94
Add: Trade payables 114.87 57.37
Add: Other current financial liabilities 166.58 186.35
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 592.60 501.21
Net debts (A) 9,541.61 10,294.45
Shareholders’ Funds (B) 1,70,743.31 77.643.30
Capital and net debt (C=A+B) 1,80,284.92 87,937.75
Gearing ratio (%) (D=A/C) 5.29% 11.71%

In order the achieve this overall objective, the capital management of the Company, amongst other things, aims to ensure
that they meet financials convents attached to interest -bearing loans and borrowings that define the capital structure

requirements.
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Fair value and Fair Value hierarchy

a. Fair value
The following table shows the comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of Company’s financial assets,
other than those with carrying amount that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

Particulars Carrying Value Carrying Value Fair value Fair value
March 31, 2024 March 21, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

FINANCIAL ASSETS | B

I Financial assets measured at amortised cost nE

Trade receivables 921.15 432.68 921.15 432.68

Cash & cash equivalent 592.60 501.21 592.60 501.21

Other Bank Balances 46,458.67 863.96 46,458.67 863.96 |

Other financial assets ] 2,574.93 327.87 2,574.93 327.87

Loans to related parties 24,749.54 10,395.85 24,749.54 10,395.85

Security deposit 49.15 38.87 49.15 38.87

Financial assets measured at fair value through

Profit and loss

Investment in Mutual fund - Quoted - - - -

FINANCIAL LIBILITES

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Borrowings 9,852.76 10,551.94 9,852.76 10,551.94

Lease Liabilities 1,181.61 736.21 1,181.61 736.21

Trade Payable 114.87 57.37 114.87 5737

Other current financial liabilities 166.58 186.35 166.58 186.35

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, other current financial
assets, trade payables other current financial liabilities except Forward Contract Payable, paid approximate their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments

The fair value of financials assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instruments could be exchange in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following method and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair value:

Quoted investment in mutual fund - The fair values of the mutual funds are derived from quoted market prices in active

markets.
Other-The fair value of remaining financial instruments is determined by using discounted cash flow model.

b. Fair Value hierarchy

The judgement and estimates made in determining the fair value of the financial instruments that are (&) recognized at fair
value and (b) measured at amortized cost and for which fair value are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial
instruments into the three levels prescribed under accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows under the

table.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statement are categorized with in the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole:
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Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) market price in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 Valuation technique for which the lowest level input that significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.
Level 3 Valuation technique for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in

unobservable.

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liability as on March 31, 2024

Date of pQril:‘::;ei(:l Significant Significant
Particulars . Total . observable uncbservable
Valuation active . .
inputs inputs

markets

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial assets
Assets for which fair values are
disclosed
Security deposit March 31, 2024 49.15 49.15 -
Loans (Non-current assets) March 31, 2024 | 24,749.54 24,749.54 -
Financial liabilities
Liabilities for which fair values
are disclosed
Borrowings March 31, 2024 9,852.76 9,852.76 -

Date of pQr;lc(::i(:l Significant Significant
Particulars . Total . observable unobservable
Valuation active . .
inputs inputs

markets

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial assets
Assets for which fair values are
disclosed
Security deposit March 31, 2023 38.83 - 38.87 -
Loans (Non-current assets) March 31,2023 | 10,395.85 - 10,395.85 -
Financial liabilities
Liabilities for which fair values
are disclosed

' Borrowings March 31, 2023 | 10,551.94 - 10,551.94 -

45. Financial risk management objective and policies

The Company principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose
of these financial liabilities is to support the Company operations. The Company principal financial assets comprise
investments, cash and bank balance, trade and other receivables that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the
management of these risks. The Company’s senior management is supported by a financial risk committee that advises on
financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The financial risk committee
provides assurance to the Company’s senior management that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by
appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the
Company’s policies and risk objectives. It is the Company’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes
may be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are
summarized below.
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(i) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from their operating activities (primarily trade
receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and other financial instruments.

The Company assesses and manages credit risk of financial assets based on following categories arrived on the basis of
assumptions, inputs and factors specific to the class of financial assets. Low credit risk - Cash and cash equivalents, other
bank balances, investments, loans, trade receivables and other financial assets. Moderate credit risk / High credit risk -
Loans and other financial assets. None of the Company’s cash equivalents, including time deposits with banks, are past
due or impaired.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances is limited as the Company generally invests in deposits
with financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by credit rating agencies. Investments primarily include
investment in liquid mutual fund units. The loans primarily represent security deposits given for office premises. Such
deposit will be returned to the Company on return of premises as per the contract. The credit risk associated with such
security deposits is relatively low. Loan to related parties given for business purpose and moderate risk associated.

The maximum exposure to credit risks is represented by the total carrying amount of these financial assets in the Balance
Sheet:

Particulars March 31. 2024 March 31, 2023
- Loans to related parties _24.749.54 10,395.85 |
- Trade receivables 921.15 432.68

| - Other bank balances 46,458.67 863.96

| - Other financial assets 2.624.08 366.74

The Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The Company uses a provision matrix

to compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables.

@ii) Liquidity risk

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking facilities, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities for the Company.
The Company has established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for it’s short-term, medium term and

long-term funding requirement.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The contractual cash
flow amounts are gross and undiscounted, and includes interest accrued but not due on borrowings.

Contractual cash flows |
. 1 1
March 31, 2024 Carrying On Less than l Between More than -
amount one and Total
Demand one year five years
five years |
Borrowings* 9.852.76 - 1,439.16 | 5,374.81 9.923.99 | 16,737.96
Lease Liability 1.181.61 - 103.32 270.59 3.659.01 4,032.92
Trade payables 114.87 - 114.87 - - 114.87
Other current financial liabilities 166.58 - 166.58 - - 166.58
Total 11,315.82 -1 1,823.93 | 564540 13,583.00 | 21,052.33 |

* Includes interest payable amount.
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Contractual cash flows
March 31, 2023 Carrying On Demand Less than Between More Total
amount one year one and | than five
five years years
Borrowings* 10,551.94 - 1,419.56 5,361.99 | 11,034.20 | 17.815.75
Lease Liability 736.21 - 33.16 160.70 | 2916.54 | 3,110.40
Trade payables 57.37 - 57.37 - - 57.37
pher current financial 186.35 : 186.35 - | 18635
iabilities
Total 11,531.87 - 1,696.44 5,522.69 | 13,950.74 | 21.169.87

* Includes interest payable amount.

(iii) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate risk and currency risk. Financial instruments affected
by market risk include borrowings and bank deposits.

(a) Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign Currency risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. There is no foreign currency exposure as at 31st March, 2023. Hence, the Company's Profit for
the period would have no impact.

(b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Company’s long-term obligation with floating interest rate

Exposure to interest rate risk

The Company’s interest rate risk arises majorly from the bank overdraft and borrowings carrying floating / variable rate
of interest. This obligation exposes the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. The exposure of the Company’s borrowing
to interest rate changes as reported to the management at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Variable-rate instruments March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Borrowings — from financial institution 9.852.76 10,551.94
Total 9.852.76 10,551.94

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans
and borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the
impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Statement of Profit and Loss
Increase by 0.50 % | Decrease by 0.50 %

Increase/ (decrease) in interest on Borrowings and Loan repavable on demand
For the year ended 31 March 2024
For the vear ended 31 March 2023

Particulars

52.23
54.95

(52.23) |
(54.95)
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Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,2024
(All amounts are stated in 7 lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(¢) Price Risk

The Company’s exposure to price risk arises from investments held and classified as FVTPL. To manage the price risk
arising from investments in mutual funds, the Company diversifies its portfolio of assets. There are no price risk exposure
on the Company on the reporting dates.

46. Ratio analysis

Ratio Numerator Denominator 31-Mar-24 | 31-Mar-23 | % Change | Reasonfor
variance
Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 50.40 7.53 569.96% ig:;f:sc EECHITEE
Increase in
Debt- Equity Ratio | 102 Debt (Current and | @ o e Bauity 0.06 0.14 (57.54%) | Shareholder's
Non-current Borrowings) Equity
Earnings for debt service = | Debt service = Total
Debt Service Net profit after tax + | Finance cost (excluding
Coverage ratio Deferred tax + Finance cost | non-cash expenses) + 2.76 1.26 119.04% Increase in profits
g + Depreciation and | Due Instalments as per
Amortisation Debt arrangements
Retunon - EQUity | Net profits after taxes gg’;‘;ge Shareholder’s | gs0y 0.18% 925.72% | Increase in profits
i:t\;gntory Tumover Cost of goods sold Average Inventory Not Applicable
Trade Receivable | Total Revenue from | Average Trade Increase in Trade
. . 4.19 5.73 (26.93%)
Turnover Ratio Contract with customers Receivable ’ ’ ' Receivable
L P_ayable Total other expenses Average Trade Payables 9.05 7.99 13.29%
Turnover Ratio
. Working  capital = . .
Net Capltal Total Revenue from Current assets — Current 0.05 0.44 (89.68%) Increase in current
Turnover Ratio Contract with customers . assets
liabilitics
Net Profit ratio Net Profit after taxes g;:zlmoﬁ:venue from 81.12% 5.67% 1331.84% | Increase in profits
. . Capital Employed =
. Eamings before interest, p
Rewrn on Capital finance cost and taxes Tangible Net Worth + 2.49% 1.56% 60.24% Increase in profits
Employed ; Debt + Deferred tax
(EBIT") et
liability
Finance Income (interest | Investment (average
Return on | income from fixed deposits | investment fixed o o o
Investment and income from mutual | deposits and mutual 3:35% 4.94% 152l
fund) fund)

47. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has prescribed a new requirement for companies under the proviso to Rule 3(1)
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 inserted by the Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules 2021 requiring
companies, which uses accounting software for maintaining its books of account, shall use only such accounting software
which has a feature of recording audit trail of each and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in the
books of account along with the date when such changes were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled.

The Company uses an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the accounting
software. However, the audit trail (edit log) feature is not enabled at database level to log any direct data changes. Further,
there is no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with where such feature is enabled.
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(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

48. During the current year, the Company has acquired 100 per cent equity shares of Juniper Nirjara Energy Private Limited
(formerly Sprng Nirjara Energy Private Limited), for purchase consideration of INR 430.12 lakhs and subsequently,
subscribed to fresh issue of equity shares aggregating to INR 785.00 lakhs.

49. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / reclassified, wherever necessary to confirm to current year’s classification.
Such reclassification did not have any material impact on the current year standalone financial statements.

50. Other statutory information

(i)

(iii)
(iv)

W)

(vi)

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any Benami property.

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory
period.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

)] directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party)
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

6] directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(ii) (ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company is in compliance with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 (as amended).

(vii) The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered

or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey
or any other relevant provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961.

(viii) The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.
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Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(ix) The Company has not been sanctioned a working capital limit by banks or financial institutions. Hence, the Company
is not required to file any quarterly return or statement with such banks or financial institutions.

As per our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co. LLPChartered For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Accountants Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

ICAI Firm Registration No. 001076N/N500013
iad "‘%,/E}—:“

Deepak Mittal Naresh Mansukhani Parag Agrawal
Partner Director Director (p/
Membership No.: 503843 DIN 06990480 DIN 02463717

Place: Gurugram
Date: September 26, 2024

Place: Gurugram
Date: September 26, 2024

Prashant Pandia
Company Secretary
M. No. - F12077
Place: Gurugram

Date: September 26, 2024

Place: Gurugram
Date: September 26, 2024
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Juniper Green Energy Private
Limited {‘the Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
together referred to as ‘the Group'), as listed in Annexure A, which comprise the Consolidated Balance
Sheet as at 31 March 2024, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a material accounting policy information and other explanatory information

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements and on
the other financial information of the subsidiaries, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give
the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act') in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') specified under section
133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, as at
31 March 2024, and their consolidated profit (including other comprehensive income), consolidated
cash flows and the consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10}
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICA?) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained together with the audit evidence obtained
by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in paragraph 11 of the Other Matters section
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report thereon
The Holding Company’'s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other

information comprises the information included in the Directors’ report, but does-not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in

this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Holding Company's
Board of Directors. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated
in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated
financial performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and
consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in
the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements
by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unkess the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors and those charged with governance are also responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the companies included in the Group.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to infiuence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10} of the
Act we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

s identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and

Chartered Accountants
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obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control;

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3){i) of the Act we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls;

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
astimates and related disclosures made by management;

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going congern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern;

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group, to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of
financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements, of which
we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consoclidated financial
statements, which have been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

10. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

11.

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of 30 subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflects total
assets of Rs. 154,757.76 lakhs as at 31 March 2024, total revenues of Rs. 138.76 lakhs, and cash
inflow {net) amounting to Rs. 779.57 lakhs for the year then ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors
whose report has been furnished to us by the management and our cpinion on the consolidated
financial statements in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this
subsidiary, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates to
the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the report of other auditors.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other legal and
regulatory requirements below, are not modified in respect of abave matters with respect to our reliance
on the work done by and the reports of the other auditors.

Charteretd Accountants
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The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023 were audited by
the predecessor auditor, S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, who have expressed an unmodified opinion on those
consolidated financial statements vide their audit report dated 22 September 2023,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors referred to in paragraph
11 on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries, we report that the provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act since none of such
companies is a public company as defined under section 2(71) of the Act as of 31 March 2024,
Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) is not applicable.

As required by clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’)
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act based on the
consideration of the Order reports issued by us and by the respective other auditors as mentioned in
paragraph 11 above, of companies included in the consolidated financial statements and covered under
the Act, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks reported in the respective Order
reports of such companies.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of
the other auditors on separate financial statements and other financial information of the subsidiaries
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, we report, to the
extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those hooks and the reports of the other auditors, except for the matters stated in paragraph
15(h)(vi} below on reporting under Rute 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
{as amendedy},

¢) The consolidated financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the
statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies covered under the Act, none of the directors of the
Group companies, are disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed as a director in
terms of section 164(2) of the Act. :

fy The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
with respect to the consolidated financial statements are as stated in paragraph 15(b) above on
reporting under section 143{3)(b) of the Act and paragraph 15(h)(vi) below on reporting under
Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended);

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies covered under the Act, and the operating
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effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in ‘Annexure B’ wherein we have
expressed an unmodified opinion; and

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration
of the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and other financial information
of the subsidiaries incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the

Act:

i.  There were no pending litigations as at 31 March 2024 which would impact the consolidated
financial position of the Group;

i. The Holding Company and its subsidiaries did not have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March
2024;

ii.  Provision has been made in these consolidated financial statements, as required under the
applicable law or Ind AS, for material foreseeable losses, on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts, as detailed in note 46 to the consolidated financial statements; and

iv. (a) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies
incorporated in india whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have
represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries respectively that, to the best of
their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note 50(iv} to the consolidated financial
statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or its
subsidiary companies or in any person(s} or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the
intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shalt, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company, or any such
subsidiary companies {‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

{b) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies,
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have
represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries respectively that, to the best of
their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note 50{v) to the accompanying consolidated
financial statements, no funds have been received by the Holding Company or its subsidiary
companies from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {‘'the Funding Parties’),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company,
or any such subsidiary companies shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(‘Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the
subsidiaries, as considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has
come to our or other auditors’ notice that has caused us or the other auditors to believe that
the management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material
misstatement.

v.  The Holding Company and its subsidiaries have not declared or paid any dividend during the
year ended 31 March 2024,
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vi  Based on our examination which included test checks, the Group, in respect of financial year
commencing on 1 April 2023, has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of
account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except
that, the audit trail feature was not enabled at database level for accounting software to log
any direct data changes, as described in note 49 to the consglidated financial statements.
Further, during the course of audit, we or other auditors did not come across any instance of
audit trail feature being tampered with in respect of the accounting software where such

feature is enabled.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Deepak Mittal

Partner

Membership No.: 503843
UDIN: 24503843BKFAS09426

Place: Gurugram
Date: 26 September 2024
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Annexure A to Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Juniper Green
Energy Private Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2024

List of subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements -

Nisagra Renewable Energy Private Limited
Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited
Juniper Green Three Private Limited
Juniper Green Field Private Limited
Juniper Green Gem Private Limited
Juniper Green Beam Private Limited
Juniper Green Stellar Private Limited
Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited
Juniper Green Beta Private Limited

10. Juniper Green Transmission Private Limited
11. Juniper Green Kite Private Limited

12. Juniper Green Infinite Private Limited

13. Juniper Green Power Five Private Limited
14. Juniper Green Sigma Six Private Limited
15. Juniper Green India Eight Private Limited
16. Juniper Green Alpha Three Private Limited
17. Juniper Green Theta Five Private Limited
18. Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited
19. Juniper Green Gamma Two Private Limited
20. Juniper Green Beta Six Private Limited

21. Juniper Green ETA Five Private Limited
22. Juniper Green Ray Two Private Limited

23. Juniper Green Beam Eight Private Limited
24. Juniper Green Beam Six Private Limited
25. Juniper Green Spark Four Private Limited
26. Juniper Green Light Ten Private Limited
27. Juniper Green Ray One Private Limited

28. Juniper Green India Alpha Private Limited
29. Juniper Green Spark Ten Private Limited
30. Juniper Green Light Four Private Limited
31. Juniper Green India Six Private Limited

32. Juniper Green Sigma Eight Private Limited
33. Orange Gadag Wind Power Private Limited
34. Juniper Nirjara Energy Private Limited (w.e.f 23 June 2023)

LN RN~
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Juniper Green
Energy Private Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Juniper Green Energy Private
Limited {'the Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together
referred to as 'the Group’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies, which are companies covered under the Act, as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are
companies covered under the Act, are respensible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal contro} stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAP"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of the Company's business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

The audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of 24 subsidiary companies
which are companies covered under the Act, and reporting under Section 143(3)(i) is exemptled vide MCA
notification no. G.S.R. 583(E)} dated 13 June 2017 read with corrigendum dated 14 July 2017.
Consequently, our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, as aforesaid, based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by ICAl prescribed
under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of
such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their report referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies as aforesaid.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of

financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generatly accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with refergndé tofinancial statements include those policies and
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Juniper Green
Energy Private Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acqguisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of the subsidiary companies, the Holding Company and
its subsidiary companies, which are companies covered under the Act, have in all material respects,
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and such controls were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal financial controls with reference to the
financial statements criteria established by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance note issued by the ICAI.

Other Matter

We did not audit the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements insofar as if relates
to 6 subsidiary companies, which are companies covered under the Act, whose financial statements
reflect total assets of Rs. 146,853.70 lakhs and net assets of Rs. 26,650.83 lakhs as at 31 March 2024,
total revenues of Rs. 138,76 lakhs and net cash inflows amounting to Rs, 810.68 Jakhs for the year ended
on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. The internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in so far as it relates to such subsidiary companies, have been audited
by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us by the management and our report on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements for the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, as aforesaid, under Section 143(3)(i)
of the Act in so far as it relates to such subsidiary companies is based solely on the report of the auditors
of such companies. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter with respect to our reliance on
the work done by and on the reports of the other auditors.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Deepak Mittal

Partner

Membership No.: 503843
UDIN: 24503843BKFAS09426

Place: Gurugram
Date: 26 September 2024

Chartered Aceountants



JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
(All amounts are stated in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
Particulars Notes March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Propeety, plant and equipment 3 3,14,361.07 2,67,402.29
Capltal work-in-progress 3 41,270.93 1,87%.07
Right-of-use assets 4 29,916.57 22,917.90
Intangible assets 5 18.07 25,85
Financial assels
Trade receivables i1 31.24 31.24
Other non-current financial assets 6 2,807.98 1,824.23
Deferred tax assets {net} 7 1,167.11 730.44
Non currend tax assets (net) 8 408,66 432,18
Other non current assets 9 5,818.74 62.13
Sub total (A) 3,95,800.37 2,95,305.33
Current assets
Financial assels
Investments 0 8,202.81 1,960.10
Trade receivables 11 6,257.54 4,994,80
Cash and cash equivalents 12 2,207.24 4,754.86
Gther bank balances 13 83,550.22 13,254.16
Other current financial assets 14 893.01 292,05
Other current assets i5 [,733.22 640.05
Sub total {B) 1,02,844.04 25,896.02
TOTAL ASSETS (A+B) 4,98,644,41 3,21,204.35
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Fxquity share capital 16 2,590.56 1,380.72
Other equity 17 1,70,577.32 76,916.93
Tetal Equity (C) 1,73,167.58 78,297.65
MNon-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 18 2,41,026.83 2,01,013.85
Lease liabilitics 41 25,837.71 19,273.15
Provisions 19 1,085.36 954,45
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 7 3,899.33 2,362.26
Sub total (D) ' 2,71,849.23 2,23,603,71
Current linbilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 20 26,143.2] 12,323.96
Lease liabititics 41 683,50 453,50
Trade payables 21
Total oufstanding dues of micro enterprises and sinall enterprises 178.34 148,62
Total outstanding dues of ereditors other than micro ¢nlerprises and small enterprises 723.48 552,05
Other current financial labilities 22 24,501.14 5,369.58
Other current liabilities 23 881.46 253.27
Provisions 24 253.64 195.91
Current tax liabilities (net) 25 262,53 310
Sub total (E) 53,627.30 19,299.99
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (C+D+E) 4,98,644,41 3,21,201.35
Sumnary of material accounting policy information 2

The accompanying notes age an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even dale

TFor Walker Chandiek & Co, LLP
Charlered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

ittal

Deepak
Partner
Membership No. 503843

Place: Gurugram

Date: September 26, 2024

n g( ;

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

Ca ] MM/
Naresh Mansukhani
Director

DIN: 06990480

Place: Gurugram

Date: Scple(::ber 26, 2024

Prashant Pandia
Company Secretary

M. No.: F12077

Place: Gurugram

Date: September 26, 2024

i

{%@3‘3 f;i}% -

.
)

i’

Parag Agrawal
Direclor

DIN: (2463717
Place: Gurugram
Date: September 26, 2024



JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts are stated in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated}

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particular Not

artieulars o March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Income
Revenue from operations 26 39,154,97 33,130.68
Other income 27 3,289.68 3,117.89
Tetal income 42,444.65 36,248.57
Expenses
Employee bencfits expense 28 1,413.02 2,909.87
Finance cost 29 19,119.63 19,838.59
Depreciation and amortization expense 30 12,215.27 11,005.80
Other expenses 35 3,947.11 3,510.03
Total expenses 36,695.03 37,264.29
Profit/(loss) before tax 5,149.62 (1,015.72)
Tax expense 32
Current tax expense 675.07 518
Adjustment of {ax relating to earlier periods 0.37 1.21
Deferred tax expense 1,067,63 183,69
Total tax expense 1,743.07 190.08
Net profit/(loss) for the year (A) 4,006.55 {1,205.80)
Other comprehensive inconie
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods :

Re-measurement {loss) on defined benefit plans 15.87 (16.78)

Tax impact 3.0 2.93
Items that will be reclassified to profit or foss in subsequent periods :

Recognition of gains in fair value of hedging instrument (net) 68.25 390.32

Tax impact (11.72) (66,97)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (B) 69.29 309.50
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year, net of tax (A+B) 4,075.84 {890.30)
Earnings/(loss) per equity share: [Nominal value of share : T 10 (Mareh 31,2023 13
T 10)]
(1) Basic (3) 20.85 (8.73)
(2) Diluted (%) 20.85 (8.73)
Summary of material accounting policy information 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Walker Chandiek & Co, LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Deepak Mittal

Partner

Membership No. 503843
Place: Gurugram

Date: September 26, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

&

Naresh Mansukhani
Director

DIN: 06990480

Place: Gurugram

Date: September 26, 2024

"

Prashant Pandia

Company Secretary

M. No.: F12077

Place: Gurugram

Date: September 26, 2024

Endy

Parag Agrawal

Director

DIN: 02463717 ffﬂ
Place: Gurugram S’
Date: September 26, 2024



JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED .
Consolidated Statentent of Cash Flows for the year ended Marel 31, 2024
{All amounts are stated in 2 lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Operating activities
Proflt before tax 5,749.62 (1,015.72)
Adjustment te reconcile profif before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation and amoriization expense 12,215.27 11,005.80
Interest income (2,785.81) (2,336.99)
Profit on disposal of Property, plant and equipment {0.08) -
Profit on sale of mutual fund (401.50} (86.60)
Gain on fair valvation of financial instruments through profit & loss {30.09) (8.75)
Foreign exchange gain (net) - 1.59
Finance costs 18,052.71 18,855.37
Interest expenses on lease lisbilities 1,006.30 922.54
[nterest expenses on decommissioning liabitities 60.62 60,68
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 35.74 -
Loss on termination of lease 138.98 -
34,041,76 27,397.92
Working capital adjustments;
{Increase) in trade receivable {1,262.74) (2,721.91%
(Inerease) in other financial assets (192.84) (273.31)
(Increase)/Decrease in other current assets {1,089.64) 996.64
Increase in provisions 145.24 124.16
Increase in trade payable 180.1% 377.31
Increase/(Decrease) in other curread labilities 793.08 (221.12)
32,615.05 25,679.69
Income tax paid (net of refund) (392.68) (188.95)
Met cash flow from eperating activities (A) 32,222.37 25,490,74
Investing activities
Purchase of property plant and equipment including capitat work in progress (83,135.90) (61,508.02)
Praceeds from sale of property plant and equipment 292,78 27,37
Purchase of intangible assels (13.51) (15.89)
Amogunt paid for acquisition of subsidiary company {430.12) -
Interest received 2,254,68 2,354.97
Proceeds/(investment) in mutual furd (net) {5,8EE.12) (1,613.06)
Proceeds/(Investment) in bank deposits (net) (71,1£1,30) 15,420.75
Net cash flow (used §n) investing activitics 4] {1,57,954.49) {45,333.88)
Financing acfivities
Proceeds from issue of equity shares 75,794,239 -
Share application money pending allotement 15,000.00 -
Proceeds/{repayment} of Buyers credil (net) 12,513,772 (64,257.35)
Proceeds from loan from financial institution 49,745.00 [,36,835.92
Repayment of loan from financial institution (8,352.57) (30,183.86)
Repayment of short term borrowings (245.00) -
Payment of lease liabilities {3,268.11) (2,781.79)
Finance cost { including other incidental eost) (18,049.09) {18,440.95)
Net cash flow from financing nctivities {C) 1,23,138.34 24,171.97
Net increase/(decrense) In cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) {2,593.78) 1,328.83
Cash and cash equivalents af the beginning of the year 4,754.80 3,426,03
Cash and cash equivalents on acquisition of subsidiary company 46,16 -

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year*® 2,207.24 4,754.86




JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Consoltdated Statement of Cash Flows for the yenr ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

*Components of cash and ensh equivatents (refer note 12)

Cash on hand 0.84 0,85
Balances with schedule bunks:

- On current accounts 2,206.40 1,366.78
- Cheques / DD in hand - 76,33
- Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months - 3,310.90
Total cash and eash equivalents 2,207.24 4,754.86
Notes:

There are ne non cash movements in financing & investing activities excepl {hose disclosed above and note 13.
4

Summary of material aecounting policy information (refer note 2)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP Fer and cn behalf of the Board of Drirectors of
Chartered Accountanis Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

Firm Registration No.: 005076N/N5C0013

Naresh Mansuldani
Director

DIN: 06990480

Place: Gurugram

Drate; Septeinber 26, 2024

Deepak Mhital

Partner

Membership Ne. 503843
Place: Gurugram

Date: September 26, 2024

L

Prashant Pandia
Company Secretary

M. No.: F12077

Place: Gurugram

Date: September 26, 2024

B

Parag Agrawal

Direcior A
DIN: 02463717 | W
Place: Gurugram

Date: September 26, 2024




JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of change in cquity for the year ended Mareh 31, 2024
{All amounts are stated in 2 lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

{n) Equity Share Capital

Particulars Number T in lakhs
Balance at April 1, 2022 1,38,07,243 1,380.72
Issue of equity share capital during the year - -
Balance at March 31, 2023 1,38,07,243 1,380.72
Issue of equity share capital during the year 1,20,98,397 [,209.84
Balance at March 31, 2024 2,59,05,640 2,590,560
(b) Other equity
Equity attributable to owners of Holding Company
R Reserves and Surplus Cash flow hedge Slt’m'e.
Particulars yeserve (net of Application Total (A)
Securitics Capital Retained tax) Money pending
premium reserve enrnings allotment
Balance at April 01, 2022 73,139.88 1.zn 4,991.23 {316,601} - 77,813.23
Net loss for the year - - (1,205.80) - - (1,205.80)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - - {13.85) - - (13.85)
Hedging reserve, net of tax (refer note - 17) - - - 323.35 - 323.35
Balance at March 31, 2023 73,139.88 (1.27) 3,771.58 6.74 - 76,916.93
Net profit for the year - - 4,006.55 - - 4,006.55
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - - 12.76 - - 12.76
Share application money received - - - - 90,794.41 50,794.41
Shares issucd during the year 74,584.55 - - - (75,794.39) (1,209.84)
Amount refunded during the year - - - - (0.02) {0.02)
Hedging reserve, net of tax (refer note - 17) - - - 56.53 - 56.53
Balance at March 31, 2024 1,47,724.43 (1.27) 7,790.89 63.27 15,006.60 1,70,577.32

Summary of material accounting policy informution (refer note 2)

The accompatying notes are an integral part of (he conselidated financial statements

As per our repost of even date

For Watker Chandiok & Co. LL.P
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

Parag Agrawal .

g és
DIN: 02463717 N\
Place: Gurugram

Date: Seplember 26, 2024

Naresh Mansukhani
Director

DIN: 06950480

Place: Gurugram

Date: Seplember 26, 2024

Deepak Mittal
Partner
Membership No. 503843
Place: Gurugram

Date: September 26, 2024

Director

Prastant Pandia
Company Secrefary

M. No.: F12077

Place: Gurugram

Date: September 26, 2024




Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated) _ R

1.

2.1

2.2

Corporate information

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited (“the Company” or “the Holding Company™), a private limited Company and its
subsidiaries {collectively refer to as “Group”) is engaged in the business of setting up, operating, generation, supply and
sale of power in the field of renewable energy. The Company is domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions
of the Companies Act applicable in India, The Company is subsidiary of Juniper Renewable Holdings Pte Ltd. The
registered office of the Company is located at F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza 1, Plot No. 7, MLU, Sector 10, Dwarka, New
Delhi-110075.

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of setting up, operating, maintaining, generation, supply and sale of
power in the field of renewable energy, The Group has commissioned (a) 100 MW, 150 MW and 75 MW Solar Power
Project in the state of Maharashtra and electricity generated from it is sold to Maharashtra State Electricity Distribution
Company Limited, (b} 120 MW and 190MW Solar Power Project in the state of Gujarat (“Projects”) and electricity
generated from it is sold to Gujarat Urja Vikas Nigam Limited.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 were authorized and approved by the Board of
Directors on dated September 26, 2024,

Basis of Preparation and Material accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with the section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 (as amended from time to time} and presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule III to the Companics Act,
2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule I1I), as applicable to the financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual and going concern basis in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India. Fuither, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except
for derivative financial instruments and certain financial assets and financial liabitities which have been measured at fair
value or revalued amount as explained in relevant accounting policies.

The financial statements are presented in Rupees in lakhs, except when otherwise indicated,

Basis of conselidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Group as at 31 March 2023. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the

Group has:

s  Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee)

e Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

e The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voling rights result in control, To support this presumption and when
the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other
voting rights holders,




Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Notes to consolidated finanecial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
ane o nore of the three eletments of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the
Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in
similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated
financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that
group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the
group’s accounting policies,

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of
the parent company, i.e., year ended on 31 March, When the end of the reporting period of the parent is different from that
of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes, additional financial information as of the same date as
the financial statements of the parent to enable the parent to consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary, unless
it is impracticable to do so.

Consolidation procedure:
(a) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its

subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and cxpenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and
liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.

{(b) Offset (climinate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity
of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to account for any related goodwill.

(c) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in asscts,
such as fixed assets, are eliminated in full), Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recogiition in
the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the
climination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCT) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent
of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries and associates to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assels and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group ate eliminated in full on consolidation,

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary and associates, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

e Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary
e Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests
Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity
Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

o & o @

Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or retained earnings, as
appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities

Non- controlling interest, presented as part of equity, represent the portion of subsidiary’s statement of profit and loss and
net assets that is not held by the Group. Statement of profit and loss balance (including other comprehensive income
(‘OCI)) is attributed to the equity holders of holding Company and to the non- controlling interest basis the respective
ownership interests and such balance is attributed even if this result in controlling interests having a deficit balance.

The Group treats transactions with Non - controlling interests that do not result in a foss of control as transactions with
equity owners of the group. Such a change in ownership interest result in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of
the controlling and non- controlling interest to reflect their relative interest in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and any consideration paid or received is recognised with in equity.




Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies
a) Business Combinations
The Group applies the acquisition method in accounting for business combination for the business which are not under
common control. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at
acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable nef assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition date
fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they
are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination are measured at the basis
indicated below:

o Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits respectively.

o Liabilities or equity instruments related to share based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share — based
payments arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-based Payments at the acquisition date.

s Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that standard.

o  Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining contractual term of the related
contract. Such valuation does not consider potential renewal of the reacquired right.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The
goodwill is tested for impairment at each reporting date in accordance with Ind AS 36.

Business Combination under common control

Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control have been accounted for using the pooling
of interest method. The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amount. No
Adjustments have been made to reflect fair value, or to recognise any new assets or liabilities.

The balance of retained earnings appearing in the financial statements of transferor is aggregated with the corresponding
balance appearing in the financial statements of transferee. The difference, if any, between the amount recorded as share
capital issued plus any additional consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital shall be

transferred.

Asset acquisition - Acquisition of assets and liabilities which do not constitute a business is accounted for using asset
acquisition method. The consideration paid is allocated to the identifiable assets and liabilities based on the fair values of
such assets and liabilities on the acquisition date. Accordingly, no goodwill or deferred tax is created.

b) Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assels and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the
management's best knowledge of current cvents and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

¢)  All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group’s normal operating cycle of
12 months which is based on the nature of business of the Group and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Companies
Act, 2013, Current assets do not include elements which are not expected to be realized within 12 months and Current




Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Notes fo consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated) '

liabilities do not include item which are due after 12 months, the period of 12 months being reckoned from the reporting

date.

d)

Y

i)

e}

Amended Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and interpretations effective during the year

Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS §
The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates, changes in accounting policies and
the correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop

accounting estimates.

The amendments had no impact on the Group.,
Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the
requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant” accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’
accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about
accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments have had an impact on the Group’s disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the measurement,
recognition or presentation of any items in the Group’s financial statements.

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities avising from a Single Fransaction - Amendments to Ind AS 12

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under fnd AS 12, so that it no longer applies to
transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences such as leases.

The amendments had no impact on the Group.
Revenue recogaition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
The Group has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it typically controls the
goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

Sale of Power: The Group’s revenue from sale of electricity generally includes one performance obligation. The
revenue from supply of power is recognized at point in time when electricity is transferred to the customer i.e. on the
supply of units generated from the plant to the grid. The revenue is recognized at the agreed tariff rate as per the terms

of the Power Purchase Agreements ("PPA") entered into with the customer.

Revenue is measured based on transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts and other incentives,
if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes or other amounts collected form

customers.

Revenue from operations on account of change in law events in terms of PPA’s with customers is accounted for based
on the orders/ reports of respective regulatory authorities and management best estimates wherever required.

Sale of Verified Emission Reductions (VER): Revenue from sale of VER is recognised when following conditions
have been satisfied:

i. The significant risks and rewards of ownership of the VER have been passed on to the buyer;

ii. The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
iii. It is probable that the economic henefits associated with the sale of VER will flow to the entity; and
iv. The cost incurred or to be incurred in respect to sale of VER can be measured reliably.
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Contract Assets: A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the
customer. If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration
or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade Receivable: A receivable represents the group’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e.,
only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

fy Property Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, and subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment other than
frechold land are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, it any, The cost
comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly atiributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in atriving at the purchase
price. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Subsequent Costs

The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the ilem
of property, plant and equipment, if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to
the Group and its cost can be measured reliably with the carrying amount of the replaced part getting derecognised. The
cost for day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as and when
incurred,

Capital work-in-progress/ Assets under construction .
Capital work-in-progress represents expenditure incurred in respect of capital projects under development and is stated at
cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. Cost includes land, related acquisition expenses, development/
construction costs, borrowing costs and other direct expenditure,

Depreciation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis, computed on the basis of useful lives
(as set-out below) preseribed in Schedule Il to the Act:

Useful life
Assets category (in years)
Plant and Equipment * 25
Office equipment 5
Vehicles g
Furniture and fixtures 10
Computers (including server) 3-6
Lease hold improvements Over the period of lease term

* The useful life of plant & equipment is different from the useful life as prescribed under Part C of Schedule 1I of the
Companies Act, 2013, The Group, based on technical assessment made by internal expert, has estimated the useful life of
solar power project as 25 years and believes that it reflects fair approximation of the period over which the assel will
generate economic benefit and is likely to be used.

The identified components are depreciated over their useful lives; the remaining asset is depreciated over the life of the
principal asset. The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year end or whenever there are
indicators for impairment and adjusted prospectively.

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposat proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
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the income statement when the asset is derecognized. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of
property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

g) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated
intangibles, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in
statement of Profit & loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired, The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortization petiod or
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets
with finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of
another asset, The software’s are amortised over a period of three years. .

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually
or at the cash-generating unit level, The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective
basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is

derecognized,
h) Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease, That is, if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee
The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Group recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the

right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Group recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the

estimated useful lives of the assets are follows:

. Leasehold Land 3 years to 29 years and 11 months
. Office Building on lease based on the life leaschold agreement

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset, The right-of-use assets are also

subject to impairment,

ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
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expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine
such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of certain plant & machinery, vehicle
efc. {i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are
considered to be low value, Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low value assefs are recognized as expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

)  Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalized as part of the cost of a qualifying asset if they are directly atiributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of that asset. Capitalization of borrowing costs commences when the activities to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress and the expenditures and borrowing costs are incurred. Borrowing costs
are capitalized until the assets are substantially completed for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period they occur, Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection
with the arrangement of borrowings, other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds and
exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the
borrowing cost.

1) Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity

instrument of anether entity.

Financial Assets

Initial Recognition and Measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset, Purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset.

Subsequent Measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

Debt instruments at amostized cost

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through statement of Profit & Loss (FVTPL)
Fquity instruments, measured at fair value through other comprehensive incoine (FVTOCI)

e ® & 9

Debt instruments at amortized cost

A ‘debt instrument® is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest {SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding
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After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
categoty applies to the Group’s trade receivables, unbilled revenue, other bank balances, security deposits etc.

Debt instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
A “debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
a)  The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial

assets, and
b)  The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPP1,

Debt instruments included within the FVTOQCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Group recognizes
interest income, impairment losses & reversals in the statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition of the asset,
cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from the equity to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Interest carned whilst holding FV'TOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization
as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria,
as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Debt instrument included within FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement
of profit and loss.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) is primarily derecognized
(i.e. removed from the Group's consolidated balance sheet) when:

a}  The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b) The Group has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and Either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset,

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognize the asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset, In that case, the Group
also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained,

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
catrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading
and contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are
classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Group may make an irrevocable election to present in other
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comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Group makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is inevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding
dividends, are recognized in the OCL There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment.
However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
P&L.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) is primarily derecognized
(i.e. removed from the Group’s consolidated balance sheet) when:

a) The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b) The Group has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangement; and Either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the assel,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognize the asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group
also recognizes an associated liability, The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing invelvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recoghnition of

impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

e Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g. deposits, trade receivables and bank
balances

e  Financial asset that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

e Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that
are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18,

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance for trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines whether there has
been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, twelve
month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is
used. If, in the subsequent period, credil quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on
a twelve month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
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ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating
the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

o  All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the
expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument
cannot be estimated reliably, then the entily is reguired {o use the remaining contractual term of the financial
instrument

e Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

As a practical expedient, the Group uses a provision matrix to determine itpairment loss allowance on portfolio of its
trade receivables, The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade
receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/ expense in the
statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the statement of profit and loss.
The balance sheet presentation for financial instruments is described below:

For financial assets measured at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance i.e. as an integral part of the measurement
of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount, Until the asset meets write off criteria,
the Group does not reduce impairment allowance {rom the gross carrying amount.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Group combines financial instruments on the basis of shared
credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in
credit risk to be identified on a timely basis,

Non derivative financial liabilities

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings,
net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and

borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial Habilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term, This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by
Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective

hedging instruments.

Giains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair
value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCL These gains/ losses are not subsequently
transferred to P&L. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair
value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss,

Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR
method, Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR

amortization process,
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Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the
Statement of profit or loss.

Derivative financial instrements and hedge accounting

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks,
Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value
is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

The purchase contracts that meet the definition of a derivative under Ind AS 109 are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except for the
effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge
item affects profit or loss or freated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability

For the purpose of hedge accounting, the Group has classified its hedges into cash flow hedge i.e. hedging the exposure to
variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a
highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment. At the inception of
a hedge relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the Group wishes to
apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge.

The documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the nature of the risk being hedged,
and how the Group will assess whether the hedging relationship meets the hedge effectiveness requirements {(including the
analysis of sources of hedge ineffectiveness and how the hedge ratio is determined). A hedging relationship qualifies for
hedge accounting if it meets all of the following effectiveness requirements:

+ There is ‘an economic relationship’ between the hedged item and the hedging instrument.

« The effect of credit risk does not ‘dominate the value changes’ that result from that economic relationship.

+ The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item that the
Group actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the Group actually uses to hedge that quantity of
hedged item.

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:

Cash Flow Hedges: The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OClin the effective
portion of cash flow hedges, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.
The effective portion of cash flow hedges is adjusted to the lower of the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument
and the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item.

The Group uses forward currency contracts as hedges of its exposure to foreign currency risk in forecast transactions. The
ineffective portion relating to foreign currency contracts is recognised in statement of profit & loss. The Group designates
only the spot element of a forward contract as a hedging instrument. The changes in fair value of the forward element of
the derivative are recognized in other comprehensive income and are accumulated in *Cash Flow Hedge Reserve’.

The difference between forward and spot element at the date of designation of the hedging instrument is amortised over
the period of the hedge. Hence, in each reporting period, the amortisation amount shall be reclassified from the separate
component of equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. The accumulated balance in cash flow hedge reserve
is transferred to property, plant and equipment on settlement. However, if hedge accounting is discontinued for the hedging
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retationship that includes the changes in forward element of the hedging instrument, the net amount (i.e. including
cumulative amortisation) that has been accumulated in the separate component of equity shall be immediately reclassified
into statement of profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.

Reclassification of Financial instruments

The Group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no
reclassifications are made for financial assets and financial liabilities.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to seitle on a net basis, to realize the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

k) Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR or ¥) which is also the functional and reporting currency of
the Group.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying the exchange rate between the functional
cutrency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the balance sheet date are converted to functional currency using the
closing rate. Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost are reported using
the exchange rate at the date of the transactions,

Exchange differences arising on monetary itemns on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates different from
those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the statement of profit and Joss in the year in which they
arise.

Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose
fair value gain or loss is recognized in other comprehensive income or profit or loss are also recognized in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

I) Taxes

Current Income taxes

Current income tax asscts and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at
the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities

and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

s When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss.
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e Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

o When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

o In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferved tax asset to be utilised,
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the assct is
realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the

reporting date

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in cotrelation to the underlying transaction either
in OCI or directly in equity

m) Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme, The Group has no obligation, other than
the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Group recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme
as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received
before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a
liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for
services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment
will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Retirement benefit in the form of gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. The costs of providing benefits under the scheme
are determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year-end using the projected unit credit method, The actuarial
valuation is carried out for the plan using the projected unit credit method,

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in
net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on
the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of
e The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
e The date that the Group recognizes related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recoghizes

the foltowing changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements; and
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e Net interest expense or income

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is {reated as short-term employee benefit.
The Group measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the
unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit
for measurement purposes, Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using
the projected unit credit method at the year-end, The Group presents the leave as a current Hability in the balance sheet, to
the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporfing date. Where
Group has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is
presented as non-current liability.

n) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equily sharcholders
(after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly
paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends
relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split and reverse share
split {conselidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change
in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adfusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

0) Provisions

General

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed,
the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to any provision is presented in the Statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no
longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Decommissfoning liability

The Group records a provision for decommissioning costs of its solar power plants. Decommissioning costs are provided
at the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation using estimated cash flows and are recognised as part of the
cost of the particular assel, The cash lows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the
decommissioning lability. The unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurred and recognised in the statement of profit
and loss as a finance cost. The estimated fulure costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjusted as
appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are added to or deducted from the cost of

the asset.

p) Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group assesses al each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, or when annual impairment assessment for an asset is required, the Group makes an estimate of the
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset




Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

or cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit & loss, except for assets that are previously revalued where
the revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. In this case, the impairment is also recognised in other
comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation,

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to its recoverable amount, That increase cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised previously. Such reversal is recognised in
statement of comprehensive income unless the asset is measured at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated
as a revaluation increase.

q) Contingent Assets/liabilities

Contingent assets are not recognized. However, when realization of income is virtually certain, then the retated asset is no
longer a contingent asset, and is recognized as an asset.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
eccutrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a present
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to sefile the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in
the financial statements,

r}  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or fess, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the
consalidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

s)  Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments such as derivates at Fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the assel or
transfer the liability takes place either:

] In the principal market for the asset or liability

° In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantagecus market for the asset ot Hability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or aliability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:

Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly
or indirectly observable
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Level 3 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable,

At each reporting date, the management of the Group analysis the movements in the values of the assets and liabilities
which are required to be measured or reassessed as per the accounting policies of the Group,

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reperting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. This
note summarises accounting policy for fair value, Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes,

t)  Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries

Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries are accounted for at cost in accordance with Ind AS 27 Separate Financial
Statements,

u)  Amendment fo Accounting Standards (Ind AS) issued but not yet effective,

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”™) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. As at 31st March 2024, MCA has not nofified any new
standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Group,




“dnein o1 Jo swE 213

u1 proy axe yustudmbs pue jreld “Aadord uT popnow (35853] 1) JO MOAR) UI PAINCoXd AP SIE 51USWISaITe a5ea] S1f) puR 0assa] a1 St dnoiny stp sxaya sanssdoad Teg) 1530) soruedold SqEACTIUIL JO SPaSp RN AL

P L
STTOPLYT  SL6T 1LSF1 08°€51 906 T0'Z8T°S9°L 69°EIL'T 9808 €207 “T€ IR IV
LOTOEPIE  6E8F $9°TT1L 8$0°LIT SS'90F LE98RTTC £1°T8LT TI8ET FT0T ‘1€ YB3V
xuo—m HOZ
6T'LEE 6L L6'FL 9T IL 1671 8871 $6789°87 - £6°761 PZOT ‘1€ YITRA IV
[ - - - 0970 65791 - L sioumsnipy syesodsicy
0666511 3% LO'ET 09°1¢ 31°0F PV 1L - 86'C5 IeaA a1} 10} 95IRY]
OLIZ9°L1 ¥ oL 61°8F 1.'88 0E°EL 66°1ST°LY - LOGHI €707 ‘1€ GMEN 1V
L0 - - - - L0 - - sjpatmsnipy sspesodsig
1878ZF 01 L0g £51L 81°9T 9¢°8T 90°Z0£"01 - 1¢%F Teaf otp 10§ 2B2ETD
£6°961°L LEL 99797 €579 P67 L9056'9 - SLPGT ZZoT °1 pady 3e se Surady
wonesnIony oyepasdog
9CESEEYE 9CE9 067561 6E°LEE £F 6L 11°695°0%°C ET°Z8LL PO EEE PTOT ‘1€ UMEBIW IV
§LTSE - - - 06T 9L TPE - GV L syootnsn{py ssesodsi
T1L8%'8S LYVET - 896 L5811 OF LLY'8S 89 0961 SUCTIPPY
66°€T0°S8°C  6L'0F 06°€61 1§°2FC 9L°€91 L0FEL IS8T 69°CELT £6'SEC €707 L€ YPIeA 3V
[1'8Z - - - - 1182 - - guaugsnlpy /sresodsiq
PTLEE RS 861 Uiy - 0192 9Z'680'88 LTHLI 20708 SUOnIPPY
98 FSY96T  LEVT 6ETST 16°2%T 99°L¢] 98 TLE ST 6Es’l SR6R1 7707 ‘1 [dy 1e se Sumado
HIOY( SS0HT)

2INyXI 1mouIaAoadur Judwdmb Araunyoe $SIIATIS SUTPTIHL
(¥) el pue ouE_.ﬁ.MH: X SpeA PIOH 3583 ' RO : puz h_-m_wa ~PUEL PIOLL A Euunmﬁﬂh V iatiatiald!

suzwidmba pue yuerd ‘Auiedosg (1) ¢

(P21e1S SSLAAIDLI0 SSI[UN “SIPR] > UT PAIRIS 218 SIONOWe [[y)
$TOT ‘1€ YAIEIA] PAPUD JBIL 313 JOY SIUIUIIRIS [BIDUBUI] POIEPI[OSTIOD 03 SIRON

QHLIANLT BLVATEL ADUANT NERYD ¥aAJINAL



LOGLST - - POET £"958°1 810l

- - - - - popuadsns Ajureaodur; sioeloag

LO'6LET - - €T £0'968' 1T ssaxBoxd g s100foag
el0L 5134 € WEY} 9310J4 SIBRA -7 SIBIA T-| Ie3A [ B $597]

Jo porrad e I0] JIAA D T JUNOUNY SIB[MIILIEJ

£T0T U2IBIA 1€ 3B 5V

C60LT LY - 89707 BEC6EE L LEOTT OF oL

= T po - - pepuedsns A[ureiodms) s1oofo1g

6 0LT Iy - 89°0T 8T 6E11 LEOITOF ssorSead m spoafoig
183101 SIE3A ¢ UB} 10N SAEBA £-F SIBIA T-T JB3A | UEG] $53°]

10 poiiad B XoJ JIAD |l Junowry

sIemaglegd

YZ0T WOIEAL L 1€ SV
SPODS SUPEY JLAAD

usmdenrbs pue jueid “Luadoid Jo uonismboe 10] JESUNIUIIIOI [ENIOBRIEOD JO SINSO[OSTP E0J (q)6€ 210N 259y SUORESNqo [eNoRNEsy) {q
-dnoin a1 3o s8umonioq 10y Almass se padperd /peSeBuom juamdmbs pue yoepd *Auadozg wo vonrmIOIT 107 §1 SI0N 187°Y (B

53766 J1M D
€60LTTH LY LLY8S ££°698°L6 LO6LS'L jelo L
PEF69L 78°96% 8L176'1 §¢°697 sasuadyo WO
e . . . (owoour 080
LELETT LLL9L 0L°829°T POLES WoLg o PUE $1509 FULMOLOQ FUPRIOU) 1500 SOTTULT
LOF09 68'8% 91°00¢ 08751 25020X3 GONEZIHOTIE PUR UONEIaIds(
9T 10Z°¢ ¥H'T0E T 69'8S6°% 16755 S25U9dxS 3y2udq SAodmy
16'TE0°TT 0L F8P91 11'0p1°82 OT'LLE 1509 UOTIOTLISTIOD JUR|J JC 20URRg
PoSIY 1€'8 11972 P8 L61 weatudopaa(] SIS % PUE]
- 162671 16767 1 E 1807) Jouaauy
¥8PIIIT £0'040°8€ LY'00T6S - 100 DI / JRPO
AISUNYIBIA
PTOT (€ WdaE pue juely SHOBIPPY £T0T ‘1€ YPIER SIE[MIIIE]
03 pasipede))

pasteIIdes JUnROWEE 10 10 131 218 Spesy ssuadxd aanoedssi oty wpen

LO'6LS'T
£6'0LTTY

pasoyostp sasuadxe ‘Anzenbesuon) 'ssexSoxd ur yiom endes lopun sesusdxe Summorof 21 pesiendes sery dnoin o1 ‘resk s Suungg pousd uononnsued Surmp permoul amypuadxs IO S[IRIRD J 218 TUIMO[[C]

£207 ‘1€ WALV
PTOT ‘1€ UABIN IV
S53I30XJ-URHI04A [endey (1)

TPaeIs asimIagl0 SSafln ‘SUME] » I pRels 218 SIUNOWE [[y'}

$T0T ‘1€ Y1 PIpUs Jeak oyj J0f SJUSWIDIEIS [P IBUL) PIIBPI[OSTOD 0] SAJON

GHIINTT BELVAREd ADYHANT NEHAD WHJINGE




85T 1374 €T0Z “I€ WIIBW IV

LO'81 LO"81 PTOZ ‘1€ YAIBIA] 3V

Ha01g 39N
819 sI'1e $TOZ ‘L€ USIEIN IV
6C1T 67 1T 1834 211 107 9F1RY))
68°6¢ 68°6¢€ £707 “IE PPIeW 3Y
80°LE , 80°L1 Ie2A 9y 10F 9810gD)
19777 1872 7207 ‘1 itady 3% se Sunado

GoOResHIoury ucnenaidog

ST6L ST6L $TOT “TE YSIBA Y
557! 16°ET SUOTLIPPY
¥L'G9 $L°C9 £207 “1E YOI W
891 8791 SUORIPPY
9T 6t ST6Y 2267 ‘1 1udy ¢ se Swuadg
Haoiq mmmﬁmv

18301, ATEMIOG SIR[MIEIR

5}SSY JQISUEIU] 'S

"SMSOIISIP J0Y |§ 90T 13J9Y S}OSSE ISN-JO-IGETY .

LE9166T S8°LE TL'8L86T $Z0L 1€ YIIBEA] 1€ SE 3IUB[BY
(L0056} (90°8t) (107206 1ea£ oy Suunp [esodsiy
FTH60'T) (re67) (06'790°1) TB3A 91} 10} UONBIoaItag

B&'THO'6 61°L9 6L°GLES Tezh oY) SULMp STOBIPPY

06°L16°CT 90°8¥ PR698°7T €207 ‘1§ UDIEY JE 58 SduE[Eg

85€TI - 86¢LL FeoA o) SuLmp 1mamsnipy
(96°€%) {T6°0€) F9Z1L) Teak o 10} vonealdag]
SL'FES 0T - 9L FESGT Teaf 3T SULND SUCTIPPY
TIE00°ET 86'8L YIPTETE TZ0T 1 judy je se Snmadg
%101 Surppng PUE PIoTasEaTy SIBMINIEY

#SI9SSE 3ST-10-3Y STy #

(Pa1e1s SSLWIAEC SSA[UN “SIRYE] 3 TT PRILRIS 21 SYUMOUE [Ty )
PTOT ‘L€ UDIBIA POPUS 1834 1) 10J SIHOWIAYELS [BIIUBHL} PIILPI[OSLOD 03 SIFON

TIIINFT SIVARID ADWANE NITED YAJINAL




JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{AH amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

6, Other non-current financial assels
- Fixed Deposits (with remaining matuerity of more than 12 monthsy*

- Fixed Deposits (with remaining maturity of mose than 12 months)

- Fixed Peposits (with remaining maturity of mose then 12 months)**

Interest accrued on fixed deposits

Security deposit

Tetal

*Lien marked in favour of lendes's / lien with bank for issuance of DSRA guaranice.

#%{nder licn with bank for Bank Guarantee issued to Central Transmission Utility of India Ltd.

7. (i) Deferred tax assets (nef}

(8) Components of Deferred tax asset / (liability) (net)
Deferred tax asscts arising on account of

Provision for employee benefits

Lease liability

Decommissioning liability

Unabsorbed depreciation®

Derivative liability and Restaiement of capital creditors

Graoss deferred tax asset {A)

Deferred tax liability arrising on account of

Depreciation and amortisation on properiy, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Cash flow hedge reserve

Right fo usc assets

EIR adjustment of borrowings

Fair value of investnent and financial instruments at amortised cost

Gross delerved tax lability (B)

Net Deferred tax assets ‘Fotal

7. (il) Deferred tax liability (net)

Deferred {ax liability arising on account of

Depreciation and amortisation on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Right to usc assets

EIR adjustment of borrowings

Cash flow hedge reserve

Fair value of investment and financial mstruments at amortised cost

Gross deferred tax liability (A)

Deferred tax assels arrlsing on account of
Provision for employee benefits

Lcease liability

Decominissioning liability

Expenses to be allowed in subsequent years
Unabsorbed depreciation

Gross deferred (ax asset (B)

Net deferred tax liabillty Total
Disclosure in Consolidated Balance Sheet is based on entity wise recognition, as follows!

Deferred tax Habitities (note (i)
Deferred fax assels (note 7{iN
Deferred tax linbilities (net)

(b) Reconciliation of deferred tax assets / (linbility) :

Opening balance

Tax income/(expense} during the year recognised in statement profit and loss
On acquisilion of subsidiary

Tax income/(expense) during the year recognised in OCI

Closing balance ns at 31 March

(c) Movement in deferred tax assets / (liability)
Movement in deferred nssets / (liability) for carrent year ended harch 31, 2024

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

1,150.59 1,149.98
929.77 -
- 62.38
21.57 10.09
706,05 601.78
2,807.98 1,824.23
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
12.63 i2.52
1,312.46 1,225.79
7.47 63.45
19,594.8% 13,871.80
48.87 60.98
21,376.34 15,234.60
18,730.73 12,962.65
- 1.39
1,332.38 1,388.40
144,57 151,52
.55 0.20
20,209.23 14,504.16
1,167.11 23044
12,182.57 8,862.50
1,901.35 1,405.98
143.14 109.87
13.14 -
5.31 1.94
14,245.48 10,380.26
36.23 29.58
1,811,950 1,265.24
91,91 $4.03%
42,13 2.0%
8,363,028 6,599.18
10,346.15 3,018.00
3,899.33 2,362,206
3,800.33 2,362.26
1,167.14 730.44
2,732.22 1,631.82
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
(1,631.82) {1,384.10)
(1,067.63) {183.69)
(17.94) -
{14.83) (64.04)
{2,732.22) (1,631.82)

Particulars

March 31, 2023

Recognised in

On acquisition

Recopnised in

Mareh 31, 2024

0ocCi of subfdiary profit and loss
Assets
Provision for cmployee bensfits 42,10 (3.4} - 9.89 48.88
Lease liability 2,521,03 - 204.00 399.33 3,124.36
Decommissioning linbility 148,40 . - (49.02) 99.38
Unabsorbed depreciation™® 20,471.04 - - 7,887.83 28,358.87
Expenses to be allowed in subsequent years 9.05 - - 33.08 42.13
Cash flow hedge reserve (1.38) (11.72) - {0.00) (13.11)
Derivative liability and Restatement of capital creditors 66.98 - - (t2.11) 48.87
23,251.22 [TCEEY) 8,268,99 31,709.38
Linbility T
Deepreciation and amortisation on property, plant and equipment and intangible assels 21,825.15 9,088.15 30,913.30
Riglht to use assels S 2,794.38 217.41 3,233.73
EIR adjustiment of borrowings 261.39 26.32 287.71
Fair value of invesiment and financial instrments at amertised cost 2,11 4.75 6.86
24,883,03 e, 9,336.63 34,441.60
Net Deferred tax assets / (Hability) (1,631.81) (14.83}]: (1,067.63) (2,732.22)
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Movement in deferred assels / (Liability} for previous year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars

Mareh 31,2022

Recognised in

On acquisition

Recognised in

March 31, 2023

0OCI of subidiary profit and loss
Assets
Provision for employee benefits 20,19 293 - 18.98 42.10
Leasc liabifity 1,917.10 - - 603,93 2,521.03
Decommissioning Hability 64,91 - - 83.4% 148,40
Unabsorbed depreciation® 8,446.06 - - 12,024,98 2047104
Expenses to be altowed in subsequent years 6.92 - - 2,13 9.05
Cash flow hedge reserve 65.59 {66.97) - - (1.38)
Derivative liability and Restatement of capital creditors 70.56 - - (0,58} 60.98%
10,591.33 (64.04) - 12,723.93 23,151.22
Liability
Deprecialion and amortisalion on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 9,548 06 - - 12,277.09 21,825.15
Right to use assets 2,254.90 - - 53948 2,794.38
FIR adjustment of borrowings 172.15 - - 89.24 26139
Fair value of investment and financial insiruments at amortised cost (.30 - - 1.81 2.11
11,975.41 - - £2,007.62 24,883.03
Net Deferred fax assets / (linbilty) {1,384.08) (64.04) - (183.69) (1,631.82}

*The Group has unabsorbed depreciation of INR 153,187.86 Lakhs (Mach 31, 2623; INR 1,67,058.88 Lakhs). The unabsorbed depreciation will be available for offsetting apainst future taxable

prefits of the Group.

The Group has recognised deferred tax assels of INR 28,358.87 Lakhs (Mach 31, 2023: INR 20,471.04 Lakhs) utilisation of which is depende on future profits, The future taxable profits are
based on projection made by management considering the power purchase agrecment with power procurer,
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Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
&  Non currend fax assels (nef)
Advance income-tax {net of provision for tax of INR pif fakhs (March 31, 2023; INR nit {akhs] 408.66 432.18
Total 408.66 43218
9 Other non-currend assets {Unsecured, considered pood unless otherwlse staded)
Prepaid expenses 1.60 147
Assel in {ransit* - 53,61
Capital advances 5817.14 5.05
Tatal 5,818.74 62,13
*Represenls nssels purchased in March 2023 on CFR basis thal was received in April 2023.
10 Invesiments
Cuoted Mutual Funds {measared af fair value (hrough Profit and Loss}
HDFC Overnipht Mutuat Fund-Direct Plan - Growth Oplion 5,949.61 1,960.10
[1,67.85£.34 units (March 31, 2023: 58,889.369 units)]
Aditya Bitla Sun Life Overnight Fund-Dircet Plan 2,203.20 -
[£,70,124.398 units (March 31, 2023: nil units)}
Total 8,202.81 1,960,190
Appregale book value and marke{ value of uaquoled inveslmeals - -
Appregate markel vatue of Quated inveslments 8,202.81 1,960.10
Aggregate omount of intpainnent in value ol invesiments - -
11 ‘Trade receivalves
Non-Current -
Trede receivables considered good - Secured 3124 31,24
Trade receivables considered pood - Unsecured* 31.24 3124

Total

* Petition ufs B6{L1)(1) of the Electricity Acl, 2003 read with Article 11 of the Power Purchase Agreemenl dated 08.07.2020 read wilh supplementary PPA dated April 25, 2022
execuled between JGTPE and GUVNL has been fled seeking refund of INR 31.24 lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 31.24 lakhs) unliterally and ilfegally deducted by GUYNL,

Current
Frade receivables considered good - Secured

6,257.54

4,994.80

Trade receivables considered poed - Unsesured
Totat Traule recelvables 6,257.54 4,994.80
Break-up lor security defatls:
Secured, considered good - -
Unsecured, considered good 6,288.78 5,026.04
Trade receivable - Credit impaired - -
Tatal 6,288.78 5,026.04
Trpadrment Allowance (AHowance for expected eredit loss)
Unsecured, censidered good - -
Trade receivable - Credit intpairesd - -
‘Total Trade recelvables 4,288.78 5,026.04
Trade receivables carty interesl as per the lerms of apreements with cuslomers and are generally on terms of & to 30 days.
Trade Recelvables Agelug Schedule
As at 31 March 2024
Ouistanding for foltowlng periads fram due date of payment
Farticulars Unbliled Current but  Less thané 6 menths~ | 2y 2-3 Mere than Total
Receivables nol Due Months Vear yeurs YVears 3 years o
Undispuled Frade Receivables - considered pood 3,.848.51 1,593.68 81515 - - - - 6,257.54
Urdisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
ineresse in credit risk ) ) ) ) ) ) )
Undisputed Trade receivable — credit impaired - - - - - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - - - - 33,24 - - 31.24
Disputed Trade receivables — whick have sipnificant
increase in credit nisk ) B ) ) ) . )
Disputed Trade receivebles — credit impaired - - - - - - - -
Total 3,848.51 1,593.68 81538 - 3L - - 6,288.78
As at 31 March 2023
Outsianding for following perieds from due date of payment
Parfleulars Unbilled Current but Less thané 6 months — £ 12 years 1-3 More than Total
Recelvibles not Due Afonths year YERIS Jyears
Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered good 3,315.09 1627.12 52.59 - - - - 4,994.80
Undisputed Trade Receivables ~ which have sigaificant
increase in credit risk ) ) ) ) : ) ) :
Undisputed Trade receivable — credil impaized - - - - - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - - - 31.24 - - 324
Disputed Trade receivebles - which have significant
increase in eredit risk ) ) ) ) ) )
Disputed Trade receivables — credil impaired - - - - - - -
Total 331508 1,627,12 §2.59 31.24 - - - 5,026,044
12 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand .84 0.85
Balances wilh banks:
- O currenl accounls 2,206.40 1,366.78
- Cheques/DD in hand - 76.33
- Fixed deposils with bauk (with oripinal malurity for fess than 3 moaths) - 31,310.90
Total 2.207.24 4,754,836
£3  Other bank balances
- Fixed Deposits {with remaining maturity tess it:an 12 months) 2333212 444843
- Fixed Deposits {with remaining maturity less than {2 monlhs)* 19,388.27 8,805.73
- Fixed Deposits (with semaining malurily fess than 12 months)?* 40,829.83 -
Total §3,5501.22 13,254.16

*Deposits are under Hien as per enins of contmetual amngement, but are readily acc ¢ by the Group, on demend.

**Fixed deposits marked len in favor of Bank for issuance of letter of credit / by
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JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{All amounts are stated in ¥ laklis, unless otherwisc stated)

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Net debt reconcilintion

This section sets ont analysis of net debt and the movement in net debt for each of the year presented:

Net debt as on 31 March 2024

Fair value

Particulars March 31,2023  Cash Flows df}f;’}'}‘;‘;’c“i‘e‘:r ‘:ﬁi‘:g‘:‘ﬁ‘éﬁ:};ﬁ March 31, 2024
Others
Non current - Borrowings (including current maturities) 2,09,211.061 41,392.43 (205.66) 2,50,397.78
Current - Borrowings 4,126.80 £2,513.72 - 131.74 16,772.26
Lease Liabilities 19,726,65 (3,268.11) 9,042.98 1,019.69 26,521,21
Total (A) 2,33.064.46 50,638.04 9,042.23 945,77 2.93,691.25
Less:
Cash and cash equivalents (4,754.86) 2,5417.62 - - (2,207.24)
Investment in mufual fund (1,960.10) (5,811.12) - {431,59) (R,202.81)
Net cash & cash equivalent (B) {6,714.96) (3,263.50) - (431,54 (10,410.05)
Net Debt {A- B) 2,26,349.50 47,374.54 9,042,98 514.18 2,83,281.20
Net debt as on 31 March 2023
Fair value
Particulars March 31,2022  Cash Flows  Commitment adjustment (Other—pp oy, 54 9993
during the year than Cash Flow)/
Others
Non current - Borrowings (including current maturities) 1,03,319.40 1,06,652.06 (760.45) 2,09,211.01
Current - Borrowings 66,739.22 (64,257.35) - 1,644.93 4,126.80
Lease Liabilities 10,607.27 (2,781.79) 10,658.34 1,242.83 19,726.65
Total (A) 1,80,665.89 39,612.92 10,658.34 2.127.31 2,.33.064.46
Less:
Cash and cash equivalents (3426.03) (1,328.83) - (4,754.86)
Investment in mutual fund (251.69} (1,613,006} - (95.35) (1,960.10)
Net eash & cash equivalent (B) (3,677.72} (2,941,89) - (95.35) {6,714.96)
Net Debt (A- B) 1,76,988.17 36,671.63 10,658,34 2,031.%96 2,26,349.50
Other current financial assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Interest acerued on secutity deposit 12,62 7.92
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 618.24 102.42
Security deposits 262.15 137.45
Derivative assels - 8.13
Insurance claim receivable - 36.13
Total 893,01 292.05
Other current assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless othervise stated)
Prepaid expenses 1,122.69 479.81
Other advance 273.98 149.69
Balance with govermmnent authorities 64.30 10,55
Advance lo vendor 272.25 -
‘Total 1,733.22 640.05




JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN-U40100DL2011PTC228318

Notes (o consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are stated in T Ialkdis, unless otherwise stated)

16. Equity share capital

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As af
March 31, 2023

Authoriscd share capital:
Equity share capital

3,50,00,000 (March 31, 2023: 2,50,00,000) equity shares of Rs,10/- each 3,500.00 2,500.00
2,000 (March 31, 2023: 2,600) Class B equity shares of Rs.10 cach 0.20 0.20
Total 3,500,20 2,500.20
1ssued, subscribed and fully paid-up sharc capital:

2,59,03,640 (March 31, 2023: 1,38,05,243) equity sharcs of Rs,10 each fully paid up 2,590.36 1,380.52
2,000 (March 31, 2023: 2,000} Class B equity shares of Rs.10 cach tulky paid up 0.20 0.20
Total 2,590.56 1,380.72
A. Reconciliation of no. of equity shares

(i) Authorised share capital No. of shares Amount
At April 1,2022 1,55,02,000 1,550.20
Equily Shares increased during the year 95,00,000 950.00
Class B Equity Shares increased during the vear - -
At Mareh 31, 2023 2,50,02,000 2,5060.20
Equity shares increased during the year 1,00,00,000 1,600.00
Class B Equity Shares increased during the year - -
At March 31, 2024 3,50.02.000 3,500.20
(ii) 1ssued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital No. of shares Amount
At April 1,2022 1,38,07,243 1,380.72
Class B Equity Shares issued during the year - -
At March 31, 2023 1,38,07,243 1,380.72
Equity shares issued during the year 1,20,98,397 1,209.84
At March 31, 2024 2.59.05,640 2.590.56

B. Terms/Rights attached to shares
Terms/Rights attacked to equity shares

The Company has two classes of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/- each as follows:

Each hotder of Bquity Share is entitled to one vote per share, T the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled o receive remaining assets
of the Company, afier distribution of all preferential amounts, The distribution will be in proportion o the number of Equity Shares held by the sharelolders,

Each holder of class B Equity Share shall not carry any right to dividend, voting or any other cconomic right and collectively gain a percentage of voling, dividend and
economic rights (of the total voting and economic rights available to the shareholders of the Company) as provided in Articles of Association.

C. Shares held by holding company
Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company are as below:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

2,59,03,640 (March 31, 2023: 1,38,05,243) cquity shares of Rs. 10/- each held by Juniper Renewable Holdings Pte. Ltd., the holding 2 500.36 | 380,52
company and ils nominee sl 580,

D. Details of shareholders holdings niore than 5% Equity shares

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Namte of the shareholder Number of shares  Percentageof  Number of shares  Percentage of
held Holding held Holding
Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid
Juniper Renewable Holdings Pte. Lid., the holding company and nominee 2,59,03,640 100.00% 1,38,05,243 100.00%

As per records of the Holding Company, including its register of sharcholders/members and other declaration received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above
shareholding represent both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.




JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN-U40100D1.2011PTC228318

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2024
(All amounts are stated in T lnkhs, unless otherwise stated)

E, Details of Equity shares held by promoters

As at March 31, 2024
Promoter Name Number of shares at Change in Number of shares % of total Shares % change in
the beginning of the shareholding at the end of the  of the Company sharcholding
year during the year year during the year
Juniper Renewable Holdings Pte. Ltd. and nominee 1,38,05,243 1,20,98,397 2,59,03,640 100.00% -
As at March 31, 2023
Promoter Name Number of shares at Change in Number of shares % of total Shares % change in
the beginning of the sharehelding at the end of the  of the Company sharcholding
year during the year year during the year
Juniper Renewable Holdings Pie. Lid. and nominee 1,38,05,243 - 1,38,05,243 100.00% -

F. No shares have been issued for consideration other than cash and no shares have been bought back during the perfod of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.




JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
MNotes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts are stated in ¥ lakbs, unless othenvise stated)

Parficulars March 31,2024  March 31, 2023

17 Other equity

Retained earnings
(a) Statement of profit and loss

As per last balance sheet 3,771.58 4,991.23
Add : Ned profit / (Joss) for the year 4,006.55 (£,205.80)
Add: Other Comprehensive Income / (loss), net of lax 12,76 (13.85)
Nei surplus in statement of profit and loss 7,790.89 3.771.58

Retained easmings represents the amount {hat can be distributed by the Holding Company as dividends considering the requirements under the Companies’ Act, 2013,

{b) Securities premium

As per last balance sheet 73,139.88 73,139.88
Add: Addition on issue of equity shares 74,584.55 -
Total 1,47,724.43 73,139.88

Secugities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares, The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of
the Companics Act, 2013,

(c)} Share application moncy pending allotment
As per last balance sheet

Add: Amount received 98,794 41 -
Less: Equity issued {75,794.39} -
Less: Amount refunded back (0.02) -
Total* 15,000.00 -

*Subsequent to year end, the Company has issued 22,835,816 equity shares {Face Value INR 222.58 Jakhs and Securities Premium INR 14,777.42 lakhs) against the share application money
pending allotment as at balance sheet date,

(d) OCI reserve

As per last balance sheet 6.74 (316.61)
Add: Cash Aow hedge reserve movement in P&, 63.27 6.74
Less: Reversal of cash flow hedge reserves, net of tax (6.74) EH XA
Total 63.27 6.74

The Group has taken forward contracts ta hedge procurment of property, plant & equipment/highly probable forecast payments for procurement of property, plant & equipment by the Group in
foreign curtency. To (he extentent hedge is effective, the change in fair value of hedping instrument is recognised in cash flow hedge reserve.

(e} Capital reserve

As per last balance sheet (£.27) {1.27)

Addition during the year . N

Total (1,27) (1.27)
1,70,877.32 76,916,935

The excess of net assels daken over the investinent carried in Demerged Company is lreated as capital reserve on account of meger. Capital reserve on account of merger is not avaifable for
distribution to the shareholders,




JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(AlE amounts arc stated in T lakhs, unless othenwise stated)

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

18 Borrowings

Non-current

Secured

Term Loan from financial institutions™ 2,50,397.78 2,09,2§1.01
Less: Amount disclosed under "Current Borrowings' (tefer note 20) (9,370.95) {8,197.16)
Total 2.41,026.83 2,01,013,85

*For loan in Juniper Green Energy Private Limited for 30 MW Project - INR 9,852.76 akhs (March 31, 2023: TNR 18,551.94 1akhs)

Represents ferm loan takes from Indian Rengwable Energy Development Agency (IREDA) in TNR specifically for the purpose of setting up 30 MW solar power project in Maharashtra which carries
interest rate of 8.75% p.a with annual reset upon expiry of | year fiom the date of first disbursement and every year thereafter. The Joan shall be repaid over a tenure of 15 years in 60 quarterly
instalmenls starling from March 31, 2021 and ending on December 31, 2035,

(i) Exclusive First Charge by way of Mortgage by deposit of title deeds in favour of [REDA on all the immovable properties, both present and future, wherever situate, petaining to 30 MW,

(i) Exclusive First Charge by way of hypothecation in favour of HREDA of alf the movable assets/properties bath present and fiuture wherever situate, pertaining to 30 MW,
(iii) Corporate Guarantee of holding Company M/s, Juniper Renewable Holdings Pie Limited which shall be released upon compliance of the certain conditions.

(iv} Pledge of 99% of (he promoter's contribution (Equity} in the project. The same shall be reduced to 76% and retained during the tenure of the loan, upon compliance of (he certain conditions.

(v) Conditional assignment of a) All he rights, title, inferest, benefits, claims and demands of the project contract assignable by the company, b) Subject to Applicable Law, all the rights, title,
interest, benefits, claims and demands in the Clearances pertaining to the project ¢} All the rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands in any letter of credit, guarantee, performance bond,
corporale guarantee, bank guarantee, mitimum energy generation guaraniee, liquidated damages, shortfall in generation etc. provided by any party to the Project Docuiments.

*For loan in Nisagra Rencwable Energy Private Limited for 70 MW Project - INR 23,630.32 fakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 24,762.64 lakhs)

Represents ferm: loan taken from India Infia Debt Limited (“IDF") in INR specifically for 70 MW solar power praject in Maharashtra which carries interest of 8.20% per annum 1l Aprit 27, 2027,
The term loan is repayable over a tenure of 18 years in quarterly instalments starting from 30 June 2022 and ending on 31 March 2040.

{i) First Charge by way of registered Mortgage on all the immovable properties of the Botrower both present and future, wherever situate, pertaining to 70 MW Solar Plotovoltaic Grid-connected
Power Project.

(i) Exctusive First Charge by way of hypotliceation of all the Borrowey's tangible movable assets/properties both present and future wherever situate, peetaining to 7¢ MW Solar Pholovoliale Girid -
connected Power Project,

(iii) Pledge of 76% of the promoter’s contribution (Equity) in the project.

{iv) First charge over ali accouns of the Borrower including DSRA Account, EMRA account, all ewrent assels and intangible assets of the Bommower perfaining to 70 MW Solar Photovollaic Grid-
connected Power Project, both present and future.

{v) First charge on all revenues and seceivables of the Borrower, ali pertaining to the 70 MW Solar Photovoltaic Grid-conaccted Power Project both present and future.

(vi) First charge by way of hypothecation over all the rights, title, interests, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Borrower in the Project Documents (including the PPA), in and under
alk the clearances, in any letier of credit, guarantee and liquidated damages (including Contractual Damages), performance bond provided by any Project Participant, insurance contracts and under
leasehold land pertaining to the Project, both present and future.

*For lean in Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited for 120 MW Project - INR 34,916.15 lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 36,5£3.30 Iakhs)

Represents tenm loan is from Power Finance Corporation (*PFC") in INR specificaily for the purpose of setting up 120 MW solar power project in Gujaral which carries interest at 8.10% and next
reset on 15 March 2025. The term loan is repayable over a tenure of 17 years in monthly instaliments starting from 15 January 2022 and ending on 15 December 2038, The term loan is secured by:

(i} Exclusive First Charge by way of Mortgage over:
- all the immovable properties, including any leasehold zights, if any, boil present and future;
- alt tangible movable assets, including moveable plant and machinery, machinery spares, equipment, fools and accessories, Rurniture, fixtures, vehicles and all other movable assets wherever
situated, botl present and future;
- all intangible assets including goodwill, intellectual property rights, underiaking and uncalled capital, both present and future;

- all the Corrent Assets, including but not limited 10, book debis, operating cash flows, Receivables, commissions, revenues of whatsoever nature and whenever arising, both present and future:

- alf aceounts including, the Trust and Retention Account and the Sub-Account(s}), the DSRA, MMRA ar any account created for any reserve to be created and maintained (or any account in
substitution thereaf), or any of the Project Documents or other accounts of the Borrower and all funds from time lo time deposited therein, the receivables and all Permitted Investments or other
securities representing all amounts credited (o the Trust and Retention Account, any letter of credit and other reserves of the Borzower present and future wherever maintained;

(i) assignment (to the extent perinitted under the Applicable Laws) oft
- all (he rights, titles, interests, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever in the Project Docwments/ Contracts {including but not limited to Power Purchase Agreement(s)/ memorandum of

understanding, package/ construction contracts, Q&M related agreements, service contracts, and all other Contracts);
- all the rights, titles, interests, benefits, claims and demands in, to and under alt the Clearances relating to the Project;

- all the rights, titles, interests, licenses, benefits, claims and demands in the Project Documents/ Contracts (including but not limited to package/consimetion contracts, operation and
maintenance contracts, land lease agrecments, service contracts, other Coatracts, memoranduin of understanding, guarantces under the Contracts, PPA(s), any letter of credit or such other
securify to be provided by the procurers of power under the terms of PRA(s)), letter of credits, guarantee, liquidated damages, performance bond and corporate guarantee provided by any party
under any of the Project Decuments, excluding any bank guarantees provided to the Borrower by any party under any of the Contracts; and

(ifi) pledge of $1% (fiy-one percest) of Equity Shares and Quasi Equity, both present and future, held by the Pledgor.
(iv) an irrevocable and unconditional Corporate Guarantee from the holding company for the purpose of repayment/payment of Secured Obligations, tiat shall be released afler compliance of certa in

conditions,




JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts are stated in T lakhs, unless othenwise stated)

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

*For loan in Juniper Green Three Private Limited for 190 MW Project - INR 72,032.91 Iakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 75,252,32 lakhs)

Represenits term loan availed from Power Finance Corporation (“PFC”) in INR specifically for the purpose of setting up 190 MW selar power project in Gujaral which carries interest at 8. 50% per
annum and next reset is on July 15, 2025. The tenn loan is repayble over a tenure of 19 years in monthly instalments starting from 5 January 2023 and ending on 15 December 2041. The term loan
is secured by:

(i) Exclugive First Charge by way of Mortgage over:

- all the immovable properties, including any feaschold rights, if any, both present and future;

- all tangible movable assets, including moveable plant and machinery, machinery spares, equipment, tools and accessories, furniture, fixtures, velicles and all other movable assets wherever situated,
beth present and future;

- afl intangible assets including goodwill, intelectual property rights, undertaking and uncalled capital, both present and future;

+ all the Current Assets, including but niot limited to, book debts, operating cash flows, Receivables, commissions, revenues of whatsoever nafure and whenever arising, both present and future;

- alt accounts of he Borrower, incinding, the Trust and Retention Account and the Sub-Accouni(s), the DSRA of 2 quariers of principal and interest payment, any lester of eredit and any reserve(s) or
any other bank accounts of the Borrower, wherever maintained (or any other account in substitution thereof) {hat may be opened in accordance with the Trust and Retention Account and the
Financing or other Peoject Documents and all funds from time to time deposited therein, the Receivables and all Penmitted Investments or ather securities representing all amounts credited do the

Teust and Retention Accound,

(ii) assignment {10 {he extent permitted under the Applicable Laws) of:

- all he rights, titles, interests, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever in the Project Documents/ Contracts (including but not limited to Power Purchase Agreement{s)¥ memorandum of
understanding, package/ construction contracts, O&M related agreements, service contracts, Insurance contracts & Insuzance proceeds and all other Contracts);

- all the rights, titles, interests, benefits, claims and demands in, 1o and under ali the Clearances relating to the Project;

- all the rights, titfes, interests, licenses, benefits, ciaims and demands in any letter of credits, guarantee, liquidated damages, performance bond and corporate guarantee, bank guarantee (if agreed by
the issuing bank(s)} or any other security provided / to be provided to the Borrower by any party under the Project Documents / Contracts; and

(iii) pledge of specified percentage of Equity Shares and Quasi Equity, both present and future, held by the Pledgor.
(i) an irrevecable and unconditional Corporate Guaraniee from (e holding company for the purpose of repayment/payment of Secured Obligations that shall be released after compliance of eertain

conditions.

*For loan in Junlper Green Field Private Limited for 150 MW Project - INR 60,494.95 lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 62,130.81 lakhs)

Represents term loan availed from Power Finance Corporation (“PFC”) in INR specifically for the purpose of setting up [50 MW solar power project in Maharashira which carries fixed interest rate
of 8.50% starting from August 15, 2022 to July {4, 2025, Fhe term loan is repayble over a tenure of 18 years in monthly installments starting from 14 Avgust 2023 and ending on 14 July 2041 The
term loan is secured by;

(i) Exclusive First Charge by way of Mortgage over:

- all the immovable properties, including any leascho¥d rights, if any, both present and fature;

- all fangible movable assels, including moveable plant and machinery, machinery spares, equipment, tools and accessories, furniture, fistures, velictes and alt other movable assets wherever situated,
beth present and fiture;

- all itangible assets including goodwill, intellectuai property rights, undertaking and uncalfed capital, both present and future;

- ail the Current Assets, inclizding but not Yimited to, baok debts, operating cash flows, Receivables, commissions, revenues of whatsoever nature and whenever ariging, both present and future;

- all accounts includisg, the Trust and Retention Account and the Sub-Account(s), the DSRA or any account created for any reserve to be created and maintained (or any aceount it substitution
thexeof), or any of the Praject Documents or other accounts of he Borrawer and all funds from: time to time deposited therein, the Receivables and all Penmitted Investments or other securities
representing all amounts credited to the Trust and Retentien Account;

(it) assignment (to the extent permitted under the Applicable Laws) of:
- alt the righls, titles, interests, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever in the Project Documents/ Contracts (including but not limited f0 Power Purchase Agreement(s) memorandum of
understanding, package/ construction contracts, O&M related agreements, service contracts, Insurance eoniracts & Insurance proceeds and all other Contracts);

- all the rights, titles, interests, benefits, claims and demands in, to and under ali the Clearances relating to the Praject;
- all the rights, titles, interests, Heenses, benefits, claims and demands in any leiter of credits, guarantes, liquidated damages, performance bond and corporale guarantee, bank guarantee {ifagreed by
the issuing bank(s)) or any other security provided / to be provided to the Borrower by any party under the Project Documents / Contracts; and

(i) pledge of specified percantage of Equity Shares and Quasi Equity, both present and future, held by the Pledgor,
{iv) an irrevocable and unconditional Corporate Guaraatee from the holding company for the purpose of repayment/payinent of Secured Obligations, that shall be released afler compliance of certain
comditions.

*For loan in Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited for 75 MW Project - March 31, 2024; of INR 14,711,98 lakhs (Murch 31, 2023: INR nil 1akhs)

Tern Joan represents tern loan taken from Indian Renewable Energy Development Agency (“IREDA”) in INR specifieally for the purpose of setting up 75 MW solar power project in Maharashtra
which carries net inferest rate of 9.40% per anmua. Interest shall be subjected to reset on commissioning of the project os | year from the date of first disbursement, whichever is earlier and thereafier
every year interest rate will be reset. The loan shall be repaid over a fenure of 19 years in quarterly instalments starting from 30 Jun 2025 and ending on 31 March 2044,

Charge on solar project by way of morigage on alt immovable properties (owned and/or leased) together with atl structures and appurtenances thereon, present and futuse, of the borrower pertaining
te the projeet;

Charge on sofar projeci by way of hypothecation on all the movable assets including movable plant and machinery, spares, toals, accessories, fumiture, fixtures, vehicles, and other movable assels,
present and fizture, of the Bomower, peraining to the Project;

Charge on book debts, operating cash flows, receivables, commissions, revenue of whatsoever nature and wherever anising, present and future, of the Borrower, pertaining te the Project

Charge on intangible assets of the Botrower including but not limited to the goodwill, underiaking and uncalled capital, present and future, of the Borrower, pertaining to the Project.

Charge on all the bank accounts of the borrower, pertaining 1o 1he project, including but not limited fo Debt services Reserve Account (DSRA) created in the fonn of FD/ irrevocable BG, lo service
the interest paywment and priacipat repayment under 1he facility.

Corporate Guarantee of holding Comipany, Juniper Green Energy Pvi Lid which shall be released upon compliance of the certain conditions.

Pledge of 76% of the Equity/OCDs/NCDs in the project dilk the tenure of IREDA loan

Charge on cash flow of 30 MW solar power project of M/s. Juniper Green Energy Pvt. Lid. tilk achieving the successfitl commissioning on or before 31.03.2024 or any extended date with regards to
exemption from the requirement of procuring Solar PV modules from ALMM comnmunicated be MNRE, whichever iater,

Assignment by way of indenture of morigage of the following:

(i} All the rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever nfthe Bomower's project contract assignable by the borrawer;

(i7) Subject to Applicable Law, aH the rights, titl, inferest, benefits, clalms an i eum_ndsgvhatsoever of the Borrower in the Clearances pertaining to the project; and
(iiiy All insurance contracts and insurance proceeds. Tl




JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Nutes to canselidated financhal statements for the year ended hiarch 31, 2024
(All amounts are stated in 2 lakhs, unless othenvise slated)

Particulars March 31,2024  March 3§, 2023

*For loan in Juniper Green Beam Private Limited for 69,30 MW Project - INR 34,758.71 lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR nil lakhs)

Term loan taken from Power Finance Corporatien (*PFC”) in INR specifically for the purpose of setting up 69.30 MW solar power project in Gujarat which carries interest rate of 9.20% per annum
with annual reset . The tenn loan skall be repaid starting from 1 July 2025 and ending on | December 2042,

A first charge by way of:

- morigage over all inmovable properties (including over ihe frechold interest, leasehold interest or sub-leasehold interest of the Berrower its such properties immovable) together with all
appurienances thereon, boll present and future;

- hypothecation, on all the Borrower’s movable properties and assets, including plant and machinery, machinery spares, equipment, tools and accessories, fumiture, fixtures, vehicles and all other
movable assets wherever situated, both present and future;

- all the Borrower's Current Assets, including but not Jimited to, book debts, operating cash flows, uncalled capital, Receivables, commissionts, Tevene of whatsoever nature and wherever arising,
both present and futare

- all accounts of the Borrowet, including, the Trust and Retention Account and the Sub-Account(s), the DSRA or any account created for any reserve(s) fo be created and maintained {or any account
in substitution thereof} that may be opened in accordance with the Trust and Retention Account Agreentend and the Financing Dacuments, or any of the other Project Documents and all funds from
{ime to time deposited therein, the Receivables and all Permitted Investments or other securities representing all amounts credited to the Trust and Retention Account, any letter of eredit and other
reserves and any other bank accounds of {lie Borrower present and fisture wherever maintained

Assignment in favour of the Lender/ Security Trustee, on the following:

- all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Borrower in the Projeet Docwnents (and shall include amendments or modifications to such Project Decuments, i any)
duly acknowledged and consented to by the relevant counter parties to such Projec! Documents (except assignment of conmection/connectivity agreement with STU);

- the right, title and interest of the Bomrower in, to and under all the Clearances (and shalt include amendments or modifications to such Clearances, if any);

- all the rights, tilles, interests, ticenses, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Borrawer in any lelter of credit, guarantee, perfornance bond, corporate guarantee, bank guarantee (and shall
include amendments or modifications hereto, if any) provided by any Project Participant (except for assinments of performance bank guarantees (PBGs) as received under the contract(s} having
contract value of less than Rs, 1 Crore, with cumulative conleact(s) value of not more than 5% of the Project Cost in ine with the following condition:

- assign performance bank guarantees (PBGs) as received under the contraci(s) having contract value of more than Rs. One (i) crare. Further, the cumulative value of contracts where
assignment/submission of bank guaranice not assigned/submitied shall not be more than 5% (five percent) of total Project Cost. Fusther, out of these contracts where assigninent of PBG is not
possible due to whatever reason, following shalt be ensured by the Borrower

- The bank guarantees submitted under the contract(s) (which have not been assigned to PFC, for whatsoever reason) shall be deposited with Lender.

Borrower shall exceute power of attorney whereby the Borrower's rights to invoke the Performance bank guarantee (in the event of default on the specified milestone / parameter) shall be
unconditionally transferred 1o Lender.

EPC Contract / major package contract shall expressly include provisions to enable the (i) and (ji} above or Borrower shail submit an acknowledpment/ confirmation from the respective contractor
under contract(s) with respect to (i) and (i) above, through a separate letter,

Pledge of specified percantage of Equity Shares and Quasi Equity, both present and future, held by the Pledgor.

Aun irrevocable and unconditional Corporate Guarantee from the Guarantor (JGEPL) for the pumpose of repayment/payment of Secured Obligations and (he same shali be released after compliance of
certain conditions.

1% Provisions
Non-current

Provision for gratuity (refer note 40} 3E8.82 24718
Drecommissioning provision (refer note 34B(1)) 766,54 707,27
Total 1,085.36 65445
20 Borrowings
Current
Secured
Buyers credit / suppliers eredit* 16,772.26 4,126.80
Current maturites of long term loasis 9,370.95 §,197.16
Total 26,143,121 12,323.96

*For buyers credit in Juniper Green Three Private Limited - INR Nil takhs (March 31, 2023: INR 1,297.54 lakhs)

Buyer's credit was availed by the Company (against the Letter of eredit issued by Indusind Bank Limited} from Union Bank of India - Pubai, which was repaid during the year. Interest on
Buyer's credit was 4.06% per annuin.

*For buyers credit in Juniper Green Fietd Private Limited - INR 2,869.07 Inkhs (March 31, 2023: INR 2,829.26 Iakhs)

Buyer’s Credil availed by the Company (secured against the Letter of credit issued by Indusind Bank Limited) from State Bank of India, Istael and Bank of India, NewYork repayable on April
15, 2024 and May 22, 2024 with interest rate of 5.755% and 5.75% per annum respectively.

*For buyers credit and supplier’s eredit in Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited -~ INR 13,903.19 lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR nil lakhs)

Buyer's Credit availed by fhe Company (secured against the Letter of credit issued by Indusind Bank Limited} fom SBI, Chicago repayable on befween June 28, 2024 to July 05, 2024 with

interest ranging from 5.57%-5.5%% per annim.
Supplier’s Credit availed by the Company (secured against the Letter of credil issued by Indusind Bank Limited) from UCO Bank, Singapore repayable on September 25, 2024 with interest

ranging from 5.37%-5.75% per anowm,




JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes (o consofidated financial statements for the year ended March 3, 2024
(Alt amounts are stated in  lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
21 ‘frade payables
- Totak outstanding dues of micro and smalt eaterprises 178.34 148.62
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 721.48 552,05
Total 901.82 700,67
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled 0-90 days terms.
Trade Payables Ageing Schedule
As at 31 March 2024
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Unbilled  Less than 1 L2 yenrs  2-3 yoars More than 3 Total
Payables year Years
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - £71.i6 6.97 - 0. 178.34
Tolal cutstandiag dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 3006.16 339,70 8.93 .17 7.52 723,48
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and smail enterprises - - - - - -
Disputed dues of creditors ather than micro emterprises and small enterprises - - - - - -
Total 366.16 510.86 15.90 1.17 7.73 901.82
As at 31 March 2023
Qutstanding for follewing periods from due date of payment
Particulars Unbilled  Less than 1 12 yers 2-3 years More than 3 Total
Payables year Years
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - 148.62 - . - 148,62
“Total outstanding dues of creditors other {han micro enterprises and small enterprises 298.61 244,65 2.05 6,52 0.22 552.05
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - -
Disputed dues of creditors other fhan micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - -
Total 298.61 393.27 205 6.52 0.22 700,67
22 Other current financial liabilities
Payable for purchase of Property, plant and equipment (include INR 2,219.07 lakhs (March 31, 20.315.65 1.980.90
2023: INR 913,80 lakhs payable to micro and small eaterprises, refer note 35)) e e
Retention money payable {includes ENR 1,586,59 lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 1,394.06 lakhs}
. . 2,745.05 2,415.35
payable to micro and small enferprises, refer note 35))
Interest aceried but not due on Buyers credit 304.40 12.55
Interest accrued but not due on term loan 465,03 687.60
Derivative liability* 89.58 -
Employee related liabilities 38114 211.99
Other labilities 0.20 1.19
Fotal 24.501,14 5,269,58
*Derivative instruments at fair value through OC1 reflects the change in fair value of forcign exchange forward contracts, designated as cash flow hedges to hedge payments for procurement of
property, plant & equipment / highly probable forecast payments for procurement of property, plant & equipment by the Group in foreign currency,
23 Other current lisbilities
Stakutory dues 881.46 253.27
Total 881,46 253,27
24 Provisions
Current
Provision for gratuity (refer note 40) 8,96 141
Provision for compensated absences 244.68 194,50
Total 253.64 195.91
25 Current tax labilitics (net)
Provisian for income fax {net of advance tax amounting to INR 412.83 lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 2,06 lakhs)] 262.53 3.10
262,53 kAL

Total




JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Nates to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

. For the year ended Tor the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
26 Revenue from operations
Revenue from contract with customers
Sale of Power 38,246.54 32,367.38
Less: Rebate and reactive charges {204.43) {310.36)
Sate of Voluntary Emission Reductions (VERs) 1,172.86 1,073.66
Total 39,154.97 33,130.68
27 Othey income
Interest inconte on
Fixed deposits 2,762.17 2,320.36
Income tax refund 10.60 8.82
Security deposit 13.04 7.81
Profit on disposal of Property, plant and equipment 0.08 -
Profit on redemption of mutual fund 401.50 86.60
Nel gain on investment in Mutual Fund measured at fair value through profit & loss 30.09 8.75
Interest rate swap gain - 631.32
Foreign exchange gain {net) 5.66 14.02
Other miscellaneous income 66.54 40.21
Total 3,289.68 3,117.89
28 Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 1,130.7¢ 2,478.54
Contribution to provident and other funds 74.43 157.66
Gratuity expense 3446 47.96
Leave encashment 21.11 64,87
Staff welfare expenses 152.23 160.84
Total 1,413.02 2,909.87
29 Finance cost
Interest on loan from financial institutions 17,561.94 15,064.65
Interest on buyer's credit 260.40 792.94
Inferest on bank overdraft - 3.88
Interest expense on Jease liabilities 1,006.30 922.54
Interest expense on decommissioning labilities 60.62 60.68
Other borrowing cost (bank guarantee, hedging cost and other charges) 230.37 2,993.90

Total 19,119.63 19,838.59




JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

. Tor the year ended flor the year ended

Particulars Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

30 Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation of property plant and equipment {refer note 3) 11,599.90 10,425.51
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 5) 21.29 17.08
Amortisation of Right to use assets {refer note 4) 1,094.24 743.56
Less: capitalised during the year (500.16) (180.35)
Total 12,215.27 11,005.80

31 Other expenses
Insurance 52132 534.84
Legal and professional expenses 405.16 514.27
Operational expenses 70048 475.46
Security expenses 542.20 404,73
Travelling and conveyance 210.15 355.62
Electricity charges 238.56 211,52
Office expenses 48.49 211.36
Rates and {axes 547.25 187.62
DSM and Forecasting charges i73.37 129.10
Bid application & processing fees 41.29 83.33
Payment to auditors {Note-1) 63.58 71.25
Rent and Lease expenses 16.87 75.19
Subscription and membership fee 40,37 47.13
Liquidated Damges Charges - 3728
Communication expenses 17.64 35.94
CSR expenditure {Note - 2} 54,23 31.78
Conneclivity Application fee 112 27.66
VER Issuance expenses 99.45 25.18
Misceblaneous expenses 45,12 19.82
Repair and mmaindenance {others) 1,14 12.11
Printing and stationery 1,14 11.22
Foreign exchange loss (net) - £.59
Donation - 0.03
Website maintenance charges 346 -
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 35.74 -
Loss on termination of lease 138,98 -
Total 3,947.11 3.510.03
Note - 1
Payment te auditors comprises fee (Inclusive of GST)
Audit fee 32.05 41,09
Tax Audit 8.85 7.90
In other capacity
Other services {group reporting, tax audit & certification fee) 19.73 25.18
Reimbursement of expenses 2.95 3.08
Total 63,58 71.25
Note - 2
Detaiis of CSR expenditure
a) 'Gross amount required to be spent by the Group for the year 5229 30.50

b) Amount spent in cash during the year on
i) Construction/acquisition of any asset -
ii) On purposes other than (i) above* 5423 42,04
*FY 2022-23 spent amount includes INR 10,23 lakhs being C8R obligation for FY 2021-22

¢) Details refated to unspent obligations:
1) Construction/acquisition of any asset -
iiy On purposes other than (i) above -

Excess amount spent under section 135(5)

p

Amount required to be | Amount spent during

spent during the year the year Closing Balance

Opening Balance

(1.22) 52,29 54.23 (3.16)




JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to consolidated financinl statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

Tor the year ended

'ticul
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
32 Income tax expenses

{(a) Income tax expense reported in the siatement of profit or loss comprises:

Current tax 675.07 5.18

Adjustiment in respect of current income tax of previous years 0.37 121

Deferred tax charge 1,067.63 183.69

Income tax expense reporied in the statement of profit and loss 1,743.07 190.08

(b} Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

Net (gain)/loss on revaluation of cash flow hedges (11.72) (66.97)

Net gain on remeasurement of defined bencfit plans (3.11) 2.93

Total (14.83) {64.04)

{c) Reconciliation of tax expenses and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate :

Accounting profit/(loss) before income tax 5,749.62 (1,015.72)

Applicable statutory income tax rate 17.16%-26,00% 17.16%-26.00%
1,578.59 98.14

Adjustments for :

Expenses not allowed under Income Tax Act / allowable on payment basis 183,21 93.17

Others (including consolidation adjustments) {18.73} (1.23)

Total Tax 1,743,067 190,08




Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

33. Earnings Per Share (EPS):

34.

Earnings per share is determined based on the net profit attributable to the shareholders of the Company. Basic earnings per
share is computed using the weighted-average number of shares calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

The following data reflects the inputs to calculation of basics and diluted EPS:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Net profit/(loss) as per statement of profit and loss for calculation of

basic EPS and dilutive EPS 4,006.55 (1,205.80)
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating basic/diluted 1,92,14,987 1,38,07,243
EPS

Nominal value per share () 10,00 10.00
Basic & Diluted earnings/(foss) per share (%) 26.85 (8.73)

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities, Uncertainty abouf these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment fo the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Other disclosures relating to the Group’s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:
+ Capital management (Refer Note - 43)

+ Financial risk management objectives and policies (Refer Note -45)

» Sensitivity analyses disclosures (Refer Note - 45)

A, Judgments
In the process of applying the Group accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Group as a lessee:

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option
to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if'it is
reasonably certain not o be exercised.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group applies judgement in
evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease, That is, it
considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the
commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is
within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of
significant leasehold improvements or significant customization to the leased asset). Refer to Note 41 for information on
potential future rental payments relating to periods following the exercise date of extension and termination options that are
not included in the fease term.




Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

B. Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrving amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
are described below, The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements
were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market
changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they

accur.

a) Impairment of non-financial assets
The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors
which could result in deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

b) Taxes:

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an assessment of
the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

Recognition of deferred tax liability on undistributed profits — The extent to which the Holding Company can control the
timing of reversal of deferred tax liability on undistributed profits of its subsidiaries requires judgement.

¢) Defined benefits plan (Gratuity)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ froin actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexity of the
valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

d) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on
quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs
to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is
required in establishing fair values.

Assumptions include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility, Changes in assumptions about
these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

¢) Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate
(IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar
term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group ‘would have to pay’, which requires estimation when no
observable rates are available, The Group estimates the IBR as rate at which the borrowing is availed during the year.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
are described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements
were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market
changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they

occur.




Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

35,

f) Provision for decommissioning

As part of the identification and measurement of assets and liabilities for the commissioned 635 MW solar projects in
Maharashtra and Gujarat, the Group has recognised a provision amounting to INR 766.54 lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 707.26
lakhs) for decommissioning obligations associated with projects constructed on freehold land. In determining the fair value of
the provision, assumptions and estimates are made in relation to discount rates, inflation, the expected cost to dismantle and
remove the plant from the site and the expected timing of those costs, The Group estimates that the costs would be realised
upon the expiration of the PPA’s term. The provision is based upon current cost estimates and has been determined on a
discounted basis by using incremental rate of long borrowing and rate of inflation basis on industry practice. The timing and
amount of future expenditures are reviewed annually, together with rate of inflation for escalation of current cost estimates
and the interest rate used in discounting the cash flows.

The Micro and Small Enterprises have been identified by management from the available information, which has been relied
upon by the auditors. On the basis of the information and records available with the management, outstanding dues to the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are as follows,

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
The prmclipal amount and the interest du.c therf:(_)n remaining unpaid to 3,984.00 2.456.48
any supplier as at the end of each accounting year*
Principal amount due fo micro and small enterprises™ 3,984.00 2,456.48
Interest due on above Nil Nil
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the
MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the Nil Nil
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the Nil Nil
year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act
2006. .
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each Nl Nil
accounting year
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, unti! such date when the interest dues as above are . .

\ . . Nil Nil
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

*The amount of principle and interest is not due to micro and small enterprises vendors as per the ferms of agreement entered into with

such vendors.




Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

36. Group Information
Consolidated financial statetnent comprises the financial statement of Juniper Green energy Private Limited, its subsidiaries

as listed below: -

Proportion of Proportion of
5. Rt | theownery | thaertp. | Prinple e o
31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023

1 Orange Gadag Wind Power Private Limited Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
2 Nisagra Renewable Energy Private Limited Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
3 Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
4 Juniper Green Field Private Limited Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
5 Juniper Green Three Private Limited Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
6 Juniper Green Gem Private Limited*® Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
7 Juniper Green Beam Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
8 Juniper Green Stellar Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
9 Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
10 | Juniper Green Beta Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
11 Juniper Green Transmission Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
12 | Juniper Green Kite Private Limited Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
£3 Juniper Green Infinite Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
14 | Juniper Green Power Five Private Limited Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
15 Juniper Green Sigma Six Private Limited Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
16 | Juniper Green India Eight Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
17 Juniper Green Alpha Three Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
18 | Juniper Green Theta Five Private Limited™* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
19 | Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
20 { Juniper Green Gamma Two Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.60% 100.00% India
21 Juniper Green Beta Six Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
22 | Juniper Green ETA Five Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
23 | Juniper Green Ray Two Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
24 i Juniper Green Beam Eight Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
25 | Juniper Green Beam Six Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
26 | Juniper Green Spark Four Private Limited*® Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
27 | Juniper Green Light Ten Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
28 | Juniper Green Ray One Private Limited*® Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
20 | Juniper Green India Alpha Private Limited*® Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
30 | Juniper Green Spark Ten Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
3l Juniper Green Light Four Private Limited*® Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
32 | Juniper Green India Six Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
33 | Juniper Green Sigma Eight Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India
34 | Juniper Nirjara Energy Private Limited */*¥ Subsidiary 100.00% - India

* During the year, the Holding Company has further invested in equity shares and holds 100% shares of the entity,
*% During the year, the Holding Company has acquired Juniper Nirjara Energy Private Limited w.e.f, 23 June 2023 (refer

note 38).




Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

37. Related Party Transactions
A) Name of related parties and related parties relationship —

Relationship with the
Company

Names of Related Parties

Ultimate Holding Company

AT Holdings Pte Ltd

Holding Comparny

Juniper Renewable Holdings Pte, Ltd.

Key Management Personnel
(including Key Management

Arvind Tiku, Director

Hemant Tikoo, Director

Sanjay Bakliwal, Director
Naresh Mansukhani, Wholetime Director
Parag Agrawal, Wholetime Director

Personnel of subsidiary
companies)

Devendra Singh, Director (up to 29th April 2024)
Ankush Malik, Director, Wholetime Director (w.e.f. 30th April 2024}
Prashant Pandia, Company Secretary

B) Transactions with Related Parties —

. Hokling Company Key Management Personnel

Particulnrs
31-Mar-24 | 31-Mar-2d 3Mar24 | 31-Mar-23

Issue of Equity Shares (Including share premiom)
Juniper Renewable Holdings Pte. Ltd. | 75,794.39 I - | - ! -
Share applieation money pending allotment
Juniper Renewable Holdings Pte. Lid. | 15,000.00 ! - | - I -
Salary and other benefits#
Naresh Mansukhani - - 205.27 201.25
Parag Agrawal - - 138.00 135,70
Devendra Singh - - 123.53 125.27
Ankush Malik - - 106.314 105.00
Prashant Pandia - - 3275 26.95

# Post-cmployment benefits and other long term employee benefits are actuatiatly detesmined on overall basis and hence, not separately provided.

C) Balances Outstanding as at year end: check
Particulars . March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Nil Nil Nil

D) Juniper Renewable Holdings Pte. Ltd. has given Corporate Guarantee against borrowing taken by the Group amounting to
INR 12,100.00 lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 12,100.00 lakhs) .

38. During the current year, the Company has acquired 100 per cent equity shares of Juniper Nirjara Energy Private Limited
(formerly Sprng Nirjara Energy Private Limited), for purchase consideration of INR 430.12 lakhs and subsequently invested
equity of INR 785.00 lakhs. Based on evaluation of the guidance on definition of business under IND AS, the management
has classified the said acquisition as asset acquisition.

39, Commitments and Contingencies
(a) Operating Lease
Refer note 41 for lease related commitments,

(b) Capital commitments
Group has Z 1,94,619.37 Lakhs capital commitment as on March 31,2024 (net off advances); (March 31, 2023: T2 697.96
Lakhs).
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(c)

Contingent Liabilities

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Performance Bank Guarantee issued by bank* 31,622.50 1,767.50
Bid Bond Bank Guarantees issued by bank 30,058.20 5,575.00
DSRA Bank Guarantee issued by bank™* 3,350.40 2,362.00
Bank Guarantee issued by bank**# 8,830.00 821.50
Others - 2.55
Total 73,861.10 10,528,55

* Issued by Bank in favor of DISCOM.

## Tssued by Bank in favor of Indian Renewable Energy Development Agency and Catalyst Trusteeship (on behalf of
Project Lender - India Infra Debt Limited).

#*+ Tssued by Bank in favor of Central Transmission Utility of India Ltd.

40. Employee Benefit

(a)

(b)

Defined contribution plan

The Group makes contribution towards provident fund to a defined condribution retirement benefit plan for qualifying
employees. The Group's contribution to the Employee Provident Fund is deposited with the Regional Provident Fund
Comnissioner.

During the year Group has recognized the following amounts in the statement of profits and loss / capitalized under project
cost / capital work in progress.

Particulars March 31,2024 | March 3%, 2023
Employers® contribution to employee’s provident Fund

(includes Rs. 202,47 lakhs during the current year, previous year Rs. 276.50 213.94
56.28 Lakhs, capitalized under project cost / capital work in progress)

Defined benefit plan

Gratuity and other post-employment benefits

The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a
gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. These benefits are unfunded,
and Group provides for Hability in its books of accounts based on the actuarial valuations.

Risks associated with Gratuity plan provisions
The Group is exposed to number of risks in the defined benefit plans, Most significant risks pertaining to defined benefit
plans and management’s estimation of the impact of these risks are as follows:

Salary growth risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is caloulated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants.
An increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan liability.

Inferest rate risk
A decrease in interest rate in future years will increase the plan liability

Life expectancy risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of mortality of plan
participants both during and at the end of the employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will
increase the plan liability.

Withdrawals Risk
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Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent

valuations can impact the plan Hability,

The following tables summaries the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement profit and loss account

and the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet.

Employee benefit expenses recognised in statement of profits and Eoss / under project cost capital work in progress

(recognised in employee cost)

Particulars Gratuity
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current service cost 120.28 57.73
Interest cost on benefit liability 17.52 12.28
Actuarjal(gain) / loss recognized in the year (35.86) -
Benefit expense recognized in statement of profit and loss 34,46 47.96
Benefit expense capitalized under project cost / capital work in 67.48 22.05
progress
Employee benefit expenses recognized in Other Comprehensive Income
i ] Gratuity
Particulars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Actuarial(gain) / loss recognized in the year (15.87) 16.78
Components. of .deﬁned benefit costs recognised in other (15.87) 16.78
comprehensive income
Balance Sheet:
Gratuity
Particul
articulars March 31, 2024 | March 31,2023
Present value of defined benefit obligation 327.78 248.59
Total 327.78 248.59
Changes in the present value of the defined henefit obligation are as follows:
Gratuity
Particul ;
artientars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Present value of abligation as at the beginning 248.59 161.81
Current service cost 120.28 57.72
Interest cost 17.52 12.28
Re-measurement {or Actuarial) {gain) / loss (51.73) 16.78
Others (including payments) (6.88) -
Present Value of Obligation as at the end 327.78 248.59
Current Liability (Short term) 8.96 141
Non-Current Liability (Long term} 318.82 247.18

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity benefit obligation for the Group’s plans are shown below:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Discount rate 7.55% 7.53%
Employee turnover rate 5.00% 5.00%
Salary escalation rate 10.00% 10.00%

The estimate of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion

and other relevant factars, such as supply and demand in the employment market.
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These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuarial appraisers. Discount
factors are determined close to each year-end by reference to government bonds of relevant economic markets and that
have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Other assumptions are based on management’s
historical experience.

As the Group does not have any plan assets, the movement of present value of defined benefit obligation and fair value
of plan assets has not been presented.

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions are as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

a) Impact of the change in discount rate

Present value of obligation at the end of the year
a) Impact due to increase of 1% (36.11) (27.65)
b) Impact due to decrease of 1% 43.32 33.20

b) Impact of the change in salary increase

Present value of obligation at the end of the year
a) | Impact due to increase of 1% . 28.83 22.56
b} | Impact due to decrease of 1% (26.38) (20.46)

¢) Impact of the change in attrition rate

Present value of obligation at the end of the year

a) Impact due to increase of 1% (7.75) (6.49)

b) Impact due to decrease of 1% 8.76 7.27

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit

obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions oeccutring at the end of the reporting period.

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawal are not material and hence impact of change not calculated.
Weightage average duration of gratuity plan is — ranging from 15.99 years — 18.77 years (March 31, 2022: 18.20 years)

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Particular March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 8.96 1.41
Between 2 and 5 years 45.65 20.22
Between 6 and 10 years 44.49 13.00
Bevond 10 years 228.68 213.96

41. Leases:
The Group has lease contracts for leasehold properties used in its operations. These lease contracts generally have lease terms
ranging from 3 years to 29 years and 11 months,

The Group has also certain leases with lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low value assets. The Group applies the
'short term lease' and 'leases of low value assets’ recognition exemptions for these leases.
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a) Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:

Particulars Leaschold Land Building Total

Net Balance as at March 31, 2022 12,924.14 78.98 13,003.12
Additions during the year 10,534.76 - 10,534.76
Depreciation for the year (712.64) (30.92) (743.56)
Adjustment during the year 123.58 - 123.58
Balance as at March 31, 2023 22,869.84 48.06 22,917.90
Additions during the year 8,975.79 67.19 9,042.98
Depreciation for the year {1,064.90) (29.34) (1,094.24)
Disposal during the year (902.01) (48.06) (950.07)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 29.878.72 37.85 29,916.57

b) Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities recognised and the movements during the year:

Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Balance as at the beginning of the year 19,726.65 10,607.27
On Leases comumitted during the year 9,042.98 10,534.76
Accretion of interests 1,905.14 1,242.83
On acquisition of subsidiary 10.65 -
Payments (3,268.11) (2,781.79)
Lease termination and others {896.10) 123.58
Balance as at the end of the year 26,521.21 19,726.65
Current 683.50 453.50
Non-current 25,837.71 19,273.15

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities are disclosed in Note 45.
The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is ranging from 8.10 % to 11.08% with maturity ranging from year 2054,

As part of the identification and measurement of assets and liabilities for the commissioned 635 MW solar project in
Maharashtra and Gujarat the Group has recognised a provision amounting to INR 4,278.30 fakhs (March 31, 2023: INR
3,680.48 lakhs) for decommissioning obligations associated with projects constructed on leased land. In determining the fair
value of the provision, assumptions and estimates are made in relation to discount rates, inflation, the expected cost to
dismantle and remove the plant from the site and the expected timing of those costs. The Group estimates that the costs would
be realised upon the expiration of the PPA’s term. The provision is based upon current cost estimates and has been determined
on a discounted basis by using incremental rate of long borrowing and rate of inflation basis on industry practice. The timing
and amoun! of future expenditures are reviewed annually, together with rate of inflation for escalation of current cost estimates
and the interest rate used in discounting the cash flows,

¢) The following are the amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss:

Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 624.92 570.89
Interest expense on lease liabilities 1006.30 922.54
Expenses related to short term Jeases 271.89 215.01
Expenses relating to leases of Low value agsets - 2.46
Total amount recognised in the profit or loss for the year 1,903.11 1,710.90
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d) The following are the amounts capitalised in Project cost / Capital Work in Progress:

Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2623
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 469.32 172.67
Interest expense on lease liabilities 898.84 320.29
Expenses related to short term leases 230.81 66.98
Total amount capitalised in Project cost / Capital Work in Progress 1,598.97 559.94

Total Group's total cash outflow for leases (including for short term and leases of low value assets) for the year ended March
31, 2024 is INR 3,770.81 Lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 3,066.24 Lakhs).

42. Operating Segment:
The Group is primarily in the business of sale of power and establishing, commissioning, setting up, operating and maintaining
power peneration using renewable power plants within India. Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) reviews the financial
information of the Group as a whole for decision-making and accordingly the Group has a single reportable segment. Further,
the operations of the Company are limited within one geographical segment. Hence, no further disclosure is required to be
made.
43. Capital management
For the purpose of the Group capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity
reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Group capital management is to maximize
the shareholder value.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares, The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by total capital plus net debt, The Group includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade
and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents.

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Borrowings 2,67,170.04 2,13,337.81
Add: Trade payables 901.82 700.67
Add: Other current financial liabilities 24,501.14 5,369.58
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 2,207.24 4,754.86
Net debts (A) 2,90,365.76 2,14,653.20
Total Equity (B) 1,73,167.88 78,297.65
Capital and net debt (C=A+B) 4,63,533.64 2,92,950.85
Gearing ratio (%) (D=A/C) 62.64% 73.27%

In order the achieve this overall objective, the capital management of the Group, amongst other things, aims to ensure that
they meet financials convents attached to interest -bearing loans and borrowings that define the capital structure requirements.
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44, Fair value and Fair Value hierarchy

a. Fair value

The following table shows the comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of Group’s financial assets, other
than those with carrying amount that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

Particulars Carrying Value | Carvying Value Fair value Fair value
March 31, 2024 | March 31,2023 | March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Trade receivables 6,288.78 5,026,04 6,288.78 - 5,026.04

Cash & cash equivalent 2,207.24 4,754.86 2,207.24 4,754.86

Other Bank Balances 83,550.22 13,254,16 83,550.22 13,254.16

Other financial assets 2,732.79 1,368.92 2,732.79 1,368.92

Security deposit 968.2 739.23 968.2 739,23

Financial assets measured at fair value through Profit

and loss

Investment in Mutual fund - Quoted 8,202.81 1,960.10 8,202.81 1,960.10

Financial assets measured at fair value through OCY

Derivative assets - 8.13 - 8.13

FINANCIAL LIBILITES

Financial linbilities measured at fair value through OCI

Derivative Liabilities 89.58 - 89.58 -

Financial linbilities measured at amortised cost

Borrowings 267,170.04 213,337.81 267,170.04 213,337.81

Lease Liabilities 26,521.21 19,726.65 26,521.21 19,726.65

Trade Payable 901.82 700.67 901.82 700.67

Other current financial liabilities 24.411.,56 5,369.58 24.411.56 5,369.58

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, other current financial assets,
trade payables and other current financial liabilities (except Forward Contract Payable) approximate their carrying amounts
largely due to the shorl-term maturities of these instruments

The fair value of financials assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instruments could be exchange in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale, The following method and assumptions
were used to estimate the fair value:

Quoted investment in mutual fund - The fair values of the mutual funds are derived from quoted market prices in active
markets.

Other-The fair value of remaining financial instruments is determined by using discounted cash flow model.

Perivative Liabilities- For hedge related effectiveness review and related valuation, details are presented in note 46,

b, Fair Value hierarchy
The judgement and estimates made in determining the fair value of the financial instruments that are (a) recognized at fair
value and (b) measured at amortized cost and for which fair value are disclosed in the financial statements, To provide an
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indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has classified its financial instruments
into the three levels prescribed under accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows under the table,

All assets and fiabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statement are categorized with in the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on lowest level input that is significant to the fair vaiue measurement as a whole:
Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) market price in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 Valuation technique for which the lowest level input that significant to the fair value measurement is unobsetvable
Level 3 Valuation technique for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in unobservable

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liability as on March 31, 2024:

) Date of Eg;:::;:‘ Significant | Significant
Particulars . Total . observable | unobservable
Valuation active . .
markets inputs inputs
{Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3)
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss
Investment in mutual fund — quoted March 31, 2024 8,202.81 8,202.81 - -
Financial assets measured at fair value through OCI
Derivative Assets March 31, 2024 - - - -
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities measured at fair value through OCI
DPerivative Liabilities March 31, 2024 89.58 - 89.58 -

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liability as on March 31, 2023:

Date of IS::T:::‘ Significant Significant
Particulars X Total observable | unobservable
Yaluation active . .

markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Financia) assets measured at fair value through profit and loss
Investment in mutual fund — quoted March 31, 2023 1,960.10 1,960.10 - -
Financial assets measured at fair value through OCI
Derivative Assets March 31, 2023 8.13 - 8.13 -
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Financiat Liabilities measured at fair value through OC1
Derivative Liabilities March 31, 2023 - - . -

There have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 for the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,

45, Financial risk management objective and policies

The Group principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these
financial liabilities is to finance and support the Group operations, The Group principal financial assets comprise investments,
cash and bank balance, trade and other receivables that derive directly from its operations.

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s senior management oversees the management
of these risks. The Group’s senior management is supported by a financial risk committee that advises on financial risks and
the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Group. The financial risk committee provides assurance to the
Group’s senior management that the Group’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and
that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group’s policies and risk objectives, It is the
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Group’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarized below:

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading
to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from their operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its
financing activities, including deposits with banks and other financial instraments.

The Group assesses and manages credit risk of financial assets based on following categories arrived on the basis of
assumptions, inputs and factors specific to the class of financial assets. Low credit risk - Cash and cash equivalents, other bank
balances, investiments, loans, trade receivables and other financial assets. Moderate credit risk / High credit risk - Loans and
other financial assets. Provision for expected credit loss is based on 12 month expected credit loss/lifetime expected credit loss.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances is limited as the Group generally invests in deposits with
financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by credit rating agencies. Investments primarily include investment in
liquid mutual fund units, The loans primarily represent security deposits given for office premises. Such deposit will be returned
to the Group on return of premises as per the contract. The credit risk associated with such security deposits is relatively low.
Loan to related parties given for business purpose and moderate risk associated.

The maximum exposure to credit risks is represented by the total carrying amount of these financial assets in the consolidated
Balance Sheet

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Trade receivables 6,288.78 5,026.04
Security deposits 968.20 739.23
Other financial assets 2,732,779 1,368.92
Other Bank Balances 83,550.22 13,254.16
Investments 8,202.81 1,960.10

The Group uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The Group uses a provision matrix 1o
compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables,

(i) Liguidity risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking facilities, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities for the Group.

The Group has established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for it’s short-term, medium term and long-
term funding requirement.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The contractual cash flow
amounts are gross and undiscounted, and includes interest accrued but not due on borrowings.

Contractual cash flows
March 31, 2024 Carrying On Less than | etweenone | More
amount and five than five Total
Demand one year
years years
Borrowings* 267,170.04 - 49.374.52 128,135.40 | 285,482.48 | 462,992.40
Lease Liability 26,521.21 - 252767 724735 ‘78829.65 88,604.67
Trade payables 901.82 - 901.82 - - 201.82
Other current financial 24,411.56 “ 24,411.56 - - 24,411.56
liabilities
Total 319,004.63 - 71,215,587 135,382.75 | 364,312.13 | 576,910.45

* Includes interest payable amount.
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Contractual cash flows
March 31, 2023 Carrying On Less than Between More than
amount one and five Total
Demand one year vears five years
Borrowings* 213,337.81 - 29,867.77 102,001.40 | 248,955.06 | 380,824.23
Lease Liability 19,726.65 - 1,798.19 5,221.67 62.453.31 69,473.17
‘Trade payables 700.67 - 700.67 - - 700.67
Other current financial 5,369.58 - 5,369,58 - - 5,369,58
liabilities
Total 239,134,711 - 37,736.21 107,223.07 | 311,408.37 | 456,367.65

* Includes interest payable amount.

(iii) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate risk and cutrency risk. Financial instruments affected by
market risk include borrowings and bank deposits,

{(a) Foreign Currency Risk

The Group has international transactions and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions,
Foreign exchange risk arises from recognized assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the Group’s functional
currency.

Foreign currency risk exposure:

Particular Currency March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Financial liabilities
Derivative asset (Derivative contract) USD - 8.13
Derivative liability (Derivative contract) UsSD 89.58 -
Buyers Credit USD 16,772.26 4,126.80
Payable for propetty, plant and equipment UsD 110.07 170.88
Retention money payable USD 118.66 117.01
Sensitivity
The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial
instruments.
Particular March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Increase by 5% {854.53) (221.14)
Decrease by 5% 854.53 221.14

(b) Interest rate risk

[nterest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The Group’s exposin'e to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s
long-term obligation with floating interest rate

Exposure to interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises majorly from the borrowings carrying floating rate of interest. This obligation exposes
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The exposure of the Group’s borrowing to interest rate changes as reported to the
management at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Variable-rate instruments March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Borrowings — from financial institution® 9,852.76 10,551.94
Total 9,852.76 10,551.94
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Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and
borrowings affected, With all other variables held constant, the Group’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on
floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Increase/ (decrease) in interest on Borrowings®*

Increase by 0.50 %

52.23

54.95

Decrease by 0.50 %

(52.23)

(54.95)

*Note —

The interest rate has been fixed @& 8.50% for three years for Juniper Green Field Private Limited, hence, the Group has
no interest rate risk on it's loans and borrowings for INR 60,494.95 lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 62,130.81 lakhs).

The interest rate has been fixed @ 8.50% for three years for Juniper Green Three Private Limited, hence, the Group has
no interest rate risk on it's loans and borrowings for INR 72,032.91 lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 75,252.32 lakhs).

The interest rate has been fixed @ 8.10% for three years for Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited, hence, the Group has
no interest rate risk on it's loans and borrowings for INR 34,916.15 lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 36,513.30 lakhs).
Project under Juniper Green Beam Private Limited having term loan outstandings as on March 31,2024 of INR 34,758.71
Jakhs (March 31, 2023 INR nil lakhs) got partially commissioned in March 2024 and balance commissioning post balance
sheet date. Accordingly, no price interest rate sensitivity has been considered for borrowings (profit and loss account) for
Juniper Green Beam Private Limited.

Project under Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited having term loan outstandings as on March 31, 2024; of INR
14,711.98 lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR nil lakhs) got commissioned in March 2024, Accordingly, no price interest rate
sensitivity considered has been considered for borrowings (profit and loss account) for Juniper Green Beam Private
Limited.

The interest rate has been fixed @ 8.20% for five years for Nisagra Renewable Energy Private Limited, hence the group
has no interest rate risk on it's loans and borrowings for INR 23,630.32 lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 24,762.64 lakhs).

(¢) Price Risk

The Group’s exposure to price risk arises from investments held and classified as FVTPL. To manage the price risk arising
from investments in mutual funds, the Group diversifies its portfolio of assets.

Price risk exposure:

Particular March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Financial assets measured at fair valoe through profit & Loss
Investment in Muijuval fund 8,202.81 1,960.10
Sensitivity analysis
Profit or Joss and equity is sensitive to higher/lower prices of instruments on the Group’s profit for the periods:
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Increase by 5% 410.14 98.01
Decrease by 5% {410.14) {98.01)




Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Notes to conselidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

46. Cash flow hedges

A, Risk management strategy

The Group uses hedging instruments as part of its management of foreign currency risk. The risk being hedged is the risk
of potential gain/loss due to fluctuation in foreign currency rates. The use of forward contracts is covered by the Group’s
overall strategy. The Group does not use forward for speculative purposes. As per the strategy of the Group, import of
capital goods shall be covered by hedge, considering the risks associated with the hedging of such capital goods, which
will effectively fix the liability of such imports and mitigates or eliminate the financial and market risks in India (the place
of business of the Group).

Hedge ratio is the relationship between the quantity of the hedging instrument and the quantity of the hedged item. In the
given case, total payment expected under the highly probable transaction are hedged under the forward contracts with the
approximately equivalent amount and at the same dates. Hence the entity hedges 100% of its exposure on the future
transaction and hedge considered highly effective on the basis of effectiveness test of highly probable future purchase of
capilal assets and forward contact taken,

B. Other hedge related disclosures

(i) The maturity profile of hedging instrument is as follows:

. Less than 1 1-3 years | More than Total
Particulars
year 3 years
31 March 2024
Derivative Liability -
Forward contract (INR to USD hedge rate ¥ 84.425 14,087.45 - - 14,087.45
~ 84.520)
. Less than 1 1-3 years | More than Total
Particulars
year 3 years
31 March 2023
Derivative Liability -
Forward contract (INR to USD hedge rate ¥ 1,817.25 - - 1,817.25
82.3400 — 82.3450)

(ii) In the Group's hedge relationship, source of hedge ineffectiveness is credit risk of the counterparty or of the Group
and changes in timing of hedge transaction.

(ifi) The impact of the hedging instruments on the balance sheet is, as follows:

Total Fair Value / Carrying | Changes in value of hedging
Particulars Notional Amount of derivative instrument recognised in
amount (tiability) / assets OCI (Income) / expense

March 31, 2024
BDerivative liability
Foreign exchange forward contracts 14,087.45 (89.58) (68.25)
March 31, 2023
Derivative liability
Foreign exchange forward coniracts 1,817.25 8.13 {390.32)




Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

47, Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / reclassified, wherever necessary to confirm to current year’s classification.
Such reclassification did not have any material impact on the current year consolidated financial statements.

48, 1In an earlier year, the Holding Company had issued 2,000 Class B equity shares at fair value, in accordance with the terms of
the agreement dated 11 August 2020 (*Agreement'), exccuted belween the Holding Company and others. The Company taking
into consideration the agreed terms and conditions between the parties, had accounted such transaction as “Equity Settled
share- based payment transaction” at the then assessed Nil fair value on the date of grant, in accordance with IND AS 102
“Share based payment”.

Subsequent to the year end, pursuant to resolution passed by the Board of Directors in their mneeting held on 26 April 2024,
and in accordance with the terms of amendment to the Agresment, the Company has agreed to buy back 2,000 Class B shares
for a total consideration of INR 3,001.03 lakhs, in accordance with the terms of the Agreement. The management has assessed
that the aforesaid amendment would require the Company to account for the same as Cash settied Transaction with effect
from the date of the aforesaid amended agreement, with no consequential impact as at the balance- sheef date (i.e. 31 March
2024), considering the same as a non-adjusting subsequent event under IND AS 10.

49. ‘The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has prescribed a new requirement for companies under the proviso to Rule 3(1)of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 inserted by the Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules 2021 requiring companies,
which uses accounting software for maintaining its books of account, shall use only such accounting software which has a
feature of recording audit trail of each and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in the books of account
along with the date when such changes were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled.

The Group uses an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the accounting
software. However, the audit trail (edit log) feature is not enabled at database level to log any direct data changes. Further,
there is no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with where such feature is enabled,

50, Other statutory information

(i} The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for
holding any Benami property.

(i) The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
(iii) The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(iv) The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(i directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(i1) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(v} The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding {whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(ii} (ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.




Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(vi) The Group is in compliance with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 (as amended).
(vii) The Group does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or
any other relevant provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961,

(viii) The Group has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(ix) The Group has not been sanctioned a working capital limit by banks or financial institutions. Hence, the Group is not
required to file any quarterly return or statement with such banks or financial institutions.

51, Addition information pursuant to Para 2 of general instructions for the preparation of consolidated financial statements to

schedule III companies Act, 2013 for the year ended March 31, 2024:

Net assets i.e, total assets
minus total liabilities

Share in profit and (loss)

Other comprchensive

income

Total comprehensive income

Name of the Entity . As % of As % of As Y% of
As %oof INRin consoltdated INR in consoldated INR consolidated INR in
consolidated other in Total
X Lakhs profit and Lakhs . Lakhs
net assets loss comprehensive Lakhs | comprehensive
income income
Holding Company
Tuniper Green Enerpy Private Limited 98.60% | 170,743.31 57.42% 2,300,61 7.22% 5.00 56.57% 2,305.61
Subsidiary eompanies
Orange Gadag Wind Power Private Limited 0.20% 350.75 0.43% 17.26 0.00% 0.00 0.42% 17.26
Nisagra Renewable Energy Private Limited 6.25% 10,821.17 26.37% 1,056.72 (0.51%}) | {0.35) 25.92% 1,056,37
Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited 7.34% 12,717.89 65.36% 2,618,51 [1.44%;) {1.00) 64.22% 2,617.51
Juniper Green Three Private Limited 5.37% 9,295 89 [43.08%) | (1,725.98) (0.65%) | (0.45) (42.36%) | {1,726.43)
Juniper Green Field Private Limited 4.88% 8,445.82 [15.12%) [605.61) 4,07% 2.82 (14.79%) (602.79)
Juniper Green Gem Private Limited 0.00% 0.27 (0.08%) (3.02) 0.00% 0.00 {0.07%) {3.02
Juniper Green Beamn Private Limited 6.49% 11,230,110 [4.91%) (196.55) 0.00% 0.00 {4.82%) {196,55)
Juniper Green Stetlar Private Limiled 0.96% 1,662.39 [0.32%) (12.64) 0.00% 0.00 {0.31%) {12.64)
Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limiled 4.28% 7,404.12 [2.46%) {98.61) 0.00% 0.00 {2.42%) {98.61)
Juniper Green Beta Private Limited 0.85% 1,475.93 0.41%}) {16.41) 0.00% Q.00 {0.40%) [16.41)
Jupiper Green Transmission Private Limited 0.00% 0.72 {0.40%) [15.92) 0.00% 0.00 {0.39%) {15.92)
Juniper Green Kite Private Limited 0.00% 3.81 0.08% 3.24 0.00% 0.00 0.08% 3.24
Juniper Green Infinite Private Limited 0.00% 0,91 [0.02%) [0.63) 0.00% 0.00 {0.02%) {0.63)
Juniper Green Power Five Private Limited 0.00% {5.03) [0.14%) (5.83) 0.00% 0.00 {0.14%) {5.63)
Juniper Green Sigma Six Privale Limited 0.00% 0.47 0.00% (0.20) 0.00% 0.00 0.00% {0.20)
Juniper Green India Eight Private Limited 0.00% {0.05) {0.01%)} [0.27) 0.00% 0.00 {0.01%) {0.27)
Juniper Green Alpha Three Private Limited 0.00% {0.05) {0.01%) [0.26) 0.00% 0.00 {0.01%) {0.26)
Juniper Green Theta Five Private Limited 0.00% 1.00 {0.07%}) [2.71) 0.60% 0.00 {0.07%) {2.71)
Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited 2.25% 3,899.42 {2.65%:) {106.03) 91.31% 63.27 {1.05%) (42.76)
Juniper Green Gamma Two Private Limited 0.01% 17.59 {0.01%4} [0.58) 0.00% 0.00 {0.01%) {0.58)
Juniper Green Beta Six Private Limited 0.00% {0.57) {0.07%} [2.64) 0.00% 0.00 {0.06%) (2.64)
Juniper Green ETA Five Private Limited 0.00% 1.49 {0.01%} {0.25) 0.00% 0.00 {0.01%) {0.25)
Juniper Green Ray Two Private Limited 0.56% 974.93 {0.36%) {14.59) 0.00% 0.00 {0.36%) (14.59)
Juniper Green Beam Eight Private Limiled 0.01% 12.44 {0.01%) {0.23} 0.00% 0.00 (0.01%) (0.23)
Juniper Green Beam Six Private Limited 0.00% {0.03) {0.61%) {0.26) 0.00% 0.00 {0.01%) {0.26)
Juniper Green Spark Four Private Limited 0.00% 1.87 {0,01%) {0.24) 0.00% 0.00 {0.01%) {0.24)
Juniper Green Light Ten Private Limited 0.00% 1.15 {0,01%) {0.21) 0.00% 0.00 {0.01%) {0.21)
Juniper Green Ray One Private Limited 6.04% 66.84 {1,07%) {42.83} 0.00% 0.00 {1.05%) {42.83)
Juniper Green India Alpha Private Limiled 0.00% {0.01) {0.01%) {0.23) 0.00% 0.00 (0.01%) {0.23)
Juniper Green Spark Ten Private Limited 0.00% 3.28 {0.01%) {0.23} 0,00% 0.00 (0.01%5) {0.23)
Juniper Green Light Four Private Limited 0.00% 0.01 {0.01%) {0.21} 0.00% 0.00 {0.01%) {0.21)
Juniper Green India Six Private Limited 0.55% 947.16 {0.04%) {1.56) 0.00% 0.00 {0.04%) {1.56)
Juniper Nirjara Energy Private Limited 0.36% 622,54 {1.91%) {76.39) 0.00% 0.00 {1.87%) {76.39)
Juniper Green Sigma Eight Private Limited 0.00% 0.94 (0.01%) {0.23) 0.00% 0.00 {0.01%) {0.23)
Grand Total 139.00% | 240,702.47 76.50% 3,065.19 100.00% 69.29 76.90% 3,134.48
Intercompany elimination and consolidation (39.00%) | (67,534.59) 23.50% 941.36 0.00% | 0.00 23.10% 941.36
adjustments
Net Total 100.00% | 173,167.88 100.00% 4,006.55 100.00% 69.29 100.00% 4,075.84




Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless o‘t'l_agzwise stated)

Addition information pursuant to Para 2 of general instructions for the preparation of consolidated financial statements to schedule
T companies Act, 2013 for the year ended March 31, 2023:

Nef assets Lo, total assets

Share in profit and (loss)

Other comprehensive

‘Fotal comprehensive income

minus totat linbilities income
Name of the Entity AS % of As % of As % of
consotida | INRin As % of INR in consolidnted |y, | consolidated ) yyp g
ted net Lakhs consolidated ) Lakhs other . Lalhs Total . Lakhs
assels profit and loss comprehensive comprehensive
income income

Holding Company
Juniper Green Energy Private Limited 98.05% 76,771.66 (11.55%) 139.31 0.33% 1.02 {15.66%) 140.33
Subsidinry companies
(L’i‘:l'i‘fe‘fad“g Wind Power Private 0.43% 333.48 (0.80%) 9.59 0.00% | 000 (1.07%) 9.59
[hsogre Renewable Energy Private 1247% | 9,764.79 (90.79%) |  1.094.77 0.07% | 022 (122.17%) | 1094.99
Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited 12.90% 10,100.37 {128.35%) t,547.67 {0.52%) {1.62) {172.49%) 1546.06
Juniper Green Three Private Limited 14.08% 11,022.31 238.41% (2,874.72) {0.39%) {1.21) 320.87% (2875.93)
Juniper Green Field Prvate Limited 11.56% 9,048.60 217.59% {2,623.68) 100.51% | 311,08 258.02% (2312.59)
Juniper Green Giem Private Limited {0.05%) (39.72) 4.16% {60.18) 0.00% 0.00 5.60% (50.18)
Juniper Green Beam Private Limited {0.04%) (33.83) 3.09% {37.31) 0.00% 0.00 4.16% (37.31)
Juniper Green Stellar Private Limited 0.12% 93.02 0.03% {0.35 0.00% 0.00 0.04% {0.35)
Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited 0.09% 73.35 (0.16%) 1.93 0.00% 0.00 {0.22%) 1.93
Juniper Green Beta Private Limited 0.01% 7.33 0.02% (0.19) 0.00% 0.00 0.02% {0.19)
Junipor Green Transmission Private ©17%) | (130.37) 13.93% |  (167.99) 0.00% |  0.00 18.74% | (167.99)
Tuniper Green Kile Private Limited 0.00% 0.56 0.03% {0.31) 0.00% 0.00 0.03% {0.31)
Juniper Green Infinite Private Limited {0.01%) (6.97) 0.65% {7.85) 0.00% 0.00 0.88% {7.85)
Juniper Green Power Five Private Limited 0.00% 0,59 0.03% (0.41) 0,00% 0.00 0.05% {0.41)
Juniper Green Sigma Six Private Limited 0.00% 0.66 0.03% (0.34) 0.00% 0.00 0.04% {0.34)
Juniper Green India Eight Private Limited 0.00% {1.29) 0.19% (2.29) 0.00% 0.00 0.28% {2.29)
Juniper Green Alpha Three Private Limited 0.00% {2.30) 0.27% (3.30) 0.00% 0.00 0.37% {3.30)
Juniper Green Theta Five Private Limited 0.00% 0.70 0.02% {0.30) 0.00% 0.00 0.03% {0.30)
Juniper Green Garmma One Private 0.00% (1.40) 0.20% (2.40) 0.00% ! 0.00 0.27% (2.40)
Janiper Geen Gamma Two Private 0.00% (1.34) 0.19% (2.34) 0.00% |  0.00 0.26% (2.34)
Juniper Green Beta Six Private Limited (0.01%} {4.44) 0.45% (5.44) 0.00% 0.00 0.61% {5.44)
Juniper Groen ETA Five Private Limited 0.00% (1.77) 0.23% 277 0.00% | 0.00 0.31% (2.77)
Juniper Green Ray Two Private Limited 0.00% 0.51 0.04% (0.49) 0.00% 0.00 0.05% {0.49)
Juniper Green Beam Light Private Limited 0.00% {1.34) 0.19% {2.34) 0.00% 0.00 0.26% {2.34)
Juniper Green Beam Six Private Limited 0.00% {1.28) 0.19% (2.28) 0.00% 0.00 0.25% {2.28)
Juniper Green Spark Four Private Limited 0.00% {2.90) 0.32% {3.80) 0.00% 0.00 0.44% {3.90)
Juniper Green Light Ten Private Limited 0.00% {1.65) 0.22% {2.65) 0.00% 0.00 0.30% {2.65
Juniper Green Ray One Private Limiled 0.00% 0.66 0.03% {0.34) 0.00% 0.00 0.04% {0.34)
Juniper Green India Alpha Private Limited 0.00% {1.20) 0.19% (2.29) 0.00% 0.00 0.26% {2.29)
Juniper Green Spark Ten Private Limited 0.00% {0.50) 0.12% {1.50) 0.00% 0.00 0.17% {1.50)
Juniper Green Light Four Private Limited 0.00% {0.29) 0.11% {1.29) 0.00% 0.00 0.14% {1.29)
Juniper Green India Six Private Limited 0.00% {0.28) 0.11% {1.29} 0.00% 0.00 0.14% {1.29)
Juniper Green Sigma Bight Private Limited 0.00% 0.66 0.03% (0.34) 0.00% 0.00 0.04% {0.34)
Grand Total 149.41% | 116,886.28 249.43% (3,007.61) 100.00% | 309.50 301.03% (2698.11)
Intorcompany ;;}’;‘;‘;‘é%’t‘sa”d (49.41%) | (38,68863) |  (149.43%) |  1,801.81 0.00% | 000 (201.03%) | 1,801.81
Net Total 100.00% | _78,297.65 100.00% | (1,205.80) 100.00% | 309,50 100.00% | (826.30)
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52, Authorisation of financial statements for issue
The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024, were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the

Directors on September 26, 2024,

As per our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No. 001076N/N500013

Naresh Mansukhani Parag Agrawal

Deepak Mittal

Partner Director Director s
Membership No.: 503843 DIN 06990480 DIN 02463717 Lf/
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: September 26, 2024 Date: September 26, 2024 Date: September 26, 2024

Prashant Pandia
Company Secretary

M. No. — F12077

Place: Gurugram

Date: September 26, 2024
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SHORTER NOTICE is hereby given that the 13% ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the members
of Juniper Green Energy Private Limited will be held on Monday, 30 September, 2024 at 4:30 PM at
Plot No. 18, 1st Floor, Institutional Area, Sector 32, Gurugram Haryana-122001 to transact the
following Businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESSES:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the standalone and consolidated financial statements of the Company

for the financial year ended 31% March 2024 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors’
thereon.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

2. To appoint Mr. Ankush Malik (DIN: 07978604) as Director and designate as Wholetime Director
of the Company

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution, as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), Mr. Ankush Malik (DIN: 07978604), who was
appointed as an Additional Director w.e.f. April 30, 2024 and designated as Wholetime Director from
that date and who holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting, and being eligible, be and

is hereby appointed with effect from the date of this meeting as a Director and designated as Wholetime
Director of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Directors or the Company Secretary of the Company be and are
hereby severally authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered
necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this Resolution.”

For Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

,b’(,"

Prashfint Pandia
(Company Secretary)
Date: September 26, 2024
Place: Gurugram

NOTES:

01. A Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Act (“Explanatory Statement™) relating to the Item No.2
to be transacted at the Meeting is annexed hereto.

02. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend and, on a
poll, to vote instead of himself and the Proxy need not be a Member of the Company. Proxies, in order
to be effective, must be received in the enclosed Proxy Form at the Registered Office of the Company
not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time fixed for the Meeting.

03. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding 50 and holding in the aggregate not
more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A Member

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Registered office: F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza-1, Plot No. 7 MLU, Sector-10, Dwarka New Delhi-110075 CIN: U40100DL2011PTC228318
Corporate office: Plot No. 18, 1* Floor, Institutional Area, Sector 32, Gurugram Haryana-122001 Tel +91-124 4739600, Fax +91-124 4739666 Email: info@junipergreenenergy.com



ga e

holding more than ten percent of total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint
a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

04. A Corporate Member intending to send its authorised representatives to attend the Meeting in terms of
Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 is requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the
Board Resolution authorizing such representative to attend and vote on its behalf at the Meeting.

05. Members/Proxies/Authorised Representatives are requested to bring the attendance slips duly filled in
for attending the Meeting. Members who hold shares in dematerialised form are requested to write their
client ID and DP ID numbers and those who hold shares in physical form are requested to write their
Folio Number in the attendance slip for attending the Meeting.

06. The Registers, as required to be maintained by the Company in terms of the Companies Act, 2013, will
be available for inspection by members at the General Meeting. The audited standalone and
consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, the Directors’ Report,
the Auditors’ Report are enclosed with the notice.

07. All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement, if any, will be
kept open for inspection at the Registered office & Corporate office of the company on all working days
of the company during normal business hours (10.00 AM to 5.00 PM) on all working days except
Saturdays, up to and including the date of the meeting. These documents shall also be made available
for inspection at the venue of the Meeting for the duration of the Meeting.

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

Registered office: F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza-1, Plot No. 7 MLU, Sector-10, Dwarka New Delhi-110075 CIN: U40100DL2011PTC228318
Corporate office: Plot No. 18, 1# Floor, Institutional Area, Sector 32, Gurugram Haryana-122001 Tel +91-124 4739600, Fax +91-124 4739666 Email: info@junipergreenenergy.com
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT FOR THE PROPOSED RESOLUTION ACCOMPANYING
THE NOTICE, PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No: 2:  To appoint Mr. Ankush Malik (DIN: 07978604) as Director and designate as
‘Wholetime Director of the Company

Mr. Ankush Malik (DIN: 07978604) who was appointed as an Additional Director and designated as
Wholetime Director of the Company w.e.f. April 30, 2024 in accordance with the provisions of Section
161 and 196 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”). Pursuant to
Section 161 of the Act, Mr. Ankush Malik holds office up to the date of ensuing Annual General
Meeting. The appointment of Mr. Ankush Malik on the Board would be beneficial for the Company
and hence the Board recommends regularising him as Director of the Company.

The Board of Directors recommends the passing of the Ordinary Resolution to appoint Mr. Ankush
Malik as Director of the Company. Considering the above, you are requested to accord your approval
to the Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No.2 of the accompanying Notice. As stipulated under
Secretarial Standard-2 brief profile of Mr. Ankush Malik (DIN: 07978604) including name of
companies in which he holds directorship and membership/chairmanship of the Board committee, is
provided in Annexure-1.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are in any way
concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the proposed resolution.

For Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

Prashant Pandia
(Company Secretary)
Date: September 26, 2024
Place: Gurugram

. . «
Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Registered office: F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza-1, Plot No. 7 MLU, Sector-10, Dwarka New Delhi-110075 CIN: U40100DL2011PTC228318
Corporate office: Plot No. 18, 1* Floor, Institutional Area, Sector 32, Gurugram Haryana-122001 Tel +91-124 4739600, Fax +91-124 4739666 Email: info@junipergreenenergy.com



Form No. MGT-11
PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN : U40100DL2011PTC228318
Name of the Company : Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Registered Office : F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza 1, Plot No. 7, MLU, Sector-10, Dwarka,

New Delhi-110075

Corporate Office : Plot No. 18, 1st Floor, Institutional Area, Sector 32, Gurugram
Haryana-122001

Name of the Member(s)

Registered Address

E-mail 1d

I/We being the member(s) of the above named Company appoint:

Name Name
Address Address
E-mail Id E-mail Id
Signature: Signature:
or  failing

him

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf at the 13* Annual
General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Monday, 30 September, 2024 at 4:30 PM at Plot
No. 18, Ist Floor, Institutional Area, Sector 32, Gurugram Haryana-122001 and at any adjournment
thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution | RESOLUTION PROPOSED OPTIONAL*
No.
Ordinary Resolution FOR AGAINST
1. To consider, approve and adopt the standalone and

consolidated Financial Statements for the financial year
ended 31 March, 2024 and the Reports of the Board of
Directors and Auditors thereon

2. To appoint Mr. Ankush Malik (DIN: 07978604) as Director
and designate as Wholetime Director of the Company

Signed this.................covveeene. dayof......ccoevvvvininn.... 2024 .
Signature of Shareholder | (\
‘o
‘.‘ s
\S
Signature of Proxy
NOTE:

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting

2. For the text of the Resolution, Explanatory Statements & Notes, if any, please refer to the Notice
convening the Annual General Meeting.

3. It is optional to put “X” in the appropriate column against the Resolution indicated in the Box.




ATTENDANCE SLIP

Folio No./Client1d

DP 1d/Client ID*

Name of first named Member/Proxy/Authorised
Representative

Name of Joint Member(s), if any:

No. of shares held

I/ we certify that I/we am/are member (s)/proxy for the member(s) of the Company.

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 13" Annual General Meeting of the Company held on
Monday, 30 September, 2024 at 4:30 PM at Plot No. 18, 1st Floor, Institutional Area, Sector 32,
Gurugram Haryana-122001:

Signature

NOTES:

1. Please fill this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the venue.

2. Only Members/Proxy Holders/Authorised Representatives are allowed to attend the Meeting.

3. Authorized Representatives of Corporate members shall produce proper authorization issued in
their favour.

* Applicable only in case where shares held in electronic form




Annexure-I

Age 40 years

Qualification B.E — Civil from IIT-Delhi and PGDBM - Finance from
IIM -Lucknow

Experience He has more than 14 years of experience in the field of

project development, business development and project
finance for renewable energy projects

Terms and conditions of appointment
or re-appointment

Whole Time Director (Executive Director)
Appointed for 5 Years from 30.04.2024.

Details remuneration

Salary: Rs. 105.00 Lakh per annum, inclusive of
contributions to provident fund and other allowances. In
addition to the salary he is also entitled, in accordance with
the policies of the Company, for (i) gratuity; (ii) Mediclaim,
term insurance, and any other insurance benefits; (iii) leave
entitlement in accordance with the Company’s policy; (iv)
leave encashment; and (v) reimbursement of business-
related expenses such as mobile bill, travel, food, etc.

Date of first appointment on the Board

30.04.2024 as additional Director

shareholding in the company

Nil

Relationship with other Directors,
Manager and other Key Managerial
Personnel of the company

None

The number of Meetings of the Board
attended during the year (considered
meetings held after the appointment)

8 Board meetings up to the date of this Notice

Other Directorships

Orange Rajkot Wind Power Private Limited
Orange Belgaum Wind Power Private Limited
Orange Ashok North Wind Power Private Limited
Orange Gadag Wind Power Private Limited
Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited
Juniper Green Power Five Private Limited
Juniper Green Sigma Six Private Limited
Juniper Green India Eight Private Limited
Juniper Green Alpha Three Private Limited\
Juniper Green Theta Five Private Limited
Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited
Juniper Green Gamma Two Private Limited

. Juniper Green Beta Six Private Limited
Juniper Green ETA Five Private Limited
Juniper Green India Alpha Private Limited
Juniper Green India Six Private Limited
Juniper Green Sigma Eight Private Limited
Juniper Nirjara Energy Private Limited
Juniper Green Power Trading Private Limited

WRoTOREIRFTNER MO QS OB

Membership/  Chairmanship
Committees of other Boards
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-24

Dear Shareholders,

The Directors present the 13t Director's Report of Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
(the Company or JGEPL) on the business and operations of the Company along with the
audited financial statements (standalone and consolidated) for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024: The consolidated performance of the Company and its subsidiaries has
been referred to wherever required.

Financial Performance
The audited financial statements (standalone and consolidated) of the Company as on
March 31, 2024, are prepared in accordance with the relevant applicable Ind AS and the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”).

The summarized financial highlight is depicted below:

B - (Rs. In Lakh)
7’a riculars | Standalone Consolidate
2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23

Revenue from Operations 2,836.17 245903 | 39,154.97 33,130.68
| Other Income - 3,717.53 760.74 | 3,289.68 | 3,117.89

Total Revenue - 6,553.70 3,219.77  42,444.65 36,248.57

Total Expenditure o 3,079.01 | 3,034.22 | 36,695.03 37,264.29

Profit/(Loss) before tax | 3,474.69 185.55 5,749.62 (1,015.72)

Profit/(Loss) after Tax 2,300.62 139.31 4,006.55 | (1,205.80)
| Other comprehensive income/loss

for the year, net of tax 5.00 1.02 69.29 | 309.50

Total Comprehensive income/loss | '

for the year, net of tax | 2,305.62 140.33 4,075.84 | (896.30) ‘

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company, which have occurred between the end of the financial year and the date of this

report.

State of Affairs/Operational Highlights {Standalone and Consolidated Financial
Performance)

Your Company along with its subsidiaries (“Juniper Group”) engaged in the business of
setting up, operating, maintaining, generation, supply and sale of power in the field of
renewable energy. Juniper Group has 635 MW (AC Capacity) operational Solar power
projects in the state of Maharashtra and Gujarat and 25.2 MW Wind Power Project in the
state of Gujarat.

As at end of March 31, 2024, the Company is operating and maintaining 30 MW (AC
Capacity) Solar Power Project in the state of Maharashtra. The Company has also
received letter of award to undertake and develop 150MW Hybrid Power Project (“Hybrid
Project”) from Gujarat Urja Vikas Nigam Limited ("GUVNL”"). This Hybrid Project will be
set up in the state of Gujarat and electricity generated will be sold to GUVNL. Further, the
company has also won a project for 300MW capacity Hybrid Project and for which letter,
of award is expected to be received shortly.

Dividend and Reserve

The Board of Directors, keeping in view the growth opportunities that your Company is
currently engaged with, have not recommended any dividend for the year under review.

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Registered office: F-9, First Floor. Manish Plaza-1, Plot No. 7 MLU, Sector-10, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075
Corporate office. Plot No. 18, 1* Floor, Institutional Area, Sector 32, Gurugram Haryana-122001 Tel +91-124 4739600, Fax +91-124 4739666
CIN: U40100DL201TPTC2283 18 Email: cs@junipergreenenergy.com
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Additionally, no amount was transferred to any reserves, and the profit or loss for the
financial year is proposed to be retained as Retained Earnings.

Holding/Subsidiaries/Associates/Joint Venture

As at end of March 31, 2024, your Company is subsidiary of Juniper Renewable Holdings
Pte. Ltd. (@ company registered in Singapore). The Company has 34 subsidiaries as at
end of March 31, 2024. Further after the close of financial year the Company has also
incorporated one subsidiary of which the certificate of incorporation was received on 10t
April 2024. The details of subsidiaries including the companies which became or ceased
to be a subsidiary during the year are as below:

1) Nisagra Renewable Energy Private Limited
2) Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited

3) Juniper Green Field Private Limited

4) Juniper Green Three Private Limited

5) Juniper Green Gem Private Limited

6) Juniper Green Beam Private Limited

7) Juniper Green Stellar Private Limited

8) Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited

9) Juniper Green Beta Private Limited

10) Juniper Green Transmission Private Limited
11) Juniper Green Kite Private Limited

12) Juniper Green Infinite Private Limited

13) Orange Gadag Wind Power Private Limited
14) Juniper Green Power Five Private Limited
15) Juniper Green Sigma Six Private Limited
16) Juniper Green India Eight Private Limited
17) Juniper Green Alpha Three Private Limited
18) Juniper Green Theta Five Private Limited
19) Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited
20) Juniper Green Gamma Two Private Limited
21) Juniper Green Beta Six Private Limited

22) Juniper Green ETA Five Private Limited
23) Juniper Green Ray Two Private Limited
24) Juniper Green Beam Eight Private Limited
25) Juniper Green Beam Six Private Limited
26) Juniper Green Spark Four Private Limited
27) Juniper Green Light Ten Private Limited
28) Juniper Green Ray One Private Limited
29) Juniper Green India Alpha Private Limited
30) Juniper Green Spark Ten Private Limited
31) Juniper Green Light Four Private Limited
32) Juniper Green India Six Private Limited

33) Juniper Green Sigma Eight Private Limited
34) Juniper Nirjara Energy Private Limited (acquired 100% ownership on 23 June 2023)

The Company does not have any Associate or Joint Venture as at the end of March 31,

2024.
Report on performance and financial position of the subsidiaries

a) Nisagra Renewable Energy Private Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary company,
is operating and maintaining 70 MW (AC capacity) Solar Power Project in the state
of Maharashtra.

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Registered office: F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza-1, Plot No. 7 MLU, Sector-10, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075
Corporate office: Plot No. 18, 1" Floor, Institutional Area, Sector 32, Gurugram Haryana-122001 Tel +91-124 4739600, Fax +91-124 4739666
CIN: U40100DL2011PTC228318 Email: cs@junipergreenenergy.com
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e)

h)

k)

Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary company is
operating and maintaining 120 MW (AC capacity) solar power project in state of
Guijarat.

Juniper Green Field Private Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary company, is
operating and maintaining 150 MW (AC capacity) Solar Power Project in the state
of Maharashtra.

Juniper Green Three Private Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary company, is
operating and maintaining 190 MW (AC capacity) solar power project in state of
Gujarat.

Juniper Green Beam Private Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary company is
developing 69.30 MW Wind Power Project in the state of Gujarat. As at end of the
year the Company has successfully commissioned 25.20 MW project, and the
remaining capacity was also commissioned subsequently. It is also developing
another 50.40 MW Wind Power Project in the state of Gujarat.

Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary company
has successfully commissioned 75 MW (AC capacity) Solar Power Project in the
state of Maharashtra.

Juniper Green Kite Private Limited, wholly owned subsidiary company is
developing 70 MW and 90 MW capacity Wind Power Project awarded by Gujarat
Urja Vikas Nigam Limited.

Juniper Green Beam Eight Private Limited, wholly owned subsidiary company is
developing 75 MW capacity Wind Solar Hybrid Power Project awarded by The
Tata Power Company Limited.

Juniper Green Stellar Private Limited, wholly owned subsidiary company is under
process to undertake and develop 320 MW contracted capacity Firm and
dispatchable renewable energy Project awarded by SJVN Limited.

Juniper Green Beta Private Limited, wholly owned subsidiary company is under
process to undertake and develop 230 MW ISTS connected Wind-Solar Hybrid
project awarded by NTPC Limited and 150 MW Wind-Solar Hybrid Power Project
awarded by Solar Energy Corporation of India Limited, respectively.

Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited, wholly owned subsidiary company is
developing 100 MW solar power project in the state of Rajasthan and will also
undertake and develop another 150 MW capacity Wind-Solar Hybrid project
awarded by NHPC Limited.

Juniper Green Light Four Private Limited, wholly owned subsidiary company will
undertake and develop 150 MW Wind-Solar Hybrid Power Project awarded by
SJVN Limited.

Juniper Green Light Ten Private Limited, wholly owned subsidiary company will
undertake and develop 200 MW capacity renewable energy project coupled with
energy storage system awarded by NHPC Limited.

Juniper Green Beta Six Limited, wholly owned subsidiary company will undertake
and develop 200MW Firm and Dispatchable Power Project won by the holding
company upon successfully participating in competitive bidding process of NTPC
Limited.

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

Registered office: F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza-1, Plot No. 7 MLU, Sector-10, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075

Corporate office: Plot No. 18, 1* Floor, Institutional Area, Sector 32, Gurugram Haryana-122001 Tel +91-124 4739600, Fax +91-124 4739666

CIN: U40100DL2011PTC228318 Email: cs@junipergreenenergy.com
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The Company provides adequate financial support to the subsidiary companies,
wherever required, to continue their operations. Other subsidiary companies are
exploring available opportunities to set-up and develop renewable energy project.

The information on the highlights of performance of the subsidiaries and their
contribution to the overall performance of the company during the period under report
are discussed in the consolidated financial statement and same is in compliance with
the applicable accounting standards. A statement containing salient features of the
financial statement of subsidiary and associate companies, as applicable, prepared
pursuant to section 129 (3) of the Act, in Form AOC-1 is annexed to this report as
‘Annexure-I".

Meetings of the Board of Directors

The Board Meetings were held as and when required and the notice of meeting had been
circulated to the Directors in advance to facilitate them to plan their schedule and to ensure
meaningful participation in the meetings. However, in case of special and urgent business,
the meetings were called at shorter notices, as permitted by law.

The Board met Eighteen times on 10-Apr-23, 18-Apr-23, 16-May-23, 14-June-23, 05-Jul-
23, 17-Aug-23, 22-Aug-23, 05-Sep-23, 14-Sep-23, 22-Sep-23, 13-Oct, 23, 6-Nov-23, 23-
Nov-23, 20-Dec-23, 15-Jan-24, 25-Jan-24, 12-Feb-24 and 19-Mar-24 The maximum
interval between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days. Also wherever necessary,
the Board has held meetings through audio visual means.

Management Committee
Your Company has duly constituted Management Committee on 19" March 2024, its

composition as well as charter are in line with the requirements of the Companies Act,
2013. The detail of composition of the committee is as under.

S. No. | Name of Member Designation
1 Mr. Naresh Mansukhani _ Member
2 _ Mr. Parag Agrawal | Member

As on 315 March 2024 One Meeting of Committee was held on 19t March 2024.
Changes in directors and key managerial personnel

At the end of March 31, 2024, the Board of Directors and key managerial personnel of the
Company comprises of:

a) Mr. Hemant Tikoo, Director

b) Mr. Arvind Tiku, Director

¢) Mr. Sanjay Bakliwal, Director

d) Mr. Naresh Mansukhani, Whole- time Director
e) Mr. Parag Agrawal, Whole- time Director

f) Mr. Devendra Singh, Director

g) Mr. Prashant Pandia, Company Secretary

During the period under review, the Board reappointed Mr. Naresh Mansukhani and Mr.
Parag Agrawal as Wholetime Directors for the period of five years upon expiry of their
tenure There was no other change in the office of directors or KMP of the Company.

Further, subsequent to the close of financial year Mr. Devendra Singh, Director of the
Company resigned form the office of Director w.e.f. 29t April 2024 and Mr. Ankush Malik,

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Registered office: F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza-1, Plot No 7 MLU, Sector-10, Dwarka, New Delhi- 110075
Corporate office: Plot No. 18, 1% Floor, Institutional Area, Sector 32, Gurugram Haryana-122001 Tel +91-124 4739600, Fax +91-124 4739666
CIN: U40100DL2011PTC228318 Email: cs@junipergreenenergy.com
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has been appointed as Additional Director and designated as Wholetime Director w.e.f.
30t April 2024.

Change in the nature of business

There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company during the reporting
financial year.

internal Financial Controls with reference to the financial statements and Risk
management

The Company has well defined and adequate Internal Control System, commensurate with
size, scale and complexity of its operation. The internal financial controls are adequate and
are operating effectively so as to ensure orderly and efficient conduct of business
operation, safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of
reliable financial disclosures. The statutory auditor had regularly reviewed these systems.
As per the assessment, there are no major concerns and controls are strong. Report of
Statutory auditor on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) forms part of Audit report on the
financial statement for the period ended on March 31, 2024.

The internal audit of the Company was entrusted to Felix Advisory Private Limited. The
main thrust of internal audit was to test and review controls, appraisal of risks and business
processes, as also benchmarking controls with the best industry practices.

The Company has put in place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate
various risks to key business objectives. Risks are identified through a consistently applied
methodology. The Board of Directors has oversight in the areas of financial risks and
cantrol and is also responsible to frame, implement and monitor the risk management plan
and ensuring its effectiveness.

Directors’ responsibility statement

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge
and ability, state the following:

a) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements (standalone and
consolidated), the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with
proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

b) that such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and
judgements and estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial
year and of the profit and loss of the Company for that period;

¢) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) that the annual financial statements (standalone and consolidated), have been
prepared on a going concern basis; and

e) that proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
were in place and were adequate and operating effectively.

Secretarial standards

During the year under review, the Company has complied with all the applicable provision
of Secretarial Standard-1 and Secretarial Standard-2 issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Registered office: F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza-1, Plot No. 7 MLU, Sector-10, Dwarka, New Dethi-110075
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Share Capital

As on March 31, 2024, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 3500.20 Lakhs
divided into 3,50,00,000 (Three Crore Fifty Lakh) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten
Only) each and 2,000 (Two Thousand) Class B Equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten
Only) each. The issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Company is Rs.
2590.36/- Lakhs comprising of 2,59,03,640 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each and 2,000
Class-B Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each. During the Financial Year 2023-24, the Company
has not issued Equity Shares with differential rights, Sweat Equity Shares and Employee
Stock Options. Further, subsequent to the close of the Financial Year, Company has
bought back 2,000 Class-B Equity shares pursuant to the approval of the Board of
Directors dated 26" April 2024 which was completed on 16t May 2024.

Statutory Auditor and Auditor’s report

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139(2) of the Act read with rules made thereunder,
as amended from time to time, M/s Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 001076N/N500013) was appointed as statutory auditors of the Company for the
first term to hold office till the conclusion of the 17" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the
Company to be held in the calendar year 2028 to audit the books of accounts of the
Company up to financial year ending on March 31, 2028.

The statutory auditor’s report (including the Consolidated Financial Statements) does not
contain any qualifications, reservations, or adverse remarks or disclaimer. The Auditors
have not reported any fraud under sub section (12) of section 143 of the Act.

Secretarial Auditor

M/s Manisha Gupta & Associates, Company Secretary in practice was appointed as
Secretarial Auditor of the Company to conduct Secretarial Audit for FY 2023-24. The
secretarial auditor's report does not contain any qualifications, reservations, or adverse
remarks or disclaimer. The Secretarial Auditor has not reported any fraud under sub
section (12) of section 143 of the Act. Secretarial audit report is attached to this report as
Annexure Il.

Internal Auditor

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Act read with rules made thereunder Felix
Advisory Private Limited was appointed as Internal Auditor of the Company to conduct
Internal Audit for the financial year 2023-24. The internal audit report for the financial year
2023-24 does not contain any qualifications, adverse remarks, or disclaimers.

Cost records

In terms of the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, your Company was not required to
maintain cost records for the FY 2023-24.

Deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been
deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended).

Corporate social responsibility (CSR)

The Company’s CSR activities are aligned to the requirements of Section 135 of the Act.
The brief outline of the CSR policy of the Company and the initiatives undertaken by the

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
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Company on CSR activities during the year are set out in Annexure Il of this report in the
format prescribed in the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014.
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is not required to be constituted in view of the
fact that CSR obligations for the Financial Year 2023-24 is less than Rs. 50 lakhs.
Accordingly, all duties and responsibilities of the CSR Committee was entrusted with the
Board of Directors.

During the year the Company spent an amount of Rs. 3.44 Lakhs in CSR Projects. The
implementation of CSR Projects was completed before March 31, 2024.

Disclosure of particulars with respect to conservation of energy, technology
absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo

Conservation of Energy:

As the Company is engaged in the business of electricity generation from renewable
energy sources like Solar & Wind and has also ventured into BESS to develop Hybrid
Projects to provide round the clock power to the National Grid. It continues to take
steps to conserve and optimize the use of energy at its own premises and facilities by
following prudent industry practices. Capital intensive steps have been taken by the
company like deploying semi/automatic waterless solar module cleaning system,
various kind of testing equipment's provided at sites, uses of Solar LED lamps, control
& monitoring systems, etc., These initiatives have multi-fold impact results in
conservation of energy, uses alternative sources of energy and reduces CO2
emissions. The Company is working on various statistical models and condition-based
monitoring of critical elements to do predictive analytics to identify various anomalies
in the generation units so as to avoid system failure & ensure supply of energy into
the grid

Technology Absorption:

The Company is focused on deploying innovative commercial technologies to
increase overall business efficiencies. We have an experienced in-house technology,
engineering & design team which evaluates the latest technological trends and
developments across Solar, Wind & BESS technologies . Most of the evaluated
technologies are already deployed in our projects like Wind Turbines, Solar Inverters,
Solar PV Modules, semifautomatic waterless solar module cleaning systems, mufti-
winding transformers, drone-based inspections, etc. Company have state of art data
gathering and monitoring systems which helps to monitor the entire portfolio by the in-
house team of plant technicians, engineers and subject matter experts both at site
level and centrally in Head Office. This ensures efficient operation and performance
monitoring, reduce downtime, and enhance generation. All these efforts have helped
to increase performance, profitability and reduce opex and capex expenditures.

Foreign exchange earnings in terms of actual inflows and foreign exchange outgo in
terms of actual outflows for financial year ending March 31, 2024 was Rs. 83.43 lakhs
and Rs. 17.05 lakh respectively.

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under section 186:

business of providing of infrastructural facilities as provided in Schedule VI of the Act. The
particulars of loans, guarantee and investments, if any, made during the year under review
are disclosed in the financial statements.

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Registered office: F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza-1, Plot No. 7 MLU, Sector-10, Dwarka, New Dethi-110075
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Downstream Investment

The Company has made downstream investments of Rs. 23,856.12 Lakh during the
financial year under review. The Company is in compliance with the FDI policy, FEMA
Rules and Regulations with respect to the downstream investment made by the Company
being the first level Indian company. The Statutory Auditors have also certified in this
regard.

Transaction with related parties

During the financial year under review, the contracts / arrangements / transactions,
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Act, entered into by the Company with
related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm'’s length basis. The
particulars contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis are provided
in the prescribed Form AOC - 2 as Annexure IV to the Directors’ Report. Further,
disclosure as per applicable accounting standard, with respect to transactions with related
parties have been provided in the financial statements.

Significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future:

There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or
Tribunals which would impact the going concern status and the Company’s future
operations.

Vigil Mechanism

Your Company is committed to highest standards of ethical, moral, and legal business
conduct. Accordingly, the Board of Directors has formulated Vigil Mechanism which
provides a robust framework for dealing with genuine concerns & grievances. Specifically,
employees can raise concerns regarding any discrimination, harassment, victimization,
any other unfair practice being adopted against them or any instances of fraud by or
against your Company. During Financial Year under review, no complaint was received
by the Company.

Particulars of Employees

During the Financial year under review, Section 197(12) read with Rule 5(2) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 of the
Act is not applicable on Company.

Annual Return

Your Company has prepared the annual return as per provision of Section 92 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace

The Company continues to follow a robust anti-sexual harassment policy on ‘Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace’ in accordance
with The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition &
Redressal) Act, 2013 (‘POSH’) and Rules made thereunder. internal Complaints /¢y
Committee has been set-up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment [ o
at various workplaces in accordance with POSH. All employees, including those of
subsidiaries (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this Policy.
The Policy is gender neutral.

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Registered office: F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza-1, Plot No. 7 MLU, Sector-10, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075
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No complaints received in the calendar year and the year under review.
Other Disclosures

1. The Company has neither made any application, nor any proceedings are pending
under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

2. The Company has not entered into any one-time settlement with any Bank or Financial
Institutions, hence disclosure under rule (8)(5)(xii) of Companies (Accounts) Rules
2014 is not applicable.

Acknowledgements

The Board of Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation to all the
employees for their dedication and commitment. Their hard work and unstinted efforts
enabled the Company to sustain its performance.

The Board of Directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for assistance and
co-operation received from vendors and stakeholders, including financial institutions,
banks, Central and State Government authorities, and other business associates, who
continued to extend their valuable support during the year under review. It will be the
Company's endeavour to nurture these relationships in strengthening busi
sustainability.

For Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

e G

Mr. Naresh Mansukhani Mr. Parag Agrawal

(Whole time Director) (Whole time Director)

DIN: 06990480 DIN: 02463717

Add: B-39 Jangpura Extension, S$-297, 2nd Floor, Uppal South End

New Delhi-110014 Sector-49, Sohna Road Gurgaon
123&38

Place . Gurugram

Date :26.09.2024

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Registered office: F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza-1, Plot No. 7 MLU, Sector-10, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075
Corporate office: Plot No. 18, 1% Floor, lnstitutional Area, Sector 32, Gurugram Haryana-122001 Tel +91-124 4739600, Fax +91-124 4739666
CIN: U40100DL2011PTC228318 Email: cs@junipergreenenergy.com



Manisha Gupta MANISHA GUPTA & ASSOCIATES
B. Com (H), L.L.B, FCS COMPANY SECRETARIES
WZ-1003, lind Floor, Rani Bagh, DE|hI 110034
Ph: - 011-45053912
Mobile: - 9911662021,9911433045
E-mail : manisha.pcs@gmail.com

Form-MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31t MARCH, 2024

To

The Members

JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: - U40100DL2011PTC228318)

F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza-1, Plot no. 7
MLU, Sector-10, Dwarka

New Delhi 110075

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by JUNIPER GREEN
ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED (hereinafter called the ‘company’). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the company has,
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31sMarch, 2024 (‘Audit
Period') complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31stMarch, 2024
according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act') and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made
thereunder;

(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulafions and Bye-laws framed
thereunder; ‘ '

(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseos Direct
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(V) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):-Not Applicable ; S
(a) The Securilies and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acqum’r' HE

Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; Not Applicable
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(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015; Not Applicable

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018; Not Applicable:

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee
Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021-Not Applicable;

(e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue and Listing of Non-
Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021-Not Applicable;

() The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and
Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Componles Act,
2013 and dealing with client; Not Applicable

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equﬁy Shares)
Regulations, 2021-Not Applicable; Not Applicable

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 2018-Not Applicable; Not Applicable

() The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015; Not Applicable

(vi) | further report that, | have also referred the following laws specifically
applicable on the Company having regard to the nature of Industry in which
company is operating:- :

(a) The Electricity Act, 2003

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standard on Meetings of the Board of Directors and Secretarial
Standard on General Meetings as issued and revised thereof by The Insfitute
of Company Secretaries of India ("ICSI"). '

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above.

| further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with Executive and Non-
Fxecutive Directors. The changes in the designation of Board of Directors, as
applicable, that took place under the pericd under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act. :

Adequate notices were given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda
and generally detailed notes on agenda were sent af least seven days in advance,
except in case of special and urgent business where meeting called at shorter nofice,
and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on

the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful porhapohon at the
meeting.
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To

WZ-1003, lind Floor, Rani Bagh Delhl 110034
Ph: - 011-45053912

Mobile: - 9911662021, 9911433045

E-mail : manisha.pcs@gmail.com ,

‘ANNEXURE A’

The Members
JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

(CIN:

- U40100DL2011PTC228318)

F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza-1, Plot no. 7
MLU, Sector-10, Dwarka
New Delhi 110075

My report of even date is fo be read along with ThIS letter.

1.

Date: - 26 September, 2024
Place: - Delhi
UDIN: -FO06378F001327401

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the managemen’r of
the company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ‘rhese secretarial
records based on our audit. P

| have followed the audit practices and processes as were: Gppropr;cﬁe to
obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the
Secretarial records. The verificafion was done on test basis to ensure that
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. | believe that the processes
and practices | followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

| have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of f|ncm<:|ol records
and Books of Accounts of the company.

Where ever required, | have obtained the Management represem‘ohon about
the compliance of laws; rules and regulations and happening of events etc.
Further, my verification to the compliance of the laws specifically to the
Company are limited to test check on random basis wfrhou’r going into the
detailed technical scrutiny.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws,
rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. My
examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of
the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness wn’rh which the monogemen‘r
has conducted the affairs of the company.

For Manisha Gupia & Associates
| (Company Secrefanes)

Mem. No. F6378
CP No. 6808
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Maijority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views are captured
(wherever applicable) and recorded as part of the minutes.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes. in ’rhe company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

| further report that during the audit period the company has no specific
events/actions having a major bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance of the
above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above.

For Manisha Gupta &‘ Associates
(Company Secretaries)

Date: - 26t September, 2024 ' “0\
Place: - Delhi : Manisha\§
UDIN: -FO06378F001327401 Practicing Company Secrejx
Mem. No. Fé
CP No. 4808

Note:-

1. This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as’
Annexure A' and forms an integral part of this report. '
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[Annexure -lli]

1 Brief outline on CSR Policy of the . The CSR Policy of the Company aims to
Company contribute towards sustainable development of
the society and envircnment to make planet a
better place for future generations. The CSR
Policy is formulated in accordance with the
provisions of section 135 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and rules made
thereunder as amended from time to time and
other applicable laws to the Company.

The Company invests in the activities enlisted
in the CSR Policy individually. The CSR
projects undertaken by the Company are
within the broad framework of Schedule VIl to
the Act.
2  Composition of CSR Committee . The CSR Committee is not constituted as the
amount to be spent by the Company under
sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act does
not exceed Rs. 50 Lakh in any financial year.
3 Provide the web-link(s) where NA
Composition of CSR Committee, CSR
Policy and CSR Projects approved by
the board are disclosed on the website
of the company

4  Provide the executive summary along NA
with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment
of CSR Projects carried out in
pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if
applicable.

5  (a) Average net profit of the company Rs. 1,71,55,766
as per sub-section (5) of section 135.
(b) Two percent of average net profit Rs. 3,43,115
of the company as per sub-section (5)
of section 135
(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR Nil
Projects or programmes or activities of
the previous financial years.
(d) Amount required to be set-off for Nil
the financial year, if any.
(e) Total CSR obligation for the Rs. 3,43,1156
financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)].

6 (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects Rs. 3,44,000

(both Ongoing Project and other than

Ongoing Project).

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Nil
Overheads.

(c) Amount spent on Impact Nil
Assessment, if applicable.

(d) Total amount spent for the Rs. 3,44,000
Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)].

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for

the Financial Year:

| [ Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Registered office: F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza-1, Plot No. 7 MLU, Sector-10, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075
Corporate office: Plot No. 18, 1% Floor, Institutional Area, Sector 32, Gurugram Haryana-122001 Tel +91-124 4739600, Fax +91-124 4739666
CIN: U40100DL2011PTC228318 Email: cs@junipergreenenergy.com
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| Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund ‘
Total Unspent CSR Account as per specified under Schedule Vil as per
Amount subsection (6) of section 135. second proviso to sub-section (5) of
Spent for section 135.
the
Financial
' Year. (in Rs) _ B
Amount. Date of transfer Name of the | Amount. Date of
. . ) Fund transfer.
[ 3,44,000 | Nil | Nil | Nil Nil [ Nil

(f) Excess amount for set-off, if any:

| Sl. No. Particular Amount (in Rs.)

L) (2) (3)

[ L Two percent of average net profit of the company | 3,43,115 |
as per sub-section (5) of section 135
ii. Total amount spent for the Financial Year 3,44,000
iii. Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)- 885

()]

iv. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or | Nil
programmes or activities of the previous Financial
Years, if any

V. Amount available for set off in succeeding | 885

Financial Years [(iii)-(iv)]

7  Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial Years:

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
Sl. |Preceding| Amount Balance | Amount Amount Amount | Deficie
No. | Financial ftransferred to]| Amount in | Spentin [transferred toremaining to| ncy, if
Year(s) |[Unspent CSR| Unspent the aFundas |bespentin| any
Account CSR Financial | specified |succeeding
under Account Year (in under Financial
subsection under Rs) Schedule Vil |Years (in Rs)
(6) of section| subsection as per
135 (in (6) of second
LLakhs) section 135 proviso to
(in Lakhs) subsection
(5) of section
135, if any
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
Total

8  Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility
amount spent in the Financial Year:

dYes ¥ No

If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Registered office: F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza-1, Plot No. 7 MLU, Sector-10, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075
Corporate office: Plot No. 18, 1" Floor, Institutional Area, Sector 32, Gurugram Haryana-122001 Tel +91-124 4739600, Fax +91-124 4739666
CIN: U40100DL2011PTC228318 Email: cs@junipergreenenergy.com
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Sl. Short | Pincode | Date of | Amount | Details of entity/ Authority/
No. particulars | of the creation | of CSR | beneficiary of the registered
of the property amount | owner
property or spent
or asset(s) | asset(s)
[including
complete
address
and
location of
the
property]
CSR | Name | Registered
Registration address
Number, if
| B | applicable

l

(All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no, Municipal
Office/Municipal Corporation/ Gram panchayat are to be specified and also the area of the
immovable property as well as boundaries)

9

subsection (5) of section 135. — N. A.

For Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

Mr. Naresh Mansukhani
(Whole time Director)

DIN:

Add: B-39 Jangpura Extension,
New Delhi-110014

Place

Date

06990480

: Gurugram

1 26.09.2024

Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per

Fon

Mr. Parag Agrawal

{(Whole time Director)
DIN: 02463717

5-297,

2nd Floor, Uppal South End

Sector-49, Sohna Road Gurgaon
122018

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

Registered office: F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza-1. Plot No. 7 MLU, Sector-10, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075
Corporate office: Plot No. 18, 1* Floor, Institutional Area, Sectar 32, Gurugram Haryana-122001 Tel +91-124 4739600, Fax +91-124 4739666
CIN: U40100DL2011PTC228318 Email: cs@junipergreenenergy.com
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Annexure IV

FORM NO. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arms length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.

SL. No. | Particulars Details
a) | Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship NA ]
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction NA |
c) | Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction NA
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including | NA
 the value, if any |

e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or | NA

transactions’
f) Date of approval by the Board NA
g) Amount paid as advances, if any NA ]
h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting | NA

as required under first proviso to section 188

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

| SL. Particulars Details —‘
No.
] 1 2
a) Name (s) of the related party & | Nisagra Renewable | Juniper Green Sigma |
nature of relationship Energy Private Limited, | Private Limited, the
the  wholly  owned | wholly owned company,
company, has Mr. Parag | has Mr. Devendra Singh
Agrawal and Mr. Naresh | as common director.
Mansukhani as common
director.
[ b) | Nature of | Providing of | Providing of
contracts/arrangements/transaction | infrastructure  support infrastructure  support
services services |
c) | Duration of the contracts/ | For the financial year | For the financial year |
arrangements/ transactions 23-24 23-24 !
d) | Salient terms of the contracts or | "Providing of | "Providing of
arrangements or  transaction | infrastructure  support | infrastructure  support
including the value, if any services as per terms | services as per terms
provided in InterSe | provided in interSe
Infrastructure  Sharing | Infrastructure  Sharing
Agreement for a total | Agreement for a total
value of Rs. 6.58 Lakhs | value of Rs. 7.56 Lakhs
e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if | NA NA
any -
f) | Amount paid as advances, ifany | Nil Nil

* particulars of contracts entered into by the Company with the wholly owned subsidiary companies are in the ordinary course of
business and on an arm’s length basis.

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Registered office: F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza-1, Plot No. 7 MLU, Sector-10, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075
Corporate office: Plot No. 18, 1* Floor, Institutional Arca, Sector 32, Gurugram Haryana-122001 Tel +91-124 4739600, Fax +91-124 4739666
CIN: U40100D1.2011PTC228318 Email: cs@junipergreenenergy.com
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‘ SL. \ Particulars Details
No. |
' 3 4
a) Name (s) of the related party & | Juniper Green Field | Juniper Green Three
| nature of relationship | Private  Limited, the | Private Limited, the
wholly owned company, | wholly owned company,
| has Mr. Parag Agrawal | has Mr. Parag Agrawal
| and Mr. Naresh | and Mr. Naresh
Mansukhani as common | Mansukhani as common
director. director.
b) Nature of | Providing of | Providing of
contracts/arrangements/transaction | infrastructure  support | infrastructure  support
| services services
c) Duration =~ of the contracts/i For the financial year | For the financial year
| arrangements/ transactions | 23-24 23-24 ]
d) | Salient terms of the contracts or | "Providing of | "Providing of
arrangements or transaction | infrastructure  support | infrastructure  support
| including the value, if any services as per terms | services as per terms
| | provided in InterSe | provided in InterSe
Infrastructure  Sharing | Infrastructure  Sharing
Agreement for a total | Agreement for a total
value of Rs. 7.77 Lakhs | value of Rs. 10.85
Lakhs
e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if | NA NA
L any
f) Amount paid as advances, if any Nil Nil
[ SL. Particulars Details
| No
_ 5 6 ]
a) Name (s) of the related party & | Juniper Green Beam | Juniper Green Stellar
nature of relationship Private Limited, the | Private Limited, the
wholly owned company, | wholly owned company,
has Mr. Parag Agrawal | has Mr. Parag Agrawal
and Mr. Naresh | and Mr. Naresh
| Mansukhani as common | Mansukhani as common |
| director. director.
b) Nature of | Providing of | Providing of
contracts/arrangements/transaction ‘ infrastructure  support | infrastructure  support
services services
c) Duration of the contracts/ | For the financial year | For the financial year
arrangements/ transactions 23-24 23-24
d) Salient terms of the contracts or | "Providing of | "Providing of
arrangements or  transaction | infrastructure  support | infrastructure  support
| including the value, if any services as per terms | services as per terms
provided in InterSe | provided in InterSe
Infrastructure  Sharing | Infrastructure  Sharing
Agreement for a total | Agreement for a total
value of Rs. 7578 | value of Rs. 6892
! Lakhs Lakhs Q/(,,N E
e) | Date(s) of approval by the Board, if | NA NA S
| any : | ¥4
f) Amount paid as advances, if any ] Nil Nil lk;
4
7,
* particulars of contracts entered into by the Company with the wholly owned subsidiary companies are in the ordinary course of /)/’ *

business and on an arm'’s length basis.

Ng
A
A
-
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Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Registered office: F-9, First Floor, Mamish Plaza-1, Plot No. 7 MLU, Sector-10, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075
Corporate office: Plot No. 18, 1" Floor, Institutional Area, Sector 32, Gurugram Haryana-122001 Tel +91-124 4739600, Fax +91-124 4739666
CIN: U40100DL2011PTC228318 Email: cs@junipergreencnergy.com
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SL. Particulars Details
No.
7 8
a) Name (s) of the related party & | Juniper Green Cosmic | Juniper Green Beta
nature of relationship Private Limited, the | Private Limited, the
wholly owned company, | wholly owned company,
has Mr. Parag Agrawal | has Mr. Parag Agrawal
and Mr. Naresh | and Mr. Naresh
Mansukhani as common | Mansukhani as common
| director. director.
b) | Nature of | Providing of | Providing of
contracts/arrangements/transaction | infrastructure  support infrastructure  support
services services
c) Duration of the contracts/ | For the financial year | For the financial year
|| arrangements/ transactions 23-24 23-24
d) | Salient terms of the contracts or | "Providing of | "Providing of
arrangements or transaction | infrastructure  support | infrastructure  support
| including the value, if any | services as per terms | services as per terms
provided in InterSe | provided in InterSe
Infrastructure  Sharing | Infrastructure  Sharing
Agreement for a total | Agreement for a total
value of Rs. 103.59 | value of Rs. 102.51
Lakhs Lakhs
e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if | NA NA
| any
'f) | Amount paid as advances, ifany | Nil | Nil
SL. Particulars Details
No.
: ] 9 10
a) | Name (s) of the related party & | Juniper Green | Juniper Green Kite
nature of relationship Transmission  Private | Private  Limited, the
Limited, the wholly | wholly owned company, |
owned company, has | has Mr. Parag Agrawal
Mr. Parag Agrawal and | and Mr. Naresh
Mr. Naresh Mansukhani | Mansukhani as common
as common director. director.
b) Nature of | Providing of | Providing of
contracts/arrangements/transaction | infrastructure support | infrastructure  support
| services services
c) Duration of the contracts/ | For the financial year | For the financial year
arrangements/ transactions 23-24 23-24
d) | Salient terms of the contracts or | "Providing of | "Providing of |
arrangements or transaction | infrastructure  support | infrastructure ~ support
including the value, if any services as per terms | services as per terms
provided in InterSe | provided in interSe
Infrastructure  Sharing | Infrastructure  Sharing
Agreement for a total | Agreement for a total
value of Rs. 0.21 Lakhs | value of Rs. 17.25
Lakhs
e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if | NA NA
any
' f) | Amount paid as advances, if any Nil Nil

business and on an arm’s length basis.

3 3 0 »
Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Registered office’ F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza-1, Plot No. 7 MLU, Sector-10, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075
Corporate office: Plot No. 18, 1" Flaor, Institutional Area, Sector 32, Gurugram Haryana-122001 Tel +91-124 4739600, Fax +91-124 4739666
CIN: U40100DL2011PTC228318 Email: cs@junipergreenenergy.com
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SL. Particulars | Details
No.
11
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of Juniper Green Gamma One Private
relationship Limited, the wholly owned

company, has Mr. Devendra Singh
as common director.

b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Providing of infrastructure support
services
c) Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/ | For the financial year 23-24
- transactions ]
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements | “Providing of infrastructure support
or transaction including the value, if any services as per terms provided in
InterSe Infrastructure  Sharing
Agreement for a total value of Rs.
68.04 Lakhs
e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any NA |
f) Amount paid as advances, if any Nil |
For Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Koo ‘ﬁﬁ\/
Mr. Naresh Mansukhani Mr. Parag Agrawal
(Whole time Director) (Whole time Director)
DIN: 06990480 DIN: 02463717
Add: B-39 Jangpura Extension, S-297, 2nd Floor, Uppal South End
New Delhi-110014 Sector-49, Sohna Road Gurgaon
122018
Place : Gurugram \@
Date . 26.09.2024

* particulars of contracts entered into by the Company with the wholly owned subsidiary companies are in the ordinary course of
business and on an arm’s length basis.

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Regstered office: F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza-1, Plot No, 7 MLU, Sector-10, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075
Corporate office: Plot No. 18, 1* Floor, Institutional Area, Sector 32, Gurugram Haryana-122001 Tel +91-124 4739600, Fax +91-124 4739666
CIN. U40100DL2011PTC228318 Email: cs@junipergreenenergy.com
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Form AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section () of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
g Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures
Part “A”: Subsidiaries Y, g
(Information in respect of each subsidiary has been presented with amounts in Rs. In Lakhs)

| Nisagra Renewable | Juniper Green - . o | Juniper Green | Juniper Green | Juniper ~ Green Juniper Green |
‘ Name of the subsidiary Energy Private | Sigma Private ‘#ﬁlnvl gtz r Lcianrleitee r(\j Field ‘#FJ gt?s r L%ﬁ:g aneg Gem Private | Beam Private | Stellar Private | Cosmic Private
| Limited | Limited - - | Limited Limited Limited Limited
= 1 | 2 3 4 | 5 6 7 i
Sﬁéiifgéce when subsidiary was | g5 1 2018# | 01 March 2010 “| 01 January 2020° 27 January 2020* 02 July 2020* 17 August 2021* | 23 August 2021* 252'g;$ESt
" Repotting period’ : - . - ' - - | - >
Reporting currency”™ - - - - -
Share capitzl 7.504.00 7,205.00 10,737.00 13,130.00 56.00 7,268.00 1,678.00 | 7.079.00
Other Equity 3,317.16 5,512.88 -2,291.19 ' -3.834.12 -55.74 3,972.09 -15.62 39511
e — — —_— " — ——ee | e— _1
Total assets 37,616.08 60.011.16 87.500.95 1,01,623.46 4.57 67,650.55 6.869.44 17 311.31
Tctal Liabilities 26,794.92 l 47,293.28 79,055.14 92,327.58 4.31 56,420.46 | 5,207.06 0907 20
| Invesiments™” - 6,000.00 - ) - | - 1 ' - I | s I
| Turnover (including  other i
|income) o 5,811.95 10,155.54 10,549.53 11.?64.17 - 113.67 - 43.03 . 71.92 |
Profit/(Loss) before taxation 1,418.77 3,509.09 -686.04 -2,082.72 -3.02 -189.16 -1.45 80.48 )
Tax expense (including | D i "|_ N | - ' T B
pertaining to earlier years and : 362.05 890.58 -80.43 -356.74 | - 7.39 11.19 18.13
deferred tax expense/credit) o - L - | ’
Profit/(Loss) after taxation 1.056.72 2,618.51 -605.61 -1,725.98 -3.02 -196.55 -12.64 98.61 B _J
_ Proposed Dividend - - - B - i — - - | - ,
Extent of shareholding (%)™ 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% | 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% l 100.00% |

* Represents date of incorporation
# Represents date of acquisition

" Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding company's reporting period

™ Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries.
" Extent of shareholding has been provided and shall be read with period of relationship.

"™ Extent of shareholding has been provided and shall be read with period of relationship.

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

Registered office: F-9, First Floor. Manish Plaza-1, Plot No. 7 MLU, Sector-10, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075 CIN: U40100DL2011PTC228318
Corporate office: Plot No. 18, 1% Floor, Institutional Area, Sector 32, Gurugram Haryana-122001 Tel +91-124 4739600, Fax +91-124 4739666 Email: cs@junipergreenenergy.com
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] - Juniper
Juniper  Green | Juniper Green | Juniper Green | Juniper Green | Juniper  Green | Juniper  Green | Juniper  Green JG":_EE?F Aloha Green
Name of the subsidiary Beta Private | Transmission Kite Private | Infinite  Private | Power Five | Sigma Six | India Eight Three Pn'\?ate Theta Five
Limited Private Limited Limited Limited Private Limited Private Limited Private Limited Limited Private
Limited
9 10 11 12 13 14 ] 15 16 17
Date since when subsidiary was Ayt 13 January 09 February 11 February . " " " 07 July
acquired 08-Oct-21 2022* 2022+ 2022+ 05 July 2022 05 July 2022 05 July 2022 07 July 2022 2022
Reporting period" - - B - N N L : N
Reporting currency™ B B
Share capital 1,500.00 187.00 100 | 950 1.00 | 1.00 ,. 2.50 3.50 4.00
OmerBquitis B 20.08 186.29 2.80 860 6.04 0.54 256 356 | -3.01
Total assets 4.331.76 2.50 2,256.17 1.53 903.05 065 | 015 0.16 1.20
liotahiiabilives = 2,851.84 1.79 2,252.37 0.63 908.09 0.19 0.21 0.22 0.21
Investments™ - - - - N R T N N
Turnover (including other income) 13.00 - 17.95 - - B - - - -
| Profit/(Loss) before taxation 13.03 15.92 7.91 0.63 5.63 0.20 0.27 0.26 2.71
Tax expense (including pertaining to
eartier years and deferred tax 338 - 467 - - - - - -
expense/credit)
ProfitiLoss) after taxation 16.41 16.92 3.24 0.63 5.63 0.20 027 0.26 2.71
Proposed Dividend - - - - | - - - - -
| Extent of shareholding (%)™ 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

* Represents date of incorporation
# Represents date of acquisition

" Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding company 's reporting period
* Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries.

™" Reported where non-current investment.

™ Extent of shareholding has been provided and shall be read with period of relationship.

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

Registered office: F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza-1, Plot No. 7 MLU, Sector-10, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075 CIN: U40100DL2011PTC228318
Corporate office: Plot No. 18, 1¥ Floor, Institutional Area, Sector 32, Gurugram Haryana-122001 Tel +91-124 4739600, Fax +91-124 4739666 Email: cs@junipergreenenergy.com
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5 JUNIPER

Name of the subsidiary

Juniper Green
Gamma One
Private Limited

Juniper  Green
Gamma Two
Private Limited

Juniper  Green
Beta Six Private
Limited

Juniper  Green
ETA Five Private
Limited

Juniper  Green
Ray Two Private
Limited

Juniper  Green
Beam Eight
Private Limited

Juniper  Green
Beam Six Private
Limited

Juniper  Green
Spark Four
Private Limited

* Represents date of incorporation
# Represents date of acquisition

Reportmg period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding company s reporting period
Reportmg currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries.

Reported where non-current investment.

" Extent of shareholding has been provided and shall be read with period of relationship.

18 19 20 : 21 22 23 24 | 25
| = [ [
g;:ﬁir;énce when subsidiary was | o7 1 20900 07 July 2022* 07 July 2022 07 July 2022* 08 July 2022* 08 July 2022* 08 July 2022 08 July 2022*
|_Reporti : o i
Reporting period - - - - - - . =
|_Reporting currency™ _ |
| Sham capital 3,000.00 20.50 7.50 450 990.00 15.00 250 | 6.00
Other Equity | 899.41 L 292 8.08 302 15.08 2.57 254 | 414
| Total assets 43,007.98 17.82 0.15 1.68 7682.66 20.31 0.17 208
Total BEgiies 39,108.57 0.24 0.73 0.20 . 6,707.74 7.88 0.21 0.22
Investments"“ - - - = - B B
Turnover (including other mcome)  631.50 - - _— B 7.47 B 0.01 - -
| Profit{Loss) before taxation 46.97 058 | 264 0.25 12.65 0.23 0.26 0.24
Tax expense (including pertaining to
earlier years and deferred tax 59.06 - - - 104 - - -
expense/credit)
 Profit/Loss) after taxation 106.03 0.58 264 0.25 14.59 0.23 0.26 0.24
Proposed Dividend - - B - - - -
Extent of shareholding (%)™ 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% |  100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

Registered office: F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza-1, Plot No. 7 MLU, Sector-10, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075 CIN: U40100DL2011PTC228318
Corporate office: Plot No. 18, 1* Floor, Institutional Area, Sector 32, Gurugram Haryana-122001 Tel +91-124 4739600, Fax +91-124 4739666 Email: cs(@junipergreenenergy.com




4
L

JUNIPER

Green Energy

[ N Orange
Juniper  Green | Juniper  Green Juniper  Green | Juniper Green Juniper  Green | Juniper  Green Juniper Green | Juniper Nirjara ﬁ[adjg
Name of the subsidiary Light Ten Private | Ray One Private | India Alpha | Spark Ten | Light Four | India Six Private | Sigma Eight | Energy Private in
Power
Limited Limited Private Limited Private Limited Private Limited Limited Private Limited | Limited Private
! . Limited
26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34
Date  since when subsidiary was | g 1 o000x | g July 2022 | 11July2022* | 13 July 2022* 13July 2022* | 15July 2022* | 19.July 2022* | 23.06-00238 | 26-Sep-
acquired 2018#
_Reporting period” = M ) |1 = = o L S ] -
|_Reporting currency™ B - -
| Share captal 400 110.00 250 | 500 150 | 95000 1.50 ~990.00 100
 Other Equity - 286 | 4347 _ 252 1.73 150 2.85 0.57 36747 | 34974
Total assets - 14.32 7557 0.18 347 2786 | 296927 | 114 1,245.35 35470
| Total Fidbilities 13.18 8.74 0.20 0.20 27.86 2,022.12 021 622.82 396
Investments™ - - o - . - . | B - o -
Turnover (including other income) - - - - - 10.79 - 2355 2379
| ProfitLoss) before taxation 0.21 L a8 0.23 0.23 0.21 125 0.23 96.49 2317
Tax expense (including pertaining to
earlier years and defered tax - - - - - - -
expense/credit) 281 20.10 5.91
ProfitiL.oss) after taxation 0.21 42.83 0.23 0.23 0.21 1.56 0.23 76.39 17.26
| Proposed Dividend | - - - - - - - -
| Extent of shareholding (%)™ 100.00% | 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% | 100.00%

* Represents date of incorporation
# Represents date of acquisition.

" Reporting period for the subsidia
™ Reporting currency and Excha

™ Reported where non-current investment.
" Extent of shareholding has been provided and shall be read with period of relationship.

nge rate as on the last daote

1y concerned, if different from the holding company's reporting period
of the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries.

Registered office: F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza-1, Plot No. 7 MLU, Secter-10, Dwarka, New Delhi-
Corporate office: Plot No. 18, 1% Floor, Institutional Area, Sector 32, Gurugram Haryana-

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

110075 CIN: U401060DL2011PTC228318
122001 Tel +91-124 4739600, Fax +91-124 4739666 Email: cs@junipergreenenergy.com
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The following information is as on 31 March 2024:

1 Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence commercial operations*
Sr. no. Name of Company Sr. no.

1 Juniper Green Gem Private Limited 16
2 Juniper Green Stellar Private Limited 17
3 Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited 18
4 Juniper Green Beta Private Limited 19
5 Juniper Green Transmission Private Limited 20
6 Juniper Green Kite Private Limited 21
7 Juniper Green Infinite Private Limited 22
8 Juniper Green Power Five Private Limited 23
9 Juniper Green Sigma Six Private Limited 24
10 Juniper Green India Eight Private Limited 25
" Juniper Greo:an Alpha Three Private Limited 26
12 Juniper Green Theta Five Private Limited 27
13 Juniper Green Gamma Two Private Limited 28
14 Juniper Green Beta Six Private Limited

15

Juniper Green ETA Five Private Limited

* renewable energy project, if any, has not been commissioned.

2 Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Nil

Name of Company

Juniper Green Ray Two Private Limited
Juniper Green Beam Eight Private Limited
Juniper Green Beam Six Private Limited
Juniper Green Spark Four Private Limited
Juniper Green Light Ten Private Limited
Juniper Green Ray One Private Limited
Juniper Green India Alpha Private Limited
Juniper Green Spark Ten Private Limited
Juniper Green Light Four Private Limited
Juniper Green India Six Private Limited
Juniper Green Sigma Eight Private Limited
Juniper Nirjara Energy Private Limited

Orange Gadag Wind Power Private Limited

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

Registered office: F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza-1, Plot No. 7 MLU, Sector-10, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075 CIN: U40100DL201 1PTC228318
Corporate office: Plot No. 18, 1% Floor, Institutional Area, Sector 32, Gurugram Haryana-122001 Tel +91-124 4739600, Fax +91-124 4739666 Email: cs(@junipergreenenergy.com
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Part “B":
Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures -
Latest audited Batance Sheet Date S -
Date on which the Associate or Jaint Venture was associated -
or acquired o
Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on the -
year end:

a) Number | -

b) Amount of investment in Associates/Joint -

Venture (actual in Lakh)

Extend of Holding % -
Description of how there is significant influence |-
Reason why the associatefjoint venture is not consofidated | -
Net worth attributable to Shareholding as per latest audited -
| Balance Sheet? —n
Profit / Loss for the year -
a) Considered in Consolidation (Rs. In Lakh) -
_b) Not Considered in Consolidation (Rs. In Lakh) -

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations: Nil
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Nil

For Juniper Green Energy Private Limited L&ﬁ/l ~ %
- é an .

Mr. Naresh Mansukhani Mr. Parag Agrawal Mr. Prashant Pandia

(Whole time Director) (Whole time Director) (Company Secretary)

DIN: 06990480 DIN: 02463717 M. No. F12077

Add: B-39 Jangpura Ext. Add: $-297, 2nd Floor, Uppal South End Add: F 07, Peepal Apartment, Sector 17,
New Delhi-110014 Sector-49, Sohna Road Dwarka, Delhi- 110078

Gurgaon 122018
Date: 26.09.2024

Place: Gurugram

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

Registered office; F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza-1, Plot No. 7 MLU, Sector-10, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075 CIN: U40100DL2011PTC228318
Corporate office: Plot No. 18, 1% Floor, Institutional Area, Sector 32, Gurugram Haryana-122001 Tel +91-124 4739600, Fax +91-124 4739666 Email: cs@junipergreenenergy.com
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